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Singamas Container Holdings Limited (the “Group”) has
been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
since 1993. We are one of the world’s leading container
manufacturers and a major operator of container depots and
terminals in the Asian-Pacific region. Our container factory
and depot networks are among the most comprehensive in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

Our manufacturing business is currently supported by ten
factories in the PRC. We manufacture a wide range of
products including dry freight containers, collapsible flatrack
containers, open top containers, bitutainers, refrigerated
containers, U.S. domestic containers, tank containers,
offshore containers and other specialised containers and
container parts.

Our logistics business includes container depots/terminals
and logistics company, and is currently running ten container
depots/terminals, eight at the major ports in the PRC — Dalian,
Tianjin, Qingdao, Qidong, Shanghai, Ningbo, Fuzhou and
Xiamen, and two in Hong Kong. We also operate a logistics
company in Xiamen, the PRC.
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Financial Highlights
MBERE
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TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | hereby
present the operating results of Singamas Container Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2016.

During the review year, the container industry continued to
be affected by the downturn of the global economy. The
Group was inevitably impacted by such economic doldrums
with consolidated revenue faling to US$916,433,000 (2015:
US$1,126,414,000). Consolidated net loss attributable to
owners of the Company amounted to US$59,434,000
(2015: net loss of US$2,723,000). The aforesaid consolidated
net loss for the year ended 31 December 2016 including
additional compensation made in connection with the Tianjin
explosion incident, and other one-off expenses. Basic loss
per share amounted to US2.46 cents compared with loss per
share of US0.11 cent in 2015.

The global economic downturn has been continuing since
the second half of 2015, disrupting world trade, which
included exports from the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC"), consequently affecting market demand for, and the
average selling price (“ASP”) of new dry freight containers.
Further curbing demand has been the postponement of new
container vessel deliveries since 2015.
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DIVIDENDS

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Manufacturing

For much of the review year, demand for new containers
remained lacklustre. This was due, on a macro level, to
the aforementioned factors of a weak global economy and
decline in exports, while on a micro level, major mergers
and acquisitions by a number of shipping companies and
container leasing operators created market uncertainties that
further impaired container demand. Consequently, revenue
fell to US$880,654,000 versus US$1,093,802,000 in 2015 —
accounting for 96% of the Group’s total revenue. Segment
loss before taxation and non-controlling interests amounted
to US$59,607,000, compared with a segment profit before
taxation and non-controliing interests of US$2,120,000 in last
year.

The manufacturing operation produced 523,785 twenty-foot
equivalent units (“TEUS”) for the year ended 31 December
2016, slightly dropped by 0.6% from 526,893 TEUs in the
preceding year. Total sales volume amounted to 543,708
TEUs versus 520,684 TEUs in 2015 — a reflection of our
ability to capture a greater share of the dry freight container
market. However, the ASP of a 20’ dry freight container
fell from US$1,789 in 2015 to US$1,457 in 2016, due to a
significant decline in the price of corten steel and generally
weak market demand. Dry freight containers accounted
for 66% of manufacturing revenue with the remaining 34%
derived from specialised containers (2015: 59% and 41%).

With regards to the specialised container business, the ASP
declined owing to intense competition which also negatively
impacted on the margin of such containers. Despite the less
favourable return from specialised containers, we were able to
attract orders from China Railway and other local customers
in China to provide tailor-made container solutions to suit
their needs, thus providing fresh impetus for our penetration
into the PRC market. This also aligns with the management’s
objective of capitalising on an emerging and modernising
railway system that will serve as backbone for the PRC
government’s “One Belt, One Road” (‘OBOR”) initiative.
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In reference to the Group’s offshore container interest,
demand remained weak due to the decline in oil exploration.
Despite of this, the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary
Qidong Singamas Offshore Equipment Co., Ltd (“QSOE”)
— a specialist in the production of internationally certified
quality offshore containers — has continued to develop other
high-specification containers which wil extend the Group’s
reach to different market segments.

On the production front, construction of the offshore container
factory in Qidong will help address demand resulting from the
abovementioned activities by QSOE — production is expected
to commence in the second half of 2017. Worth noting as
well, the Taicang factory has been relocated to Qidong, thus
bringing all of the Group’s skilled technicians under one roof
and facilitating the development of new products. While in
Qingdao, the Group’s new reefer container factory is meeting
construction milestones and will begin trial production by the
end of 2017, and thereby support the refrigerated container
business in northern China.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016
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Logistics Services

Representing a steady source of income, logistic services
continued to perform stably during the review year, generating
US$35,779,000 in revenue (2015: US$32,612,000).
However, owing to further compensation made in relation to
the Tianjin explosion incident, amounting to US$6,650,000
(net of insurance claims of US$3,875,000), a segment profit
before taxation and non-controliing interests of US$1,258,000
was recorded, compared to US$6,815,000 as reported last
year. Our Group handled 3,734,000 TEUs in the year 2016
(2015: 3,098,000 TEUs), while average daily storage reached
138,000 TEUs, which is similar to last year at 126,000 TEUSs.

In respect of the joint venture between the Group, Guangxi
Beibu Gulf International Port Group Ltd. and Port of
Singapore, the parties have initiated reclamation work on a
property located in Qinzhou port area. This area is of strategic
importance as it is among the sites that will benefit from
the OBOR initiative, an undertaking that holds enormous
opportunities for the logistics sector which the tripartite
alliance will make every effort to seize.

Chairman’s Statement > E#H &
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PROSPECTS

The ever changing global economy will continue to create
both challenges and opportunities for the container industry
in the coming financial year. In respect of the former, the
arrival of a new administration to the Oval Office in the United
States, which holds a hawkish stance towards trade, could
potentially lead to a major shake-up of established norms
leading to downward pressure on the world economy. As
for the latter, a changing environment that is favourable for
steel and petroleum production could help support a rise in
the ASP of dry freight containers and increase demand for
offshore containers respectively.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016
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Within the PRC, the policy among industry players to employ
waterborne paint starting in April 2017 has spurred certain
shipping and leasing companies to place advance orders in
order to avoid shortage of container supply during production
suspension period. We have consequently become one of
the beneficiaries and our books are full until March 2017.
To meet the aforementioned policy requirements, we will be
suspending certain production lines in the second quarter
of 2017 for approximately 2 months to make appropriate
modifications. This downtime, which will also affects our
peers, will lead to a general decline in output and potentially
a new supply-demand equilibrium being established, with
the ASP of containers possibly strengthening due to lower
inventory available.

With respect to the logistics services business, we are on
track to establish a liquid tank logistics operation (for industrial
chemical liquid) in India. We have signed a joint venture
agreement with Apollo Logisolutions Limited, a leading
integrated logistics solutions provider in India, in March 2017
to form the joint venture. The Group will have a 30% stake in
the joint venture.

APPRECIATION

At this time | would like to extend my utmost appreciation
to our business partners, customers and stakeholders for
their unwavering support over the past year. Likewise, our
Board, management team and staff must be lauded for
demonstrating immense dedication, perseverance, and
diligence amid the adverse conditions faced in this and
past financial periods. Even though the industry will have to
continue tackling stiff challenges in the foreseeable future, |
trust that through the concerted effort of the entire Singamas
workforce, we will further expand our market presence and
achieve favourable outcomes for our stakeholders.

Mr. Teo Siong Seng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2017
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Frequently Asked Questions
— =M

The demand for new containers remained lacklustre
in 2016. How would Singamas cope with the
challenges? What is Singamas’ view towards the
industrial atmosphere in 20177

The global economic downturn and decline in exports
from the PRC have affected the market demand for
new containers in 2016. However, with the improved
export volumes from the PRC starting from the
fourth quarter of 2016, we have seen the recovery
of demand and would expect an improved business
environment in 2017. In order to tackle the challenging
environment, the Group will strive to optimise
operating efficiency in all aspects through ongoing
automation of various manufacturing activities and
implementing more stringent cost controls. Moreover,
we will seize more business opportunities in logistics
services business and broaden our income streams
through cooperation with local and overseas business
partners.

The average selling price (“ASP”) of containers has
continued to decline during the past year. What is
Singamas’ view of the ASP of container towards
20177 What are the Company’s solutions to moderate
the effect?

We believe the increase in demand for new containers
and the changing environment that is favourable to
steel price could help support a rise in the ASP of dry
freight containers.

Moreover, the policy among industry players in PRC
to employ waterborne paint starting in April 2017
has spurred certain shipping and leasing companies
to place advance orders in order to avoid shortage
of container supply during production suspension
period. To meet the policy requirements, industry
players would need to suspend certain production
to make appropriate modifications. This will lead to
a general decline in output and potentially a new
supply-demand equillibrium being established, with the
ASP of containers possibly strengthening due to lower
inventory available.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016
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What is the current new container inventory level in the
market? What does the order book look like for dry
freight containers and specialised containers?

Due to strong pick up in China’s export starting from
the fourth quarter of 2016, the current new container
inventory in the market drops to around 400,000
twenty-foot equivalent units (“TEUs”). As one of the
beneficiaries of the waterborne paint policy mentioned
in question 2, our books are full unti March 2017.
We currently have 2 month of orders for those
factories which are ready to produce waterborne
paint dry freight containers and 2 months of orders for
specialised containers on hand.

Specialised containers business experienced intense
competition and the profit margin of specialised
containers declined during the year. How would
Singamas improve the performance of this business?
What is the growth momentum of this sector?

Despite the less favourable return from specialised
containers, the Group was able to attract orders from
China Railway and other local customers in China to
provide tailor-made container solutions to suit their
needs, thus providing fresh impetus for Singamas’
penetration into the PRC market. Besides, the
Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary Qidong Singamas
Offshore Equipment Co., Ltd (“QSOE”) has continued
to develop other high-specification containers which
will extend the Group’s reach to different market
segments.

Frequently Asked Questions — %12 ]
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Frequently Asked Questions — %12

Furthermore, the Group has continuously enhancing
its facilities and production efficiencies: 1) The Group’s
offshore container factory in Qidong is expected to
commence production in the second half of 2017,
helping to address demand resulting from QSOE.
Besides, the Taicang factory has been relocated to
Qidong, bringing all of the Group’s skilled technicians
under one roof and facilitating the development of new
products; 2) The Group’s new reefer container factory
in Qingdao is meeting construction milestones and will
begin trial production by the end of 2017, and thereby
support the refrigerated container business in northern
China.

Logistics services business of the Group reported a
stable performance in spite of the gloomy industry
environment. Has any initiative been taken to seize
market opportunity and expand the Group’s profit in
the future?

The Group has established a joint venture with
Guangxi Beibu Gulf International Port Group Ltd. and
Port of Singapore, for the development of a container
freight station in Qinzhou port area. The area is one
of the locations that is set to benefit from the Chinese
government’s ‘One Belt, One Road initiative’, an
undertaking that holds enormous opportunities for the
logistics sector which the tripartite alliance will make
every effort to seize. Currently, the parties have initiated
reclamation work on a property located in Qinzhou
port area.

In addition, the Group has signed a joint venture
agreement with India’s leading integrated logistics
solutions provider Apollo Logisolution Limited (“Apollo”)
in March 2017, aiming to establish a liquid tank
logistics operation in India. We believe the cooperation
with Apollo will create new growth momentum for our
logistics services business.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016

A - EEEERA LSRR EERT
)%lh%%%%@l%%%lﬁﬁ
AR T —tF TEFRE UK
QSOE¥ T3 RATHE RAI T K o b - K
EREEEARR  LEEEMANR
HEMABSEFRER -G EEH
REFTEMNFAE 2 SEESSNIR
TREE R B ) IR E iR 21T
EFHRZZT—tFERGBHE LB
SERLRERMEBEPREHILFH
Eo

KBRS E BT R EERARR
TOARBIBE - RERR T EEHR
EETHHEB RN ARRERH ?

SEEEEILERRESEERRA
A MBI B BB E  HTOME
iﬂlﬁ%é@ﬁﬁifEEL;E N E Hh [ 2
Hefh—{Bal ZER B [ —F 3] R
H’Utﬂzlﬁ?ﬁ?%ﬁ :Hﬂﬁyﬁéﬂﬁﬁﬁa‘ﬂ?ﬁmﬁt
HROEAYREEE - BT =M
SRR A FON 7B M 3 By 7 B 130 B R OR
BIE

Jitﬁl\"iIEEEDFAE?EE”JZ*/—\%MM%

IR B Apollo Logisolution Limited
(TApoIIoJ)b"\_ﬁ +FE =A% AE
WA & B %k EHERIRE
BRI ETS - B AMIAR1E - ELApollof &
1+ %% 45 5= B B0 W e AR 765 5 755 4 465 ¥ Y
BRES -



What is Singamas’ expectation for the vessels delivery
business in 20177

Based on industry publications, the scheduled
delivery of vessels would be around 234 in 2017, with
an estimated increase in total shipping capacity of
approximate 1.7 milion TEUs. Among the 234 fleets
to be delivered in 2017, 91 have a capacity of over
10,000 TEUs.

The cost of corten steel declined significantly in 2016.
As corten steel is a major determinant of container
price, what is Singamas’ view towards the price trend
of corten steel in 20177

The oversupply issue among the steel industry in
China persisted in 2016 and consequently affected
the price of corten steel during the year. However, with
Chinese government acting aggressively to address
the oversupply issue, steel price strongly picked up
in the last quarter of 2016 and we expect that it will
stabilise in 2017.

Frequently Asked Questions — %12 ]
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Honorary Chairman, Directors and Senior Management Profile
KEBEIRE EEREEEEAEHN

The Honorary Chairman and directors of the Company
(“Director”) at the date of this annual report are as follows:

HONORARY CHAIRMAN
Mr. Chang Yun Chung

DIRECTORS

Mr. Teo Siong Seng ™ Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Chan Kwok Leung " Executive Director and
Chief Operating Officer

Mr. Teo Tiou Seng * Executive Director

Ms. Chung Pui King, Executive Director,

Rebecca * Chief Financial Officer and

Company Secretary

Mr. Kuan Kim Kin #2
Mr. Tan Chor Kee

Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director

Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, Independent
David Non-executive Director

Mr. Lau Ho Kit, Ivan # Indepenaent
Non-executive Director

Mr. Ong Ka Thai °# Independent
Non-executive Director

Mr. Yang, Victor #2 Independent

Non-executive Director

* Audit Committee Member

" Management Committee Member
° Nomination Committee Member

& Remuneration Committee Member

Brief biographical details of the Honorary Chairman and
Directors at the date of this annual report are as follows:

HONORARY CHAIRMAN

Mr. Chang Yun Chung (also known as Mr. Teo Woon
Tiong), aged 98, the former Chairman of the Board, was
appointed on 20 April 1993 but was then appointed as
Honorary Chairman of the Company on 27 May 2013
following his retirement as a director of the Company. Mr.
Chang started his shipping career in Singapore in 1949 and
is the founder of Pacific International Lines (Private) Limited
(“PIL"), the controlling shareholder of the Company as defined
under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Chang is the

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016
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father of Mr. Teo Siong Seng and Mr. Teo Tiou Seng, directors
of the Company. Mr. Chang graduated from the Xiamen
Datung College. Mr. Chang is the Chairman of the PIL Group
of companies in Singapore, which is engaged in shipping
and related businesses. He is also the Chairman of Pacific
International Lines (H.K.) Limited (“PILHK") of Hong Kong, a
subsidiary of PIL, Maya Corporation Pte. Ltd. of Singapore,
Malaysia Shipping Corporation Sdn. Bhd. of Malaysia,
Eastern Maritime (Thailand) Ltd. and Pacific Seatran Lines
Ltd. of Thailand.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Teo Siong Seng, B.Sc. (Naval Architect), aged 62,
was appointed on 20 April 1993, became the President and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 1 February 1997
and was appointed as Chairman of the Company on 27
May 2013. Mr. Teo is a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company and he is also the younger brother of Mr. Teo Tiou
Seng. Mr. Teo started his shipping career with PIL Group
in Singapore since 1979 and was appointed the managing
director of PIL in October 1992. He is an executive director
of various PIL subsidiaries and joint venture companies
whose activities include shipowning, liner shipping, ship
agencies, freight forwarding, container manufacturing,
ships recycling, marine services, container depot/terminal
operation, warehousing, logistics park, real estate and
travel. He is currently an independent non-executive director
of COSCO SHIPPING Energy Transportation Co., Ltd.
(formerly known as China Shipping Development Company
Limited), a company listed on the main board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
He is the Chairman of Singapore Business Federation and
the Honorary President of Singapore Chinese Chamber
of Commerce & Industry. He is also a Council Member of
the fifth Council of China Overseas Exchange Association.
Mr. Teo is the Honorary Consul of The United Republic of
Tanzania in Singapore. He is the Honorary Citizen of Foshan
City (Guangdong Province) and Yixing City (Jiangsu Province)
of the PRC respectively.
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Mr. Chan Kwok Leung, aged 59, was appointed on
1 March 2012. Mr. Chan is the Chief Operating Officer of
the Company and is a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company. He joined Eng Kong Container Services Limited,
a subsidiary of the Company, on 1 July 1994. He has
more than 37 years of combined experience in marketing,
container depot management, container inspection and
repair, and container leasing. Prior to joining the Company,
he was the Technical Director of Unicon International Ltd., a
container surveying company with major interests in the Far
East.

Mr. Teo Tiou Seng, aged 64, was appointed on 26 June
1996 as Executive Director of the Company and is also a
director of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Teo
is the elder brother of Mr. Teo Siong Seng and has been
engaging in shipping business since 1977. Mr. Teo graduated
and holds a Master Degree in Business Administration from
the University of Western Ontario, Richard Ivey School of
Business. He has more than 34 years of working experience
in container transport business and is also a director of PIL
and the managing director of PILHK.

Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca, M.B.A., HKICFA, FCCA,
aged 48, was appointed as Executive Director of the
Company on 2 July 2015. She was also appointed as Chief
Financial Officer of the Company on 2 February 2013 and
was appointed as Company Secretary of the Company on
10 September 2013. She is also the director of a subsidiary
of the Company. She was appointed as the director of
Modex Holding Limited, an associate of the Company, which
specialised in leasing and trading of offshore containers, on
10 October 2014. Ms. Chung joined the Group on 1 January
1996. She has more than 25 years of combined experience
in public accountancy, sourcing and manufacturing.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kuan Kim Kin, aged 68, was appointed as
Non-executive Director of the Company on 15 July
1998. Mr. Kuan has been an executive director of the
Finance Division of PIL since 7 June 2004. He also holds
directorship in various PIL’s Group of Companies. Other
than their relationship with PIL, these various PIL’s Group of
Companies are third parties independent of the Company
and connected persons of the Company. Prior to joining PIL,
he held a number of senior financial and accounting positions
across diverse business groups, including two public listed
companies in Malaysia. Mr. Kuan is a fellow member of The
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants (United
Kingdom).

Mr. Tan Chor Kee, aged 64, was appointed as
Non-executive Director of the Company on 2 July 2013.
Mr. Tan graduated from the University of Singapore with a
first class honour degree in Mechanical Engineering. He has
more than 39 years of experience in shipping particularly in
equipment management, costs control, corporate planning,
logistics operations, agency and liner business. Mr. Tan is
currently the Deputy Managing Director of PIL.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David, aged 68, was appointed
as Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
on 1 November 2012. Mr. Cheng graduated in 1975 from
the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor (Honors)
Degree in Social Sciences. He has extensive experience in
banking, corporate finance and shipfinance. Mr. Cheng has
assumed the position of independent non-executive director
of Grandland Shipping Limited with effect from 1 January
2016. Mr. Cheng has also been appointed as independent
non-executive director of Miricor Enterprises Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the growth enterprise market
of the Stock Exchange, with effect from 19 December 2016.
Mr. Cheng has retired from the Head of Shipfinance in Asia
of Credit Agricole CIB with effective from 1 May 2014 He
has also retired from the Senior Advisor to Credit Agricole
CIB with effect from 30 June 2016, but remains as a director
and Honorary Chairman of Credit Agricole Asia Shipfinance
Limited. Grandland Shipping Limited, Miricor Enterprises
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Holdings Limited, Credit Agricole CIB and Credit Agricole
Asia Shipfinance Limited are third parties independent of
the Company and connected persons of the Company. Mr.
Cheng has also been appointed by the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region for a two years
term as Member of the Maritime and Port Board (“MPB”) and
Chairman of the Promotion and External Relations Committee
under the MPB with effect from 1 April 2016. Mr. Cheng is a
member of the Working Group on Transportation under the
Hong Kong Economic Development Commission. He is also
the Honorary Treasurer of the Hong Kong Maritime Museum.
In June 2015, Mr. Cheng was conferred the Distinction
of “Chevalier de I'ordre National du Mérite” by the French
Government.

Mr. Lau Ho Kit, Ivan, aged 58, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on
1 March 2011. Mr. Lau is a Certified Public Accountant
(Practising) in Hong Kong, a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. Lau
graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
with a Master's Degree in Professional Accounting. He
has extensive experience in accounting and financial
management. Mr. Lau has been appointed as independent
non-executive director of The Grande Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange,
with effect from 25 July 2016. Mr. Lau is currently an
independent non-executive director of CCT Land Holdings
Limited (formerly known as CCT Tech International Limited),
a company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
He is also an independent non-executive director of Glory
Mark Hi~Tech (Holdings) Limited, a company listed on the
growth enterprise market of the Stock Exchange. The Grande
Holdings Limited, CCT Land Holdings Limited and Glory Mark
Hi-Tech (Holdings) Limited are third parties independent of the
Company and connected persons of the Company.
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Mr. Ong Ka Thai, aged 62, was appointed as Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 17 May 1997. Mr.
Ong is currently the Chairman of various companies including
Ong Pacific (H.K.) Ltd., Ong Pacific Capital Ltd., Ong First
Tradition Holdings Pte. Ltd., Ong Commaodities Pte. Ltd. and
Ong Pacific Pte. Ltd.. He is also the Senior Advisor to KGI
(Hong Kong) Limited and AIGF (ASEAN Industrial Growth
Fund) respectively, a private equity fund that is co-managed
by Mitsubishi Corporation, CIMB Group and Development
Bank of Japan Inc.. These companies are third parties
independent of the Company and connected persons of the
Company. Mr. Ong graduated from the University of California
at Los Angeles with a Bachelor of Arts Degree majoring
in Economics, had served as the CEO for a number of
multinational joint ventures since then. Mr. Ong is currently an
independent non-executive director of Shanghai International
Shanghai Growth Investment Limited, a company listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ong was
previously an independent non-executive director of China
Bohai Bank Limited. Except for the provision of banking
facilities by China Bohai Bank Limited to subsidiaries of the
Group, Shanghai International Shanghai Growth Investment
Limited and China Bohai Bank Limited are third parties
independent of the Company and connected persons of the
Company. Mr. Ong has over 40 years of experience in the
manufacturing, corporate and trade finance, regional equity,
futures and commodities trading, investment banking and
corporate advisory services, as well as direct and private
equity investment.
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Mr. Yang, Victor, aged 71, was appointed as Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 15 April 2008.
Mr. Yang was a founding partner of Boughton Peterson
Yang Anderson, Solicitors, Hong Kong and he is also a
qualified lawyer in Canada and the United Kingdom. Mr.
Yang has over 43 years experience in legal practice primarily
in the areas of corporate finance, commercial law, mergers
and acquisitions. He is presently an Executive Committee
member and an immediate past Governor of the Canadian
Chamber of Commerce, a council member of Haw Par Music
Foundation Limited, a director of the Hong Kong Foundation
for UBC Limited and a member of the University of British
Columbia, Canada, Dean of Law’s Council of Advisors. Mr.
Yang was a past board member of the Canadian International
School of Hong Kong Limited and a past member of the
Major Sports Events Committee of the Home Affairs Bureau,
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. Mr. Yang is also
an independent non-executive director of Playmates Toys
Limited and One Media Group Limited, which are listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Yang remained
as a non-executive director of Lei Shing Hong Limited after
the company privatized in March 2008 and resigned as
an independent non-executive director of Media Chinese
International Limited, China Agri-Industries Holdings Limited
and China Hanking Holdings Limited as of 1 October 2009,
26 August 2015 and 19 January 2016 respectively. China
Agri-Industries Holdings Limited, Playmates Toys Limited, Lei
Shing Hong Limited, Media Chinese International Limited,
One Media Group Limited and China Hanking Holdings
Limited, all are third parties independent of the Company and
connected persons of the Company.

All Directors shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years but shall be eligible for re-election
at the annual general meeting in accordance with the
Company'’s articles of association. For the particulars of
the Directors proposed to be re-elected at the forthcoming
annual general meeting, please refer to the circular
accomypanied with this annual report.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The senior management at the date of this annual report are
as follows:

Mr. Teo Siong Seng Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Chan Kwok Leung Chief Operating Officer
Ms. Chung Pui King, Chief Financial Officer and
Rebecca Company Secretary

Vice President
Vice President
Vice President

Mr. Hsu Yung Ming
Mr. Ren Yu Dong
Mr. Wu Bing Hong

Details of the senior management at the date of this annual
report are as follows:

Mr. Teo Siong Seng, was appointed as President and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company on 1 February 1997, then
appointed as Chairman of the Company on 27 May 2013.
Please refer to the Directors section for details.

Mr. Chan Kwok Leung, was appointed as Executive Vice
President of Marketing and General Manager — Hong Kong
Container Depot and Terminal Operations on 1 July 1994 and
was appointed as Chief Operating Officer of the Company on
1 November 2012. Please refer to the Directors section for
detalls.

Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca, was appointed as Chief
Financial Officer of the Company on 2 February 2013 and
was appointed as Company Secretary of the Company on
10 September 2013. Please refer to the Directors section for
detalls.
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Honorary Chairman, Directors and Senior Management Profile

Mr. Hsu Yung Ming, aged 67, was appointed as Vice
President of the Company since 1 April 2014. Mr. Hsu is the
General Manager of Shanghai Pacific International Container
Co., Ltd.. He is also a director of various subsidiaries of
the Company. Mr. Hsu graduated from Taiwan Dong Wu
University major in Machinery and Business Management.
Mr. Hsu was previously senior management of various
companies in container manufacturing and related business
in Taiwan. Mr. Hsu joined the Company in 2006 acting as
General Manager of Ningbo Pacific Container Co., Ltd..
Mr. Hsu has over 42 years of experience in container
manufacturing and corporate management.

Mr. Ren Yu Dong, aged 55, was appointed as Vice
President of the Company on 1 April 2014. Mr. Ren
is currently the General Manager of Qidong Singamas
Energy Equipment Co., Ltd.. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Ren joined the Company on
1 August 2002. He has more than 35 years of experience in
container manufacturing.

Mr. Wu Bing Hong, aged 44, was appointed as Vice
President of the Company on 1 January 2016. Mr. Wu is in
charge of various divisions of the Group including Marketing
Department in Shanghai, Quality Management Department
and Research & Development Center. He also assists in
overseeing the operation of the Group’s factories. He is also
a director of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Wu
graduated from Guangzhou Ji'nan University with major in
Business Administration and graduated from Hubei University
of Technology with a Bachelor Degree in Administrative
Management. Mr. Wu joined the Group in 2001. He has
over 24 years of experience in container manufacturing and
corporate management.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company has
consistently adopted and complied with the applicable code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) as guidelines to
reinforce our corporate governance principles, except for one
deviation which is disclosed below.

In respect of Code Provision A.2.1, Mr. Teo Siong Seng took
up both roles as the Chairman of the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer are not separated. The Board
considers that this structure has the advantage of a strong
and consistent leadership which is conducive to making and
implementing decisions efficiently and consistently.

Save for the above deviation, none of the Directors is aware
of any information which would reasonably indicate that the
Company is not, or, was not during the year in compliance
with the code provisions of the Code as set out in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange.

The board of directors of the Company (“Board”/“Directors”)
believes that appropriate corporate governance practices are
essential for the Company to enhance its accountability and
transparency so as to achieve a balance of the interests of
shareholders, customers, employees and investment partners
of the Company in all material respects. Accordingly, the
Company aims at maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices.

BE_T—RFT_A=tT—HIFE XA
A BRA BT EERRARRINES
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Key corporate governance principles and corporate AREZEEZBNEE AR MRDEELE M
governance practices of the Company are summarised — #LZA T

below:
Comply (“C”)/
Explain (‘E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #F(7cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2E38 | AKX #e (el PEERER
A DIRECTORS
5%
Al The Board
e

Corporate Governance Principle
ﬁ% B /EI J? E‘J

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of the Company; and is collectively responsible for directing and supervising the
Company s affairs.

ERERAABAGNERATNEME TREEERENEEARER-

The Board should regularly review the contribution required from a Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company, and whether he/she
is spending sufficient time performing them.
EEORTHRNESNAABTRENBNLNER UREBRESRENE R ARRBITRE

A1.1 | Regular board meetings should be held at least C e The Board held four meetings in 2016. The Board would meet more
four times a year involving active participation, frequently as and when required.
either in person or through electronic means of BN T REARATNRER -GERERN EEAAREN
communication, of majority of directors. g5
SEeTHERESEELBRANK  KHBH
%%’Eﬁ% HE ERE TR EEES e The Board currently comprises four executive Directors, two non-executive
Hio Directors and four independent non-executive Directors. No alternative

Director was appointed during 2016.
%%Aiﬁﬂaﬂ%iﬂﬁﬁi$ MEIEHITE S RIME B IFNITEREN -
ZE-RENTEEZEEREEES-

e The Board members for the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to the
date and details of Directors’ attendance at the Board meetings held for the
year ended 31 December 2016 are set out below:
BE_Z—RFT_A=+-BULEEREZRAICESERERES
HEEZ-Z—R"FT-A=t—HIFENESeZHIINT:

Number of
attendance
Name of Directors EERE HERE
Executive Directors HITES
Teo Siong Seng RINE 4/4
(Chairman and (FERERTHAEE)
Chief Executive Officer)
Chan Kwok Leung R B2 4/4
(Chief Operating Officer) (BEEERE)
Teo Tiou Seng REAE 4/4
Chung Pui King, Rebecca BE 4/4
(Chief Financial Officer and (BB
Company Secretary) FRAHE)
Non-executive Directors ~ FEHTES
Kuan Kim Kin R 3/4
Tan Chor Kee BREEE 3/4
Independent BYEHITES
Non-executive Directors
Cheng Fu Kwok, David [elf2ge 4/4
Lau Ho Kit, lvan 2 m 4/4
Ong Ka Thai IXH 4/4
Yang, Victor HEH 4/4
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Comply (‘C")/
Explain (‘E")

Code Ref. | Code Provisions #5([c])/ | Corporate Governance Practices

2E38 | FHKX #@e((El) PEERER

Al e The Directors may attend meetings in person, by conference telephone

(cont’d) or by means of a similar communication equipment or by their alternate

(&) in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association (the “Articles”).

The Company’s constitution documents has been revised during the year,
an updated and consolidated version of the Company’s Articles (both
English and Chinese versions) are available on the websites of the Company
(http://www.singamas.com) and Stock Exchange (http://www.hkexnews.hk).
REARRA 2 BEERMA ([ZREH]) EFAURS EBREFS
FNBEUBASMEE S SHEBEEERALE FA ARAAE
BERXMEEER] BRAR 2 TGS RA (RXRPXR) BF
B 7A N A A (hitp://www.singamas.com) K 7 32 T (http://www.hkexnews.hk)
Bk o

A1.2 | Al directors are given an opportunity to include C e Al Directors are consulted and are welcomed to include any matter in the
matters in the agenda for regular board agenda before the agenda for each regular Board meeting is issued.
meetings. FEEFGTHERATLARN EBAREIMEESRE AR
PREEEREHE RN ERIANEREEE ESPSTIUN- =2
Hezzie-

A13 |- At least 14 days notice for regular board C e The Company gives at least 14 days formal notice before each regular and

meetings. other Board meeting.

E%%%@i%@%u%ﬁ§¢+ﬂiﬁ RERERERREMESESRANZ O THREL EA@A-
- Reasonable notice for other board

meetings.

CREMEEggRREDLAERA-

A1.4 | Minutes of board meetings and meetings of C e The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of the Board,
board committees should be kept by a duly Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Management Committee
appointed secretary of the meeting and should meetings. Another duly appointed secretary is responsible for taking minutes
be open for inspection at any reasonable time on of Remuneration Committee meetings.
reasonable notice by any director. RANEBEERESS ELEES RELESRERZECER
BREAZENGENERRFESSRAET T MENEESgRARHRA BB (EEEA S ERE
ZESNGACE EATMESHHAER
M EAREHEECHEEEENSENK e Board and Board Committee minutes/resolutions are sent to all Directors/
LB/ o Board Committee members within a reasonable time after each Board and

Board Committee meeting.
BREZEREBTZEQEHARE RAERRALESEREE
TEESRHLH RERERLRES HETZE8KE
e Board and Board Committee minutes/resolutions are made available for

inspection by Directors/Board Committee members at the registered office of
the Company.
EREeRABRTREBSSRLE ERIHES HETZEEKE
RARAR M EEEH -

A15 |- Minutes of board meetings and meetings of C e Minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings record contain

board committees should record in sufficient
detail the matters considered and decisions
reached.
ExghEBTZEeNSHas EY
SR LMZEEBERERNRTEIERAF
HH)ELEE

- Draft and final versions of minutes for all

directors to comment and to keep records
within a reasonable time after the board
meeting.
EZEERERE ERAERRALE
BEELEN R kR REREREEE
FRHEEEREER SETRAIE
Hictko M-

sufficient details of matters considered and decisions reached including
concerns raised or dissenting views expressed by the Directors.
ERgRABETZE e @B LBR N LB REIIMERFHZFER
PrIEERE K B RERROOEARBARENREER -

Directors are given an opportunity to comment on draft Board minutes.

ESARENEFEEEBIRREER -

Final version of Board minutes is placed on record within a reasonable time
after the Board meeting.
SEERRERE NEBERRARTSECHNKEERIELE A

BRMEEEXARAT o —E—RFFR
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Comply (‘C”)/
Explain (‘E”)

Code Ref. | Code Provisions 5 ([cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices

2E38 | FHKX (el PEERER

A1.6 |- A procedure agreed by the board to enable C Directors have free access to the legal counsel of the Company and if needed and
directors, upon reasonable request, to upon request, Directors are allowed to seek independent professional advice at
seek independent professional advice the Company’s expenses.
in appropriate circumstances, at the EENBRBARNCREEER NEREREEERT EEASKE
company’s expense. VEXER WARAREINER-

EXEQRZATEREF RESKARE
KA EBEENER TS RBEUEXE
RBREBARXM-

- The board should resolve to provide
separate independent professional advice to
directors to assist them perform their duties
to the company.
EEERFAADIIRESREBUEEE
R UGBt fETEE RN EE-.

A17 |- If a substantial shareholder or a director C e Important matters are usually dealt with by way of written resolutions so that
has a conflict of interest in a matter to be all Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) can note and
considered by the board which the board comment, as appropriate, the matters before approval is granted.
has determined to be material, the matter BEEEE—RUZERERAANER UEL2BES (REBLIENT
should be dealt with by a physical board ER)ENTABTR ITHERRER (MEE) & HiEZFE.
meeting rather than a written resolution.

FETERRAESTESESHRTERN e Director must declare his/her interest in the matters to be passed in the
EEPGFAESERAEANTIRER resolution, if applicable.
FRERENRTESEE2 (MEER BEAWRAREAFHFRB SERRENE (@A) -
RaE) AR
e Material transactions with a substantial shareholder or a Director being

- Independent non-executive directors who, a connected person, in general, would be considered at physical Board
and whose close associates, have no meeting whereat the Directors, including independent non-executive
material interest in the transaction should be Directors, may consider, if appropriate, granting approval in principle for the
present at that board meeting. proposed transactions.

ERXSPAG RAZEREAGRAEX *ﬁﬁ'l%)RT BATERRAESZ BEATRITZEARSERES
FRE BN ITEZRZL B EANE BRRLTE EF (ORBUFRTES)RNEZ LA EZRNEERAT
FggE- JRAI P ERER S -

A.1.8 | Arrange appropriate insurance cover in respect C e The Company has arranged appropriate Directors and Officers Liability
of legal action against the directors. insurance coverage for its Directors and officers.
NEEFERAASEECEETHEEEDN ARAHEREZRABRAELTHBENEERERABREETRE -
RIRZHE

A2 Chairman and Chief Executive
FRERITHAER
Corporate Governance Principle
EERRA
There should be a clear division of responsibilities between the management of the Board and the day-to-day management of business of the
Company to ensure a balance of power and authority.

EERNREEENERNREEENRTRERE Y  URRENTEENHHE-

A21 Roles of chairman and chief executive E e Mr. Teo Siong Seng took up both roles as the Chairman of the Board and
should be separated and should not be the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, the roles of chairman and chief
performed by the same individual. executive officer are not separated. The Board considers that this structure
ITRETHAHNACERED LT E has the advantage of a strong and consistent leadership which is conducive
m—AREET to making and implementing decisions efficiently and consistently.

RINBEERBEEIAAACESSIFRERITREE MEFERE

- Division of responsibilities between the BAOBBERBY D BB B EESRALEEENRCKE
chairman and chief executive should be HEE B AMAFNMELREREB R —BZRE -
clearly established and set out in writing.

TRETHER 2 EREND TRFER
I AZEDH -
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Code Ref,
2250

Code Provisions

FHKX

Comply (‘C")/
Explain (‘E")
B%(7c))/
#@e((El)

Corporate Governance Practices
PEERER

A22

The chairman should ensure that all directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at board
meetings.
ITRERRESSER I MAESEENE
R ESE

C

With the assistance of the executive Directors, the management and the
Company Secretary, the Chairman seeks to ensure that all Directors are
properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings and receive adequate
documents and information about the Group in a timely manner.

EHTER EEBRRAMENGO T ERBNBREBESHR
ZREMESEERRE L FH W RHES ERMABAK MR

Z8°
S

A23

The chairman should be responsible for ensuring
that directors receive, in a timely manner,
adequate information which must be accurate,
clear, complete and reliable.
IREAERRESRBURIZHMNEN M
BRAANT W BEREM KTEr -

The Board papers including supporting analysis and related background
information are normally sent to the Directors at least three working days
before Board meetings.

SRR MEEEEINMTREAEREN —RAEFSERER
AP RZAeRHERES

Company Secretary acts as a co-ordinator to facilitate the communication
between the Directors to ensure that queries raised and clarification sought
by the Directors are dealt with and further supporting information and/or
documentation is provided as appropriate.
DENEBEAGABREEZENER BREFHARBREREE
ZERIERGEE  WEREE—SEEER R R (WEE) -

A24

- The chairman should provide leadership for
the board.
IRENACRESES®-

- The chairman should ensure that the
board works effectively and performs
its responsibilities, and that all key and
appropriate issues are discussed by it in a
timely manner.
ITEERERESSERMEE BRITE
BRE UREHAAEENEEZEE

GHED

- The chairman should be primarily
responsible for drawing up and approving
the agenda for each board meeting.
He should take into account, where
appropriate, any matters proposed by
the other directors for inclusion in the
agenda. The chairman may delegate this
responsibility to a designated director or the
company secretary.
ITRETEAEETUHAEBAESEY
ENEE TEEEBERATHREMES
REMABENEMER TFEAHER
BEERETNESHAAWE-

The Chairman of the Board is an executive Director who is responsible for the
leadership and effective running of the Board.

EEQIFRMTESHE BERELANERELE-

The Chairman of the Board determines the broad strategic direction of the
Group in consultation with the Board and is responsible for the high-level
oversight of management.
BEeTREANESZ SR ASERERR IR YEENREBE
HEBERENTIE

All Directors are consulted as to whether they wish to include any matters in
the agenda. The Chairman of the Board designates the Company Secretary
to draw up the agenda by taking into account the matters, if any, proposed
by the other Directors for inclusion in the agenda.
PRERHEZASDAEMNEFEERNAZERN -EFELFRER
2%§ﬁﬁ§$@@%%%&%%%ﬂﬂ§$@%\$E@Mﬂﬂk
aEIE N °

With the support of the executive Directors and the Company Secretary,
the Chairman ensures that all Directors are properly briefed on all key and
appropriate issues on a timely manner.
EHTEERAANWERD T FREINBRABESHWER AT
FEERBEESE

A25

The chairman should take primary responsibility
for ensuring that good corporate governance
practices and procedures are established.
ITREATERM BRAFMNERFOHEE
ERBHRIIERF -

The chairman of the Board, with the support of the Company Secretary,
takes primary responsibility to establish good corporate governance
practices and procedures of the Company.

SESIRAENTAMENHY TEERUARAIRMEEEREHRIE
FZEEEE

BRMEEECXARAA o —E—RFFR
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steps are taken to provide effective
communication with shareholders and that their
views are communicated to the board as a
whole.

T EERRIEUE S & R B BLAR R A R
g ULERRREATEEIEEAERS

Comply (‘C")/
Explain (‘E”)

Code Ref. | Code Provisions 5 ([cl)/ | Corporate Govenance Practices

2E38 | AKX #((El) PEERER

A26 |- The chairman should encourage all directors C e The Chairman meets with the Directors regularly to discuss various matters

to make a full and active contribution to of the Group and encourages the Directors to express their views concerning
the board’s affairs and take the lead to the management of the Group.
ensure that it acts in the best interests of the ITRAEETREELIRAEETRSEENSERBBDIAESRED
company. HEBEEASENER
ITRESBMEESR IRAEZES
B WS ER BRESSTEFEQ
A& EN
- The chairman should encourage directors
with different views to voice their concerns,
allow sufficient time for discussion of issues
and ensure that board decisions fairly reflect
board consensus.
IEESBHTRAERNERHRELR
FEANEE RTELEERRRKEN
i ARBEREEGHRTE D ERBRE
FEmHtH-

A2.7 | The chairman should at least annually hold C e The Chairman keeps open dialogue with individual independent
meetings with the non-executive directors non-executive Directors to ensure effective communication. In addition
(including independent non-executive directors) to regular Board meetings, the Chairman of the Board met with the
without the executive directors present. non-executive Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors)
TREEVEFEIENTES (RIEBLIER without the presence of the other executive Directors on 26 August 2016.
TEE) BT -ORBRTEFLENE S FREENBIIFRTESESRRIEHFEURREWER -RESE

THEZN EFSTIREFPTES (ARBUFNTES)N_F
—RNENAZT AR ELEEMEGHTERNBER TRTEE
A28 | The chairman should ensure that appropriate C e The Company provides updated information of the Group to all shareholders

when it becomes available and appropriate, through the publication of interim
and annual reports, circulars, notices, media releases or other means in
compliance with the legal and regulatory requirements. The Company has
made such information available on the Company’s website (http://www.
singamas.com) as well as on an independent website provider (http:/www.
irasia.com/listco/hk/singamas). The purpose is to provide our shareholders
an alternative channel to access the Group’s information easily and reach the
potential shareholders globally.
RARBOAMAERRERAEBSETER TEZZERNERELE
BT EPHRERFR B B GHEEINNETEEREE
REMEML - KRR D ZZEE R EH R A LR B H U http:/Avww.,
singamas.com) * A 5 71 = 8k 74 — 8 37 48 it 14 & 73 (http://www. irasia.com/
listco/nk/singamas) * It B B2 5K EBINETRREER S FEA
EENER R BEEB2REERE -

Apart from providing a forum for Directors’ dialogue with shareholders in the
Company’s general meetings during the year, the Company continuously
enhances shareholders’ communications by holding press and analyst
conferences during any reporting period or year. In addition, the Company
has a “Frequently Asked Questions” section in its annual report providing
its shareholders with more clear and concise information that may be of
common concern. Besides, the Company has responded to letters and
telephone enquiries from shareholders and potential shareholders throughout
the year under review.

REIEEEN  BRERRRRFEAS HIRE—(ARREERLFNHT A
ALFEFEEMERTBROREG NELHREXFEEER K
NEVEBITEERANEGE Ut RARAERA [— KRR HH
RERA - FELIRHEFM RERH AR T ARG ERR - 350 AR
AR EEFAERAERESERERR LEERRN R AMEFZEH
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Comply (‘C")/
Explain (‘E")
Code Ref. | Code Provisions Es([c])/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2E38 | FHKX #@((El) PEERER
A28 ¢ Procedures for shareholders to convene a general meeting
(cont'd) Shareholders holding not less than 5% of the total voting rights of all
(&) shareholders of the Company having a right to vote at general meetings

can deposit a written request at 19/F., Rykadan Capital Tower, 135 Hoi Bun
Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company, for the
attention of the Company Secretary. The written request must state the
general nature of the business to be dealt with at the meeting, signed by the
shareholders concerned and may consist of several documents in like form,
each signed by one or more of those shareholders.
BRREBBRRAEZEF
RBRRAGRHRAETLRE%I AR E R BRRFZAENRE - AL EE A
SCRERRBINAMPER - BENEBBEIBREEEAKNE19E
REAALINER - ZEAFRERNGE RSB —RILE -
WHEREBERREZRATBEZMERHEN 8Hh bl —E5%
A FRRREE -

Procedures for putting forward proposals at Annual General Meeting
(“AGM”)

Shareholders holding not less than 2.5% of the total voting rights of all
shareholders having at the date of the request the right to vote at the AGM;
or not less than 50 shareholders holding shares in the Company who have
a right to vote at the resolution of the AGM can submit a written request to
move a resolution at the AGM. The written request must state the resolution,
signed by all the shareholders concerned and may consist of several
documents in like form (which between them contain the signatures of all
the shareholders concerned). The written request must be deposited at
19/F., Rykadan Capital Tower, 135 Hoi Bun Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong, the
registered office of the Company, for the attention of the Company Secretary
not less than six weeks before the meeting to which it relates or if later, the
time at which notice is given of that meeting. Shareholders holding not less
than 2.5% of the total voting rights of all shareholders having a relevant
right to vote, or at least 50 shareholders who have a relevant right to vote,
may request the Company to circulate, to shareholders of the Company
entitled to receive notice of a general meeting, a statement of not more
than 1,000 words with respect to (a) a matter mentioned in a proposed
resolution to be dealt with at that meeting, or (b) other business to be dealt
with at that meeting. The request must be deposited at 19/F, Rykadan
Capital Tower, 135 Hoi Bun Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered
office of the Company, identify the statement to be circulated, signed by all
the shareholders concerned and be received by the Company not less than
seven days before the meeting to which it relates.

RBERBFAE [RRAFAS)REEZEZER
ATATAMARRRZEEFAERRAFAG LBHEAAR
ZaRERLOASMHELAIRRRAFAE ERR BTPRAER
RBFRFEN25% : AP RE0BIFAARRRIBARRENRR % E
He AR ZAZR AR BERRREZRTEZHERX A
K (BBEEREARRZZNGFRE) ZEAAKATERAANT
MrER  BBNEGEEIBREEEAKNEINE BREFARAWE
W WEENDRITFERRREFRGRITZ N2 A (N8R ) &
MR B F RS FEEZB R AT PR EEHBREE
BIRR 7 BIORTER2.5% : AP D RE0BFA AR AR RERN KRR
AIZRARNRRARREIREAGBE 2 BREM—H % 51,0005
MR E  NABREAFEZRRAS CRENERIE LA RZML
MEE ROEMEGEZRRAE FRENER HERFFELR
Az aMFEREENEEBEISRAEEAKNE19E FIRE TEH
2Bt TR REBRREE  ZERFRIORNERERSTATR
RERRA]

BRMEEEXARAT o —E—RFFR
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Code Ref.
234

Code Provisions

FRKX

Comply (‘C")/
Explain (‘E”)
B¥(7c))/
#E(E))

Corporate Governance Practices
PEERER

A2.8
(cont'd)
()

Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to the
Company’s share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited. Shareholders and the investment community may at any time make
a request for the Company’s information to the extent that such information
is publicly available. Shareholders may also refer to the contacts under
“Investor Relations” section in the Company’s website (http:/Avww.singamas.
com) for enquiries. Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board.
All enquiries shall be in writing and sent by post to the registered office of the
Company or by e-mail to info@singamas.com for attention of the Company
Secretary.

BRRRMH

BREEOADARDBLELRE - BEFREFELERAA REE
BERE R RRRRBATTRERERRBREMALRRZE RH
BB R T AR R R A F] A8 U (httpy/vww.singamas.com) [ 1 &
ERR] NSRS RRTBENESERNER FAS
HENEBMEAEL TBRATARANERBFEEAA AT ERS

B # Zinfo@singamas.com ©

The chairman should promote a culture of
openness and debate by facilitating the effective
contribution of non-executive directors in
particular and ensuring constructive relations
between executive and non-executive directors.
TREERENR BERIWOL REES
(BRIRIFRTES) HEESELENER
%ﬁﬁ%féiﬂﬁ%%ﬁ?F%ﬂﬁ%%ZFaﬁ%&%%%&’\'?ﬁ

The Chairman promotes a culture of openness and actively encourages
Directors with different views to voice their opinion and be fully engaged in
the Board’s affairs so as to contribute to the Board's functions.
IRRERAX UEEHEFTRAARNEZREER UREE
SLEEEENEE UNHESSNBELER

Effective contribution of non-executive Directors and communication
between executive and non-executive Directors are achieved through
discussions in Board meetings, various Board committee meetings and other
Board activities/programmes.

RENEZORE RESZEQRARANFSRED FHENR
%’&EﬁE%%%F%ﬂﬁ%%ﬁ’ﬂﬁ&ﬂlé%ﬁ&%ﬂﬁ%?ﬁi#%ﬂﬁiizF'EﬂE(\Ji%
Lo

A3

Board composition
EFEAX

Corporate Governance Principle
®EERRA

The Board should have a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business and
should include a balanced composition of executive and non-executive Directors so that independent judgement can effectively be exercised.

EXeRBREATEBMABEEMET & CRESENEHEAR EETHTESRIMTESNESEZERFIE  AEER

B RO E BT I -

Independent non-executive directors should be
identified in all corporate communications that
disclose the names of directors.
NEFMBEAEEHAMDRBAT EEH
AEUENITES SN

C

The composition of the Board, by category and position of Directors
including the names of the Chairman, the executive Directors, the
non-executive Directors and the independent non-executive Directors, is
disclosed in all corporate communications.
EMEARBATERESAGINES (BEEE RTEF FRTE
ENBUFNTER) REEESNMENK-

The Board consists of a total of ten Directors, comprising four
executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and four independent
non-executive Directors. More than one-third of the Board are independent
non-executive Directors of which more than one have appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise. Details of the composition of the Board are set out on page 18.
ERgd I UESEN BRONNTES MUFRTESZ LIS
UFHTERSR=H —EERREABYFNTES S RB
—fIBUFNTEEABEEZIEER KABEEN SRS
ERER - ERGENFEIHNFEIBE

The Company maintains on its corporate website and on the Stock
Exchange’s website an updated list of Directors identifying their roles and
functions and whether they are independent non-executive Directors.
ARBEHPEB RSB FRAESTNESENELE 15|
REAGTR ALIAEREEFNTES-

The Directors’ biographical information and the relationships among the
pirectors are set out on pages 18to \2\4;*
BEEAEHREEHNBEIFNFIBEE24E -
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A3.2 | The company should maintain on its website and C e The updated list of Directors has been posted at the websites of the
on the Stock Exchange website an updated list Company and Stock Exchange, identifying their respective roles and
of its directors identifying their role and function functions, and whether they are independent non-executive Directors.
and whether they are independent non-executive BN EELECEERNAR R RBR MBI WHHAELAE KL
directors. RAETEAERE BN TES
D EETEE B KB R AL T kIR &

FMEFSKERE WHIBHEAGMBL e The Company has also posted on its website and the website of Stock

AREREREBEVINTES Exchange the Terms of Reference of its Board Committees to enable
the shareholders to understand the roles played by those independent
non-executive Directors who serve on the relevant Board Committees.
ARBNMPEBUERERARUEHESTETZSSBRESE BR
E%T%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁEﬁ%%%@ﬁ?éé@&E%%EZ%

Ad Appointments, re-election and removal
R BERER
Corporate Governance Principle
rEERRA
There should be a formal, considered and transparent procedure for the appointment of new Directors and plans in place for orderly succession for
appointments. All Directors should be subject to re-election at regular intervals.

FEFZARFEIN AREZEVAEZAE TERTERFNESETHE -MEESTHEERE TREETER.

A4.1 | Non-executive directors should be appointed for C e According to the service agreements entered into between each of the
a specific term, subject to re-election. non-executive Director or independent non-executive Director and the
FRTESHNEIRARETH YWERZSE Company, the term of appointment is generally for one year but subject to
FTE&R retirement and shall be eligible for re-election at AGM under the Articles.

BIEEIFRITESSE L IFRITE T RADE R 2 IR et E8—
BA—F HEREERART ARARAZEREAFAE LREE
Al EEE

A42 |- Al directors appointed to fill a casual C e Under the Articles, at each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time being

vacancy should be subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting
after appointment.

PR RIAHERR ZRMERENESEE
E%é{ﬂés’ﬂ BERBRRAE FEIRFE
g,

- Every director, including those appointed
for a specific term, should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every
three years.

BrEZ (DREREEAHNES)ER
mRE ZPEB=F R

shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement at an AGM at least once every three years but shall be eligible
for re-election.

REERMA NEERREFAE L ERA/M=SIZ —NESHA
WERT HEREFEZPE=FRREAFAE LRE—K B
HEBRERBE-

Under the Articles, the Board may from time to time appoint a Director either
to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Any such new Director
shall hold office until the next following general meeting of the Company (in
the case of filing a casual vacancy) or until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company (in the case of an addition to the Board) and shall
then be eligible for re-election at the same general meeting.

BEZEREN EFGA TREAEFNERBRERINVETESE
KB - FEEREEREARA TARRAS (WEEHER )k
ARETREBRREAFRE (MBEFEEEKRE) BRI TEERRE—
REAG LEEEE.

Review of the Board composition is made regularly to ensure that it has a
balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate for the requirements
of the business of the Company.
ARREHENESTG VAN BREZSHABRSARAIEBMAS
ER TEREHR2 ALEK-

The Company has published the procedures for shareholders to propose a
person for election as a Director on its website.

BRAERENALZ2NESERZERF CEHNALEHIEA-

BRMEEEXARAA o —E—RFFR
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A43 |- If an independent non-executive director C e Mr. Ong Ka Thai and Mr. Yang, Victor have served the Company for more than
serves more than 9 years, his further 9 years. Pursuant to article 92 of the Articles, Mr. Ong Ka Thai shall retire from
appointment should be subject to a office at the forthcoming AGM, however, he will not offer himself for re-election.
separate resolution to be approved by Mr. Yang, Victor was subject to retirement by rotation and appointed by a
shareholders. separate resolution in the Company’s AGM. Each independent non-executive
EEVNTESEADBNF HRS Director had made a confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
BECENEL ISR AARESHE the Listing Rules.
e FRBFEERGEREENRRREEL BNE - RIEERAAIFER2HE
IRFAREBRDBROINRRAFAG LRE - BLrEeBERET 5
- The papers to shareholders accompanying ERAERARBIZRRAFAE LARRERI B RERERF-
that resolution should include the BBV FENTESYOIRR TR ES IR E R B L e
reasons why the board believes he is still Ao
independent and should be re-elected.
BEMNRORER — RGBS - & e The Company had expressed the view in its circular that Mr. Yang, Victor
HEESLAURBZEATNEBEILA had met the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
TREESENREA - Rules and was independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.
The re-election of Mr. Yang, Victor who has served on the Board for more
than nine years is subject to (1) a separate resolution to be approved
by Shareholders at the AGM; and (2) further information being given to
Shareholders together with the notice of AGM regarding the reasons why
the Board believes the relevant Director is still independent and should be
re-elected.
RARE BN RBISERL A DB FTRAIE3.136 . B s
VIREZIESIGNBEUA L RESGETBRBNENGEALEN
BEE() ARFERRAFAS BB B DRERIE Rk QES
LRREAFEERENRN R TRRBNESEHCEREZNES
ATREESEENRANE—FSER
e The Company’s circular of its AGM contained detailed information on
re-election of Directors, including detailed biographies, interests, and (where
appropriate) independence of all Directors standing for re-election.
ARRREAFASBANAEREENFRER  OERMEERER
BMBEENFRER Rk (WER) Bt
Ab Nomination Committee
REZE®
Corporate Governance Principle
PEERRA
In carrying out its responsibilities, the nomination committee should give adequate consideration to the principles under Sections A.3 and A.4 in the
Code.
REZEGRTRAR AXHZECEERTAUFEAIRALLAKRE -
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Ab.1- |- The company should establish a nomination C e The Board has established the Nomination Committee on 27 March 2012 for
Ab4 committee which is chaired by the chairman nominating potential candidates for directorship, reviewing the nomination of

of the board or an independent non-executive
director and comprises a majority of
independent non-executive directors.
NEERIREEEE HEFGERL
BT EREE LR KEENEL
FRTESEERZH-

The nomination committee should be
established with specific written terms of
reference which deal clearly with its authority
and duties.
NEEEERIREZE S ARNBES
B BRNBEREMAL-

It should perform the following duties:
REZEQERTATAL:

(@ review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the
board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed
changes to the board to complement
the company’s corporate strategy;
ELEFRABFEGORE  ABR
WA (BFERE MR AR FE) -
WA AR A AR RBmMEHES
SIEMMEE RS

(o) identify individuals suitably qualified to
become board members and select
or make recommendations to the
board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships;
MEABRBEERAETEENA
TOWHEREEBEATHAEESSK
FUME=GRHEER:

(c) assess the independence of
independent non-executive directors;

and
BV ERTESHB UM &

(d make recommendations to the board
on the appointment or re-appointment
of directors and succession planning
for directors, in particular the chairman
and the chief executive.
HEEZEAENZEURES (L
HRFRRITHAR) BEEmE
FERHER

Directors, assessing the independence of each independent non-executive
Director and making recommendations to the Board on such appointments.
The full terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on the
Stock Exchange’s website (http://www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company’s
website (http://www.singamas.com).
AARBER-ZE——F=RA-TtARURELEZEGHIRELAEY
MEEAR BRERENER AREGRBEUIFENTERNBE LR
RERZINESTSRLEA FHREZEOREEENFEFEE
78 2 FTA8 A (http:/Awww. hkexnews. hk) & 78 22 7] 48 1 (http:/Awww.singamas.
com) ©

The current members of the Nomination Committee include one executive
Director being the Chairman of the Board, namely, Mr. Teo Siong Seng
(Chairman) and two independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lau
Ho Kit, lvan and Mr. Ong Ka Thal.
REZEEHEREBE—RRTESRESETF - RINBEE (X
B)RMABELIFNTES - A REERER R L

The Chairman of the Nomination Committee reports the findings and
recommendations to the Board after each meeting.
BREAR RAZEGIRCNESGERAERIEZS

In 2016, the Nomination Committee met once and attendance of individual
members at Nomination Committee meeting in the year is summarized
below:

RZZ—RF REZEEHE X HERKEMEERAEEHRNT :

Number of

Attendance

Committee members ZEERE HERE
Teo Siong Seng (Chairman) ~ RIAE (/&) 11
Lau Ho Kit, lvan BRI il
Ong Ka Thai €3 1/1

The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge
its duties. The Nomination Committee is accountable to the Board and
minutes of meetings/resolutions are circulated to the Board for information.
REZEGVEHGARERUETERE REZEGENESER
BEREGHLE  RAEARRESEERN-

The following is a summary of the work of the Nomination Committee during
the year under review:

EOBEFEAN RREBENTEMRNT

(@ made recommendations to the Board and determined the policy on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships, the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and assessed independence of
independent non-executive Directors;
ARKERENIEZI AL ZAERENZLESNEFSRME
B IREBR AR B FITES 2 BT

(o) reviewed the policy of diversity of the Board; and

R EEEMBZTIHE &

(c) reviewed the size, structure and diversity of the Board, and assessed the
balance of skills and experience of the Board as expedient with diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the business of the

Company.
R EFEMAZ RERZ T VA HESSRAEMLERNY

iy RBHZTAEE REMRARRIMERGERK

BRMEEEXARAT o —E—RFFR
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Ab.1- |- The nomination committee should make e Al new appointments and re-appointments of Directors are based on the
Ab4 available its terms of reference explaining following criteria:
(cont’d) its role and the authority delegated to it by EEEMNHZARBEZERBRENTEHREES:
(&) the board by including them on the Stock
Exchange website and the company’s - Integrity
website. Mis
REZBQEEE MM R ARIE
NHREBESRE RREAGILESE - Independent mindedness
ERTHENES- BIUMER
- The company should provide the - Possession of core competencies that meet the current needs of the
nomination committee sufficient resources Company and the ability to complement the skills and competencies of
to perform its duties. Where necessary, the existing Directors
the nomination committee should seek BEEENBLFEARARRTE TEAAREESNRY
independent professional advice, at HnE
the company’s expense, to perform its
responsibilities. - Readiness to commit time and effort to carry out duties and
AAEMRERZEERETTERUNE responsibilities effectively
THRBE -RELZEQBTBERNES FAE M HEEREN WA B EERE RS
2 ESRBUZEER BRAHLAY
e - A good track record of experience at a senior level in corporations/
organisations
HERE/ EELAREISAEEENATRITLR
- Financial knowledge
AERE FHER
A5 | Where the board proposes a resolution to elect C o Please refer to A.4.3 above for the details.
an individual as an independent non-executive FHEFE2H LN EALIE.
director at the general meeting, it should set out
in the circular to shareholders and/or explanatory
statement accompanying the notice of the
relevant general meeting why they believe he
should be elected and the reasons why they
consider him to be independent.
REFRHRBRREAG LREFAREFEA
TRABUFNTES FRRRASEEME
P B B RR SR B J S 58 B B 1 A - B
EEERREETZEATHEHRU RO
REBATBEEIATHREA-
Ab.6 | The nomination committee (or the board) C e The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy effective from 1 September
should have a policy concerning diversity of 2013 (“Policy”), details of which are summarised as follows:
board members, and should disclose the policy BT =-FNA—BREMESSNE LR ([BR]) -
or a summary of the policy in the Corporate HEFBEHMmT:
Governance Report.
REZES (NESS)EITBIRESTEN (8) In considering the Board’s composition, a wider range of perspectives
BETUEMEE YR CEERREAREL including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
BRABERBE - background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service will be duly considered in the selection of candidates.
IEREAGRBESGNER B2 EBRGE T EEELE 2
ERRPMER - Fo X RHEESR FEER e MHARS
FR-
(o) All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria.
MEESNZEEUAAES RRA WARBIZEZ BIREA
() To ensure the effectiveness of the Policy, the Nomination Committee will
review, discuss any revisions that may be required, and recommend any
such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.
REZE GG TR 5w A A8 ZOER]  ARERTT
R TEZEEeERMATNZESET-
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A6 Responsibilities of directors
EEREME
Corporate Governance Principle
EERRA
Every Director must always know his responsibilities as a Director of the Company and its conduct, business activities and development.
BREZERZIBRERAARNESNRE URARNLEAN EHEHRER-

AB.1 | Every newly appointed director of the company C e On appointment, new Directors are given a comprehensive briefing and
should receive a comprehensive, formal and related materials of the Group’s business activities, induction into their
tailored induction on appointment. Subsequently responsibilities and duties, and other regulatory requirements.
he should receive any briefing and professional MESRZARKBEY E2EARREHEERN ETRESEEKG
development necessary to ensure that he has M EBEFEARBEEN REMEEEK.
a proper understanding of the company’s
operations and business and is fully aware of e Al Directors, including non-executive Directors, are regularly provided with
his responsibilities under statute and common comprehensive reports on the management’s strategic plans, updates on
law, the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory lines of business, financial information, etc.
requirements and the company’s business and FEES (REFRTES) e THECEERERBEARN2E MY
governance policies. BE OERSHEBER MBERS.
BRFZENESHREIZARESGEH.
EXREAEMBAOBEEN LRBTEES e The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all Directors updated on
FImmNBREEER URROMAEQFN Listing Rules and other applicable statutory requirements.
BIERERYERENER URTR2MER NEMELERRABESNEER EMRAIREMEEERNEHE
FIERRE®RE EHRA AR REME e
EREURDANESRERBE THERE

AB8.2 | The functions of non-executive directors include: C e Non-executive Directors are well aware of their functions and have been

FRMTEENRRERE:

- bring independent judgement on issues of
strategy, policy, performance, accountability,
resources, key appointments and standards
of conduct at board meetings;
SEELRER EHNKRE B RF
R BB ER FERERIRTEL
ZEE L REBINER:

- take the lead on potential conflicts of
interests arise;
EHREEN G EHREEEERSI G
A

- serve on the audit, remuneration,
nomination and other governance
committees, if invited; and
ERLIERZES FHEE] R4

ZEENAMERREGNRE K

- scrutinise the company’s performance
in achieving agreed corporate goals and
objectives, and monitoring performance
reporting.
HHBBEARINKRERTEIREN B
%E BANEH WERERNARANE
Ho

actively performing them. On an on-going basis, Directors review with

management in respect of the Group’s strategic development and direction,

emerging risks and opportunities available to the Group.

FRTERFENBH AR NG RITHER - EFENEIRE

@#iiﬁﬁ%f%%@ﬁ% FREIER KM ARAEE R EHRMNE
Re .
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PEERER

AB.3

Every director should ensure that he can give
sufficient time and attention to the company’s
affairs and should not accept the appointment if
he cannot do so.
BEREREERT L 208 Kb LA 2
NANES BATEEREE-

C

There is satisfactory attendance at Board meetings during the year. Please
refer to A.1.1 above for the attendance records.

FAREFEERCHERS ANE - HETHFER EXEA1E-

All Directors have in-depth industry knowledge and established track record,
whose interests are aligned with that of the Company. Every Director has
given sufficient time and attention to the Company’s affairs. The independent
non-executive Directors have brought a wide spectrum of their extensive
knowledge and experience in their respective business undertakings to the
Board for the fullest performance of its functions.
SRESHEBRENTENER DB MEELE RENFIREAR
DENFIR R BRESLHADNE] 2 BB LR M RIEH B
UFRTERMABNRESEEBRENBZEENARER BY
SRR HBETHBAE-

A64

Board should establish written guidelines no
less exacting than the Model Code for relevant
employees.

SRR EBESRTERDES HEIINA
JEZ L IRETR TSR

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (‘Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions.

ANEE RN LRSI E N EHETAEERITERZSHNIE
Al (MREA) AR RAIREENEFRHTRAFA -

Having made specific enquiry of the Directors, all of the Directors have
complied with, for any part of the accounting period covered by this report,
the required standard as set out in the Model Code.
ARAMMBEEELETENE MBESEAREMEIEZTH
2 (E 5 - B B PRSP RIFTIR e =R Al -

Written guidelines no less exacting than the Model Code relating to securities
transactions for relevant employees are set out in the “Code for Securities
Transactions by Relevant Employees” of the Company.
ﬁfﬂﬂﬁ@éﬁ?%%Z%ﬁ%%'%%%QEE%E?MWHZE
FEHTE o

AB5

All directors should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure
that their contribution to the board remains
informed and relevant. The company should be
responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the
roles, functions and duties of a listed company
director.
PMAERR2EFETEARR BRI EHMA
MBRRRE DRRHEETABIEAAR
DEMBHNER THESSELER - AA)E
BELHSENSZITRHABLE URE
DEELTRAREENAR BREREE-

As part of an ongoing process of directors’ training, the Directors are
updated with the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements from time to time to ensure compliance
of the same by all Directors. All Directors are encouraged to attend external
forums or training courses on relevant topics which may count towards
continuous professional development training.
ERHESHERI I EFETRENAMA TR REME
REERECEMERERN UBEREEESETAEEMRTE - AATH
BEBESHEIARNEARE BEASIIBIRE ERBFERE
BREEI -

Pursuant to the Code, Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
For the year ended 31 December 2016, all Directors namely, Mr. Teo Siong
Seng, Mr. Chan Kwok Leung, Mr. Teo Tiou Seng, Ms. Chung Pui King,
Rebecca, Mr. Kuan Kim Kin, Mr. Tan Chor Kee, Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David,
Mr. Lau Ho Kit, lvan, Mr. Ong Ka Thai and Mr. Yang, Victor had confirmed
that they had complied with the code provision A.6.5 of the Code during the
year ended 31 December 2016 by participating in appropriate continuous
professional development activities either by attending training courses or
by reading materials relevant to the Company’s business or to the Directors
duties and responsibilities. During the year, the Company had arranged
seminars to develop and refresh the Directors’ knowledge and skils.
BIESPR| ERELMEBFEFEUE BRI EINE MG LA AR
REEBEABLZEENRDEMBENBEATHESSEL AR B2
T RFTZAZTHIFE 2REF (DERDLBLE RER
K RPELELE BMRLE BRELE REELE BHELE.
BRI A TREFFERIGEREE) TR BRLFEIRIZEXH
BEANAEBIESRELBIABRENEIA2AEEHERSE
ZRBIEDEEN TR TREEASEZRE - FA ARFE
REFRTHIEG UBRNIENES 2 MB N REE -
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A6.6

Each director should disclose to the company
at the time of his appointment, and in a timely
manner for any change, the number and
nature of offices held in public companies or
organisations and other significant commitments.
The identity of the public companies or
organisations and an indication of the time
involved should also be disclosed. The board
should determine for itself how frequently this
disclosure should be made.
BREEENEXZARAARBRBERAR
NESAABEERANSE RITEAREME
RAEHE - B85 7B (E1r 2 8 e A 4R 55 - Ut oh
TRREH BE TS % B9 A TR X R Sk AR B ) 2 T DA %
BRERIERMBBMIRNER -EX 8k
BITREMRRZ AEH—AHRE -

C

The Directors have disclosed to the Company at the time of their
appointment and at least once a year thereafter the number and nature
of offices held in public companies or organisations and other significant
oommitments, identifying the publio Companies or organisations involved

T&@e#e%um@e&eg M&Em%ﬁ%ﬁilki %“
FUNSIEEF -t =T

AB.7

Independent non-executive directors and
other non-executive directors, as equal board
members, should give the board and any
committees on which they serve the benefit of
their skills, expertise and varied backgrounds
and qualifications through regular attendance
and active participation. They should also attend
general meetings and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders.
BUSERITESE N EAMIEMTEREREAM
ESERARASWNNESENE & E%ﬁf
EESRAABEAZAGHANEES
HEIEHE2 R A E R i%ﬂ%&$
Hmhﬁﬁéﬂﬁﬁaﬁ'm 00 FE AR
g HARRRNERBELEN TR

There is satisfactory attendance at Board meetings, Board Committee
meetings, the meetings between the Chairman and the non-executive
Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors) and the general
meeting during the year. Please refer to A.1.1, A2.7, A5.1-5.4,B.1.2, C.3.1
and E.1.2 above for details.

FANREFLER EFQE 28902 TREFNTES (BB
UFBMITER)ERMRRAGCHBEEASARE FEFL2H X
$A11 A27 A51-54.-B12 C31RE1.2TH-

Extent of participation and contribution should be viewed both quantitatively
and qualitatively.

SREB R EMOEEELHSRESHABEENE -

A6.8

Independent non-executive directors and
other non-executive directors should make
a positive contribution to the development of
the company’s strategy and policies through
independent, constructive and informed
comments.
BIUFFRITE S NEMIEMITERRSE Bt
B ERRUERERBENERANARER
B RMERER EHE R -

Please refer to A.6.7 above.
ELH EXEABTE

BRMEEEXARAT o —E—RFFR
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A7 Supply of and access to information
BRRHERER
Corporate Governance Principle
EERRA
Directors should be provided in a timely manner with appropriate information in the form and quality to enable them to make an informed decision
and perform their duties and responsibilities.
ERREEREEENEREN AP ARZEARESZHENEERAMERNER TMELARTE WaABITEBRERE T
A71 |- Send agenda and full board papers to all C e Board/Board Committee papers are circulated not less than three working
directors at least 3 days before regular days before the regular Board/Board Committee meetings to enable the
board or board committee meetings. Directors/Board Committee members to make informed decisions on
ExerHeRNB R e R E matters to be raised at the Board/Board Committee meetings.
PHRERREBES WELERTE AHRRES HETZEeKERESE HETZER8R HREY
FEYHETZESRRABN=XAIX TREEZBEADEMUELRAE GRENHINESS HETZE
e ETHERBRAT IR AL EARRES HETZEGNE -
A72 |- Management has an obligation to supply C e The Company Secretary who is also the Chief Financial Officer of the
the board and its committees with adequate Company attends all regular Board meetings to advise on corporate
and reliable information in a timely manner governance, statutory compliance, and accounting and financial matters, as
to enable it to make informed decisions. appropriate.
ERBRELMEFENABETZEER ARBZARMEREFUBRELRMAEESTHER UsthE
MR RAI SR ER NP EZEH TR ROEERGTENEEEENESTREER (MEE)
EERAEEERMER TELRTE
e The Directors have separate and independent access to the Company’s
- The board and individual directors should senior management to keep themselves abreast of business activities,
have separate and independent access financial performance, internal audit and internal control progress in the
to the company’s senior management for Group.
making further enquiries where necessary. ERUATRBUHEBAARNSREEAR U2 RS THALE
EEeREREERASTHEEAASR MERER BBRE  NABEZ LA EERE -
EEABREIRE IWEREEHEL
—$E#o
A7.3 |- Al directors are entitled to have access to C e Board papers and minutes are made available for inspection by Directors
board papers and related materials. and committee members. Senior management of the Company has taken
FEEEAREHESE T RIEHE appropriate steps to respond promptly and fully to any queries raised by
e Directors.
EEREZEENENEHESENHREFELE -EAEEREME
— Queries raised by directors should receive a BREEEABSRIEE PEURRIEL 2EA L E -
prompt and full response, if possible.
HREZREOME DRIBERE
iR % 2 T Y 1 FE
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B REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND BOARD EVALUATION
EEREEERAENFHIRESTS IR
B.1 The level and make-up of remuneration and disclosure
B e B BB 0 KT AR K
Corporate Governance Principle
REERRA
The Company should disclose its Director’s remuneration policy and other remuneration related matters. The procedure for setting policy on
executive Directors’ remuneration and all Directors’ remuneration packages should be formal and transparent.
NEERBEESMEeBRRAMEFMEENEE: BRECRMAERHENER U RN TEEMe R2BEFHNFBN
B
B.1.1 | The remuneration committee should consult C e The Remuneration Committee has consulted the Chairman about proposals
the chairman and/or chief executive about relating to the remuneration packages and other human resources issues
their remuneration proposals for other of the Directors and senior management, including but not limited to
executive directors and should have access to succession plan and key personnel movements as well as policies for
independent professional advice if necessary. recruiting and retaining qualified personnel.
FMZ B eEREMRITEENEMEREN FMZBECHEZTRREEEAB ZHMRARAMANEREE
IRE/STBEH - WEFE FTHMEES (BEETRINMET S ERAFEEY URABRREAERATH
[ERISFBIEEER - R)HBRAEFNER -
e The emoluments of Directors and Senior Management have been
determined with reference to the skills, knowledge, involvement in the
Company’s affairs and their individual performance, and to the profitability of
the Company and prevailing market conditions during the year.
ARAlZEZREREBAEMEERBERN AL A H - MHKTER
SARRREHIRERKR WERFNARFZ BIARRHIHE
BEifmEE -
B.12 |The remuneration committee’s terms of C e The Board has established Remuneration Committee to make

reference should include:

FHEEeERESE I mERR:

- recommend to the board on the company’s
policy and structure for all directors” and
senior management remuneration and
on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy;
RAREFREAERABNREEHHEK
RN R ERTAERAENE
FHETFMBR mEFeRbES:

- review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to
the board’s corporate goals and objectives;
FREESEGMI R R A EmEN R
HEEIR BN H RS

- either to determine, with delegated
responsibility, or to make recommendations
to the board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive directors and senior

recommendations on the Company’s remuneration policy and structure for
all remuneration of Directors and senior management. No Director and senior
management can determine his own remuneration.
EEEERUFMZSHEUREHARAESERREEEASNEH
BRREEEH -FERSEEEASHTEETLEANTH-

e The current members of the Remuneration Committee include two
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yang, Victor (Chairman)
and Mr. Ong Ka Thai, and a non-executive Director, namely, Mr. Kuan Kim
Kin.

TMZEEREREQEMUBLIFNTES HRAGERLE (£
BIRERFEE UR—IFRTES - AR E-

e The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee reports the findings and
recommendations to the Board after each meeting.
BRgHEE FTHEEGLIRGNESTGERABRES-

e In 2016, the Remuneration Committee met two times and attendance of
individual members at Remuneration Committee meetings in the year is
summarised below:
?:?—/‘Ti’%ﬁ%%é@@ﬁéﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%@é@f%‘J&Eﬁﬂ@ﬂjﬁméﬂz
SEPINE

management; Number of

UTMEz— BREFSEREMT BEE . Attendance

RFITEER S REEABNHEEE Committee members ZEERE HERE
dMERERFERNNTEZRSRER , ‘ .

ABHEEE Yang, Victor (Chairman) BER(LE) 2/2

Ong Ka Thai FRE 2/2

Kuan Kim Kin R 2/2

BMEECERRAR « —T—X~FFRH
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(%) MIEITEFOHHRESSREES:

- consider salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and
responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the group;
ZRERA RS ATRE AR RS
RO 3 DA I 5% B 0 A B 0 8 P MR 14

- review and approve compensation
payable on loss or termination of office or
appointment;

B R B R SR B E A
XRTHERE

- review and approve compensation
arrangements relating to dismissal or
removal of directors for misconduct; and
R RAERERTRAEMRERER
BHEZMPRNBETHE: &

- ensure that no director or any of his
associates is involved in deciding his own

remuneration.
BREMESFHEEMBBEATGL2HE
TEEARS

Comply (‘C")/
Explain (‘E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions E5(fc])/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2E38 | FHKX #((El) PEERER
B1.2 |- recommend to the board on the e The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
(cont'd) remuneration of non-executive directors; discharge its duties. The Remuneration Committee is accountable to the

Board and minutes of meetings are circulated to the Board for information.
FHEE e ERUTRERNEITERE -FNEEQANESER
BENHESRLBARREREERM-

The following is a summary of the work of the Remuneration Committee
during the year under review:

EOBEFEN HFMEB SN TERMRINT -

(@ reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
Directors’ fees for the financial year of 2016;
ER_T-AFUBRFECESHNERAEFERIFHENER:

(o) reviewed and approved the salary adjustment of the Company’s
executive Directors and senior management staff;

FEHRIEARFMTESRSEEEARNEHEE:

(c) reviewed and approved gratuity granted to retired senior management;
and

EHRIERKSEERABNARHE TR Rk

(d) reviewed and approved the Company’s annual performance-based
bonus policy.
EHRBARRARFERE  HEBHK-

The Remuneration Committee is delegated to be responsible for determining
the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments, including any compensation payable for loss or termination of
their office or appointment, to make recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration of non-executive Directors and to consider salaries paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group.

FZE M KRGEN AREEEENNTEERSEER
ABMEBES BEFEEMNG BRI REESE (BERANK
BRIFRBSTENRE) THIFRTESNFHNERTSRERS
Z B R R AT AV ET B - 78T H A R R R B A T SR B R B A B
& A 1t o

Details of each Director's remuneration and any remuneration payable to
members of senior management for the year under review are set out on
pages 211 to 212 and page 272 of this annual report.

REEFEN FRBEEZREMNAINTEEERASK BN
BEHNRERF21MEEHE2128 RE2728 -
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B.1.3 | The remuneration committee should make C e The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are posted on the
available its terms of reference, explaining its role websites of the Company and Stock Exchange.
and the authority delegated to it by the board by YMZEEg v BESEREHNAA T RBZ AL
including them on the Stock Exchange website
and the company’s website. e The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include making
HMZ B g REB ARG KA R A AR recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for
HEREHGE MELACKREESTSBRNE the remuneration of Directors and the management, and determining with
e delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of all executive Directors

and the management and to make recommendation to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive Directors with reference to the corporate
goals and objectives of the Board resolved from time to time.

SHEE G X ERERENARRAEEREEB 2 HFMECE REER
EESEHES Y2RESETHRAZOCEBER T EERT
BOEAT ETENNITEZRSREEAENGTHEE LI
TEENFHRESSREER-

B.1.4 | The remuneration committee should be provided C e The Human Resources Department provides administrative support and
with sufficient resources to perform its duties. implements the approved remuneration packages and other human
FHZ B e RERATEERNBITERE - resources related decisions approved by the Remuneration Committee. The

Remuneration Committee also has access to independent advice at the
Company’s expense if considered necessary.
ANERAEEREITHE R TEHWE S 12 FFE L E
MANBEREARE HTHEEENIRERAEFTERS KBV EE
ER BRBARAIXA -

B.1.5 | The company should disclose details of any C e Please refer to notes 11 and 45 in the Notes to Financial Statements for
remuneration payable to members of senior details of the remuneration payable to the senior management.
management by band in the annual reports. BHERRERAFH FEE 2 ERAMEE11R45HE-
NEREAFRNZRFNERERSRERA
BB FE-

C ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
FIE Rz

C1 Financial reporting
B TS R 43
Corporate Governance Principle
REERRA
The Board should present a balanced, clear and comprehensible assessment of the Company’s performance, position and prospects.
EReRTE B REZEMIZAANKE BRKAIR.

C.1.1 | Management should provide sufficient C o Directors are provided with a review of the Group’s major business activities
explanation and information to the board to and key financial information on a quarterly basis in each board meeting.
enable it to make an informed assessment of EEREREZEERIERMEEGT L EEXEEHEBEREEN
financial and other information put before it for B TS E R} o
approval.

ERERMESSRUETINBBRER &
BES A AR IR PIUENI TS R E M E
# EH AR E
C.1.2 | Management should provide all members C e Monthly updates have been provided to all members of the Board, for the

of the board with monthly updates giving a
balanced and understandable assessment of the
company’s performance, position and prospects
in sufficient detail to enable the board as a whole
and each director to discharge their duties.
EEEBESAMEETSNEREENER
HIBHARRIMERE BB RATROAE
g%mm@aﬁ% TABRRNEESEITER

5 °

purpose of providing a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Company’s performance, position and prospects in sufficient detail and to
enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.
EEgMAKEEERESRAENEN FRIETIEEARRAIRA
ﬁjﬂﬁiﬂ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ@’&fh&%ﬁé@%ﬁ%ﬁ REFEREESRRITHAR
=

BRMEEEXARAA o —E—RFFR
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C13 |- The directors should acknowledge in C e Al Directors acknowledge that they are responsible for overseeing the

the Corporate Governance Report their preparation of financial statements of each financial period, which give a
responsibility for preparing the accounts. true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and
EERTELET RSP ARMMERE cashflow for the year.
RAMEE- PREZARKEFLERUSENBPRB M BRRNEL WEE
FEAAMRMFAREENMBEAMR  UARFERRSRERE R
- There should be a statement by the auditors
about their reporting responsibilities in the * In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
auditor’s report on the financial statements. 2016, the Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied
ZEEN N E A B R SR RS them consistently, adopted all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
R PR R IR E TR &R Standards which are in conformity to the International Financial Reporting
Standards, made judgments and estimates that are prudent and reasonable
- Unless it is inappropriate to assume that and prepared the accounts on the going concern basis.
the company will continue in business, the EREBE_ZT—"FTA=T—BLEFEZVBRERE EF28
directors should prepare the accounts on BEAAENSHECE YE2ERASENBREEL NTHEE
a going concern basis, with supporting BRET SRR B EA B EL — B R &R RENERERE
assumptions or qualifications as necessary. A RRIBERE BER-
BRIFBRBARBERELEEBT M
=N §$?§ﬁ1ﬁ E’JEEE JELAR RIS E e With the assistance of the Company’s Finance Department which is
i«‘ Eﬁﬁ“ ERENFERHUREIR under the supervision of the Chief Financial Officer who is a professional
5:’? E accountant, the Directors ensure the preparation of the financial statements
of the Group are in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
- Where the directors are aware of material accounting standards.
uncertainties relating to events or conditions N SR EEESHMERZ ARV HRALEEE XM
that may cast significant doubt on the T EERREEVBREOFERGEEDERALER 2 g1 4R
company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, they should be clearly and e The Directors also ensure the publication of the financial statements of the
prominently disclosed and discussed at Group is in a timely manner.
length in the Corporate Governance Report. ERUWHREE M B REER T AT
REFMEEEATHRE BN
SREFENTNFELENE ) EFE e The statement by the auditors of the Company regarding their reporting
EREERREERBERERF MR responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the
It AR % o Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 124 to 134 of this annual report.
RRAGEMREERBEREAEL RRETERIIHN U FRE124
BEE134B 2 B ZERRERN -
e The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
SRV AANBAAIRH AR AN BEL LR NERNERRBNEMER
TABAEZ -

C.1.4 | The directors should include in the separate C e The Board has included in the Chairman’s Statement a discussion and
statement containing a discussion and analysis analysis of the Group’s sustainable development strategy on pages 8 to 13
of the group’s performance in the annual of this annual report.
report, an explanation of the basis on which the EEERNLERFESEZFIBEZ [EREE] At mEATRET
company generates or preserves value over FERRREEB AL
the longer term (the business model) and the
strategy for delivering the company’s objectives.

EZETFRNTREATEERBENE LN
P RE I ZUN 7“1%_?&‘}2 (REREERER
(2B RER AR B ZHRRE
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C.1.5 | The board should present a balanced, clear C e The Board aims to present a clear, balanced and understandable
and understandable assessment in annual and assessment of the Group’s performance and position in all shareholder
interim reports, and other financial disclosures communications.
required by the Listing Rules. It should also EEERMAERRBAT HEE KRB RMRZIEL BN FTERHRN
do so for reports to regulators and information BRI
disclosed under statutory requirements.

BEHESSREFERE RPHRE MBE e The Board is aware of and updated with the statutory requirements under the

THRAMEAETHRENEMMBERRN - HRQ applicable rules and regulations. The Board aims to present a comprehensive

BIRBIELTE B RA S ERNTE 1L balanced, clear and understandable assessment of the Group’s position

O BT REEERINME S RIBEE and prospects. The Company Secretary and key officers of the Company

DI TE 5 52 0 & B NV R B BR i - Secretarial Department work closely and in consultation with legal advisers
to review the materiality and sensitivity of transactions and proposed
transactions and advise the Board accordingly.
EECNMENETERRARARO OEEER EEGRNRETY
BT SRERNARERRRATRNTHE  ARWERRARAWEDE
EABRZRENETRAE RRHFERRHEENEZIE RERRE
EHFARBR YRUtMESESRLEE-

C.2 Risk management and internal control
BB IR I M B B 1R
Corporate Governance Principle
®EERRA
The board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks it is wiling to take in achieving the issuer’s strategic
objectives, and ensuring that the issuer establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk management and internal control systems. The
board should oversee management in the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems, and
management should provide a confirmation to the board on the effectiveness of these systems.

EERRRTMRETRTAENRBE RN MREEMANERMEE RIZE THERETARILERSERERNEARERERAHE
R EERREEEEEHEREERANEZRANET EHEAER MEEEENESSREEERGRTARMER -

C.21 | The board should oversee the Company’s C e Please refer to C.2.3 and C.2.4 below for the details.
risk management and internal control systems HHELHTXE C23 RC247H:
on an ongoing basis, ensure that a review of
the effectiveness of the Company’s and its
subsidiaries’ risk management and internal
control systems has been conducted at least
annually and report to shareholders that it has
done so in its Corporate Governance Report.

The review should cover all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance
controls.
EEQRFEELEERANRMERERAZE
BEG WHERSDFFRE —IRD B LEMH
BLANERERERADEZERZFTESER
W (EERRE) PRBRRERDSETK
BRI -BRRN EREMAEEENEET
H BEFBEE EEEERGREE.

C22 |The board’s annual review should, in C e The Board has conducted annual review on the adequacy of resources,
particular, ensure the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of the Company’s accounting, internal audit
staff qualifications and experience, training and financial reporting staff as well as their training programmes and budget
programmes and budget of the company’s and considers as adequate.
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting EEZDRARFET NHERLUBERNEINER BE MK
function. BAHARGRA UREIMEINEIRERABREXEETRE
EESETFERIE  BERRRES TERBR  TRABZTH-

NEEZ RS BERBE T ENER 8T
ER &R AR B TS MEIRER AR
BEELRA-

BRMEEEXARAA o —E—RFFR
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EXeEFRANEREREETIIRE:

@

the changes, since the last annual review,
in the nature and extent of significant risks,
and the Company’s ability to respond to
changes in its business and the external
environment;

R {8 EARRBRAIE RESEE
[E# DA 72 B A S S 5 T b
ERREENREN:

=
g

the scope and quality of management’s
ongoing monitoring of risks and of the
internal control systems, and where
applicable, the work of its internal audit
function and other assurance providers;
EREHEERERRADEZEZSNT
fEBR R EE - & (MEA) AEEZEE
REMREREENIIE:

the extent and frequency of communication
of monitoring results to the board (or board
committee(s)) which enables it to assess
control of the issuer and the effectiveness of
risk management;

RMEFY (FEETZEE) FEETER
MR REE RRE WA EFETRE
TANERER K ERERNEIEE

significant control failings or weaknesses
that have been identified during the period.
Also, the extent to which they have resulted
in unforeseen outcomes or contingencies
that have had, could have had, or may in
the future have, a material impact on the
issuer’s financial performance or condition;
and

HNE R BRI RRLE RN ERE
55T AR F I B HORBE TR R VIR Rk
ZLBENNRERE MazFERABER
HETANRBRRAENEDEE A4
BEEIHRALEEENEATE: &

the effectiveness of the Company’s
processes for financial reporting and Listing
Rule compliance.
NEVERAE B ESF (EmRAD
EWRFEL AN

Comply (‘C")/
Explain (‘E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions 5 ([c])/ | Corporate Governance Practices
SZT8 | AR #e(E)) LEERER
C.2.3 | The board’s annual review should, in particular, C e For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board, with the assistance of
consider: the Audit Committee, the Group’s Internal Audit Function, the Enterprise

Risk Management Committee and the management, has conducted
regular review of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls systems,
including financial, operational and compliance control and risk management
systems and no irregularity or material weakness was noted within any
function or process. The Board considers the risk management and internal
control systems are effective and adequate for the Group as a whole. The
Board further considers that there was no material issue relating to the
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions of the Group. Please refer to C.2.4 below for the
detalils.
BE_Z-—R"FT_A=T-RLEFERN EERZES AEER
BB CERRERZESREBRENHY T EFSE TR
FEENBERZS (BEME SERGRER) BRRERERIK
B WARBEREMBEIBRERREEIEARL -EEGRA
EREERNBERERFHAEERENZBAART R EFELR
B ARBENE 2ERARERUREREERES A ERE TN
BARERME - FAELH T XE C24%-
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C.24 |The Company should disclose, in the C RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

Corporate Governance Report, a narrative
statement on how they have complied with
the risk management and internal control
code provisions during the reporting period. In
particular, they should disclose:

NEEHE (EEERRE) NARMZ KR
B PRE TR E R R A EEN
SRR AR s BARTEARE:

@

the process used to identify, evaluate and
manage significant risks;

AR FHE R ERERRBRIRER

the main features of the risk management
and internal control systems;
EREE RN EE RGN T 2

an acknowledgement by the board that
it is responsible for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing
their effectiveness. It should also explain
that such systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or
loss;
EEGRAREBHREMER L AMEE
ZHBE UARERIZEHENEX
H-BERRMEMBZZ RN EEEM
IR RAEER XK B FEMER AR
T eREANKERMSRAELE
BmIEBE R

the process used to review the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control
systems and to resolve material internal
control defects; and

ARG BB E 8 R N E BT R A R
B A2 7 I R R BR B ) A BB BR SR ER S 0 AR
i &

the procedures and internal controls for
the handling and dissemination of inside
information.

BRIR N 0 PR B OB Fr AT R B
ik

LB B2 K M ARSI

Purpose

B

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems of the Group, and for reviewing
their design, operational adequacy and effectiveness.

SRR RARBASEREREUNERER RADEEHE - Wik
ARERE BIEMED MBI -

The Company has adopted a set of comprehensive policies, standards and
procedures in areas of operational, financial and risk controls for ensuring the
smooth operation of business in order to facilitate the effective and efficient
accomplishment of corporate goals and objectives by allowing it to respond
appropriately to significant business, operational, financial, compliance and
other risks, maintaining proper records for provision of reliable financial and
corporate information, safeguarding the Group’s assets and shareholder’s
interests, ensuring all the transactions are executed in accordance with the
management’s authorization, and complying with the requirements under the
applicable rules and regulations, and also with the Group's internal policies
and conduct. However, the risk management and internal control systems
are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss and to mitigate, rather than eliminate, the risks
of failure in operational systems when business objectives are being sought.
RRARIENEE I REAREEFERMN—E2 BB R RIER -
AR ¥ 75 e 5 BB 1 - R HNERER 28 M5 SR NEMEAR
HELBEMEE REEERERERBERLEBERRE R
FRETH MEHAIENBREEEH  REREBENEERRRF
& BRAERFIGRREEEMRENT UETER AN K%
HEORTERAEENBBRRITRTA AW Bl ERERABEER
REERTEHFEERNERBUMSIBRIRHA R EBYH 2RE LN
BXREBEERREEIFMREENERENER -

Framework

RiE

The Company has established a reasonable, effective and balanced internal
control and risk management systems, with clear division of work among the
Board, the Audit Committee, the Enterprise Risk Management Committee,
the management, functional departments and business departments within
the structure of the entire internal control and risk management systems.
ARBERY TEE AR BRENABEERERERRR BHE
Fe ERZES EXEAREBESE ERE ML IMELEH
EREANDEZREARERZSTH THE.

The Board is responsible for maintain a sound and effective implementation
of internal control and risk management. The Board has established the
Audit Committee which is responsible for assisting the Board in fulfiling its
responsibilities for reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems. The Audit Committee,
through discussion with management and engagement of internal audit team
of PIL, to review the effectiveness of internal control and risk management
systems, including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions, and to report to the Board any significant risk issues.
The Board will provide its own view on the effectiveness of the systems after
reviewed the works and findings of the Audit Committee.
EXCRERRRERIARNANEZELREAREREFE - EEE TR
REEG AEMDEFSRTHBERIASERRERE AR
ZORBRDNANM BREESFBREEE R MEFAFHIBH
AEEE R ADEERRBEERS (RENE SEHERER
KEBEENE) NAERE YMEFEREENEAAREE XS
%%ﬁ%&é%ﬁmlﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%&’ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂgmﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁ%
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C24 e Relevant executive directors and senior management have been delegated
(con’t) with specific authorities and responsibilities for monitoring the performance
(&) of designated operating business units. The management is responsible

for organizing and steering the daily operation of the internal control of
the Company. The management would report the business plans and
development to the Board on a quarterly basis. This helps the Board to
monitor the Group’s business operations and plan on a timely basis in
response to the changes in business environment. Each operating business
unit also maintains internal controls and procedures appropriate to its
structure and business environment whilst complying with the Group’s
policies, standards and guidelines.

RN TEE R EEERER TR ERNREAEREHEEES
BEUzZR - EREEARABNESANAINNEENATEET B
BESSTEREAGAIANERTESE HEANEZSRREHR
BEBERERAEEEBEENGE - BEEBUMERF B HRHE
REBRF 2 AHEERER  WRREFAEEEE &8 KIES| -

Internal Control System
NERE 1 £ 45t

The Group’s Internal Audit Function has been performed by internal audit
team of PIL which undertakes regular reviews of the Group’s operations
and system of internal controls. By adopting a risk-based approach and
operating on an on-going basis to evaluate risk level on control environment,
the annual audit plans which covers major activities and processes of the
Group’s operating business unit on a rotational basis was submitted to
Audit Committee for approval. Moreover, ad hoc reviews will be performed
on specific areas of concern identified by the Audit Committee and the
management from time to time.
FEENANBEZBEBRNTRBENALETEEE AEHEMHAE
B0 &8 e AR EEIE R % - BV AT TIERT IR AARIR R AR 5
R WAREEEEE LT RERRENEARKT BRREAEEE
EEBBUMNEEFHLBR TASRITERZEGEM WM 7T
BTN REREZESRERBMAEN S CBRETREEM-

Depending on the nature of businesses and risk exposure of individual
business units, the scope of work performed by Internal Audit covers all
material controls including financial, operational and risk management
functions. During the year, Internal Audit deeply inspected, investigated and
assessed six subsidiaries and one associate of the Company. It has reviewed
and assessed their systems on procurement, operation flow, internal control,
financial, contracting, safety and environmental protection, human resources
and administration etc.

BIERFEEMAEREE RARERTE AEPEt ) TSR
REHTE CBRAREEEMEEEEE UREAREERE £/
ABEZAAZSE  HRLFEADESEHMRB AR R —BEE L8
BB R T ZERANERE SERE NBEE BB 64022
HERREERE URANERRITHERS -
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C24 e The internal audit findings are preliminary discussed at management level
(con’t) and the follow up actions are taken in response to the Internal Audit’s
(&) recommendations. The internal audit findings are also presented to the

Audit Committee and the Board on the immediate meetings following the
issue of the internal audit report. The responsible heads of departments
will be notified of the control deficiencies noted for rectification. The
management would urge the relevant business segments and units to
implement rectification measures in a timely manner, so as to ensure the
internal control system of the Company is effective. Follow-up reviews
will be conducted in due course and discussed at the Audit Committee
Meeting and Board Meeting to ensure that audit recommendations are
being properly implemented. During the year, corrective actions were
taken based on the audit findings and no significant control failure which
might affected shareholder’s interest has identified. The Audit Committee
reviewed all internal audit findings, management responses and the
adequacy and effectiveness of the internal controls. Significant risk issues
and its recommendations, if any, are referred to the Board for consideration.
No suspected frauds and irregularities, internal control deficiencies or
suspected infringement of laws, rules and regulations have come to the
Audit Committee’s attention to cause the Audit Committee to believe that the
system of internal controls is inadequate.

NBERERS AR TERE MR I E RN BEZAZERIRE
T8 ABEZERMNBEEELANEFRERNSE LIR2TER
ZEGREFE - XHUMTERERMAELE IR CENETEE-E
BEERIBEESD D RELREE BB ERE BRARANIEZER
REVEE - REREWEZEZERUEN EREEFETRER
AR EREERERANEREERTIR - FA ERREANER
BEE TEERARHRRNEEKTENERETRE BRESR
SEEHMANDERER ERELERNEEE 2 7R M RKY
TREEGEREARMBEEREZE (NF) - AQ BB ETRRFER
PEFABERRRANAIEEREE RAUNERMoI BEREES
IR BERERZECHENNERRRETRAN-

Group’s risk management
SERKRER

The Board oversees the Group's risk management system and reviewing
its adequacy and effectiveness. The Group has set up an Enterprise Risk
Management Committee, composed of senior management and heads
of key corporate functions, with a mandate for overall risk management
activities of the Group. The Enterprise Risk Management Committee's main
responsibilities include a comprehensive understanding of the Company's
major risk exposures and its management status and maintaining the
effectiveness of the Company's risk management system.
SERREERALERARERARIRTERD M REMIL - AEE
RECEXERERZES BAAREEERFEXEPIINEEER .
EREREASEEREARER G CEARERZESIERED
E2EEMRARHRNSEEARRERREEERN  AREFER
ERRGEENARIL -

The Enterprise Risk Management Committee is also responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Group’s risk management matters
such as the overall objectives and policies as well as its working mechanisms
of the Group’s risk management system, the establishment of individual
risk management unit at company level, risk assessment of major operating
activities, provide recommendations for the mitigation of major risks and to
carry out any other assignments from the Board.
CEERERZEENEANASERRERFENESSREER
MAEERERERRSNEERRRRE  UAREEERN ALFE
HmEERRREREM: HEELEIFDHELRRTE WIRHES
ERERRRE  URETEFSTHNEMEMEIER.
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C.24
(con’t)
(&)

The Enterprise Risk Management Committee reports to the Board and
Audit Committee at least twice a year. It will report on the Group's risk
management activities, risk positions and management measures for
mitigation of major risks noted. The Enterprise Risk Management Committee
will also submit the risk evaluation reports which evaluate the risk level
of major activities and processes of the Group’s operating business with
focuses on financial risks, operational risks, strategic risks and market risks to
the Board and Audit Committee twice a year.
CEEREEZEGEFFRIMANEETERERZEGERLTED
Kﬁlﬂmﬁﬁé@JWM#R&%MEEHﬁMﬁEhM;I 5
iﬁmﬁ%%ﬁﬁgﬁéﬁa} ZERBITERS  HEMBRRE £E
i~ SRS B e T L B EE$EIM§%%££é@&L&m
@@Eﬁo

With the support of Enterprise Risk Management Committee, Audit
Committee and the management, the Board identifies and assesses the
key risks, existing or emerging, facing the Group, and formulates relevant
strategies and measures to mitigate the risk exposure.

EL(RRERZES BRZEGRERERY T EFSTHI LT
HKEEEE&ZEEX Bz 2R - I HIETAH R R A S i - A
/)EME{‘J_L M 25 E% ©

INSIDE INFORMATION DISCLOSURE POLICY
NEH S WERR

In order to ensure compliance with the continuous disclosure obligation
under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) and the
disclosure of inside information of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)(“SFO”), the Board has adopted
an “Inside Information Disclosure Policy” effective from 29 June 2016 which
sets out the guidelines to the directors, officers and the employees of the
Group, who is likely to be in possession of the unpublished inside information
to (a) monitor the Company’s business developments so that any potential
inside information is promptly identified and report to the Board to enable
them be timely informed of any circumstances or development that may
constitute inside information of the Company and to make timely decisions
on disclosure, if necessary; and (b) take reasonable precautions to preserve
confidentiality of inside information and the relevant announcement (if
applicable) before publication.

RERTEEBUMARZSMEBRAR (M2 ]) ES AR ([ TR
A1) BEFHEREEE ARESRBEG ([B5RPREEA]) (B
AEDIFESE ) FAREANBERNRT EFEEE_T—R"FRA
ZHABRRANEEERBERE] BEMNAREZES SaRAE
KES (KA B RN 2 NEER)IRHIES] LB AR RN ER
BRETER NERRBANECMEENANEHEE TRAESZGER
FEEE MEFEREMAREBKARAINERENBERRER WIED
RIE - B EREHEBHEE: ROEMAEERE  $ARESREEL
S (@A) R BEERRHEARILE-

C.25

The Company should have an internal audit
function. Issuers without an internal audit
function should review the need for one on an
annual basis and should disclose the reasons for
the absence of such a function in the Corporate
Governance Report.

NEIERNEEZINEE 8B NEBE 8L
MBETABEBFRIRE T B RILIBIN
WIE (REERRE) NFEAREEEEY

4k
Be °

Please refer to C.2.4 above for the details.
FHELM EXE C241E
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C3 Audit Committee
ENEES
Corporate Governance Principle
E. /L:l ﬂiﬁ‘l
The Board should establish formal and transparent arrangements to consider how it will apply financial reporting, risk management and internal
control principles and maintain an appropriate relationship with the Company’s auditors.
EXCRBUMERVBER REEERNDETRARMESEARZIMELENEREL ERREERENTH-
C3.1 |- Ful minutes of audit committee meetings C e The Board has established the Audit Committee to investigate and handle

should be kept by a duly appointed
secretary of the meeting.
EREERNTESALHERAERARE
HERWERT-

Draft and final versions of minutes should
be sent to all committee members for their
comment and records, within a reasonable
time after the meeting.

FBHNTREREEREEGREE—
E& EREALEEXEEE2ENE "
gw tNBREER HETRIELTDH

=8

matters within its terms of reference and make recommendations to the
Board for any necessary improvement.
EEERRUERZESEUTEREEREABEGEANNEME
H ARRESERUEARNSEES

The current members of the Audit Committee include two independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lau Ho Kit, lvan (Chairman) and Mr.
Yang, Victor, and a non-executive Director, namely, Mr. Kuan Kim Kin, of
which at least one independent non-executive Director possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications of accounting or related financial
management expertise.
EREZEGRAKEOEMUBILIFNTES HAAZIRGREE (F
) RIGERESE IR IFRITES - Féﬁi%ﬁg?ﬁi BREL—AB
VERTERARASERER JAGEENSI AR BERE
e

The Chairman of the Audit Committee reports the findings and
recommendations to the Board after each meeting.

BREFR ERZEGIRENEFSERARRRER -

The Audit Committee has regular meetings at least twice a year. In 2016, a
total of three meetings were convened and held with satisfactory attendance.
The details of Audit Committee members attendance in 2016 are as foIIows
ERLZERTHRIER KOBFMA N F BREZE8H
AHEBRTZREE AHEESARB N2 "F EWERZE
SREMHEFENENT

Number of

Attendance

Committee members ZEERE HERE
LauHo Kit, lvan (Chaiman) ~ 2IR1 54 (/%) 3/3
Kuan Kim Kin B EL A 2/3
Yang, Victor BEALE 3/3

BRMEEECXARAA « —E—RFFR

53



54

Corporate Governance Report ¥ &R &

Comply (‘C")/
Explain (‘E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions E5(fc])/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2E38 | FHKX #((El) PEERER
C.3.1 e The Audit Committee is accountable to the Board and minutes of meetings
(con’t) are circulated to the Board for information.
(&) EREERANESCRENASALBARIESZSEM-

The following is a summary of the work of the Audit Committee during the
year under review:
EEBEFEN EZEE N TERLIT

(@ reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial reports for the year ended
31 December 2015 and for the six months ended 30 June 2016;
EBHEHE T AF TRt RUEFEREE-T—~F~A
=THERNEANRERGEMBRE

(o) reviewed the external auditors” statutory audit plan and the letters of
representation;

ERINERBE AT B A BRERBAE:

(c) reviewed the findings and recommendations of the internal auditors;

EHANBERENETERIEE

(d) considered and approved the 2016 audit fees and terms of engagement
for the external auditors;
ERRIAZT —NFINEZEAME A REEBIER:

() reviewed the “Continuing Connected Transactions” set forth on pages
73 to 80 of this annual report; and
BEHHENAFRETBEEF0E Y [BEMERS] &

() reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control and risk management
systems of the Group.
EHRAEENBEEREARERRRAEE

On 29 March 2017, the Audit Committee met to review the 2016
consolidated financial statements, including the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, in conjunction with external auditors.
Based on this review and discussions with the management and external
auditors, the Audit Committee endorsed the accounting treatment adopted
by the Company and had, to the best of its ability, assured itself that
the disclosure of the financial information in this report complies with the
applicable accounting standards and Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules.
The Audit Committee therefore recommended the Board'’s approval of the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 for
public release.

RIZ—+E=A-+NA BERZEgHRMNERBMEN _—T—X
FENGEHBERE BEEHNASERB e RAREBEN R
BUHEEHER UREERERIMEZYMTRE EREEQER
RRBFRM GHREAR  WERNBREARERBOM B ERT
BEAZEFEAR FTRANSET - Bt EREZECREEE_
§7ﬁ¢+:ﬂE+75¢¢§ﬁéM%ﬁi%§$§H&&m®$%
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C.3.1 e The Audit Committee also recommended the re-appointment of Deloitte
(con’t) Touche Tohmatsu as the Group’s external auditors for 2017 and that the
(&) related resolution shall be put forth for shareholders’ consideration and
approval at the 2017 AGM.
BRLEENEEENZARY HER M EBMALRER 2=
T FERINEREM TERER S —tFREAFAL LRERRK
RERRBB-
e During the year under review, the fees paid to the Company’s external Hong
Kong auditors for audit work amounted to HK$3,000,000 and for non-audit
and review activities amounted to HK$500,000 (including HK$275,000 for
interim review, HK$46,000 for tax review and HK$179,000 for other related
services).
WRBIEESF A A A A) S HMNIE B8 % 2R 2 #% 8 3 733,000,000/ 7T -
SIEZ B 2= B 2 IR %5 B F /500,0007% 7T (845 BA 2 B 2 FB 275,000
T - B %% B B F46,00075 7T K H v 48 B AR 75 B 3 179,000/ 7T ) ©
C.3.2 | A former partner of existing auditing firm shall C e No member of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the existing
not act as a member of the committee for 1 auditing firm of the Company during the one year after he ceases to be a
year from the date of his ceasing to be a partner partner of the auditing firm.
of or to have any financial interest in, the fim, BERRSEEREAABKREMZEARREREARKIER BZZH
whichever is later. RAIGBRABBBH—FA EERARABEREEGKE
BRBEENRARAENRERRNAIES
ANEMRIEK AZLBEE AN BE ST
BERZA RSB BB (VAR HE
BERE)BH—FERN MHRETERZEY
fIBK S
C.3.3 | The audit committee’s terms of reference should C ¢ The Audit Committee was established with specific written terms of reference

include:

ERZEeNREGEREE:

- recommendations to the board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of
external auditor and approval of their terms
of engagement;

HINEREMMER ENEAERERMA
EERRMEE RIVEINEZZEN R IER

fER

- review and monitor external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and
effectiveness of audit process;

e R ERINSZE R R B KB R AZE
TR R U

- review of the company’s financial
information; and

EHRENMPBER: K

- oversight of the company’s financial
reporting system, risk management and
internal control procedures, including the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and
budget of the company’s accounting and
financial reporting function.
EENRMBREHE RERER LA
ERREF BREEERAESRMBE
BBAEFTENER BIERREBES
RH AR B IR MEIIRERE A
HERBRRE -

which have complied with the Code requirements and are modified from time
to time. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee is made available on
the website of the Company and Stock Exchange.

BREEGHK IR AR EIAEE T BB S E R 2 AR
B BREEEVBESECEHNARA B8 -

&
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should also require it:
ERZEENBESENEAE:

- 1o review arrangements employees of the
company can use, in confidence, to raise
concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control or other
matters. The audit committee should ensure
that proper arrangements are in place for
fair and independent investigation of these
matters and for appropriate follow-up
action; and
R R AR EH A T2 HE - A FE & ATk
LA TRE IR - PO RR B SR E 4t 7 T T B
BENTEETRAREET -EREEE
ERRRAEEE T BRRAHNEEEE
HAFBYMAS RRIEETE: &

- 1o act as the key representative body for
overseeing the company'’s relations with the
external auditor.
EEAREINEZER M FERK
BERER-_EENER.

Comply (‘C")/
Explain (‘E”)

Code Ref. | Code Provisions 5 ([c])/ | Corporate Governance Practices

2E38 | FHKX #@((El) PEERER

C.34 | The audit committee should make available C e Please refer to C.3.1 and C.3.3 above for the detalls.
its terms of reference, explaining its role and LM L EC31KC33;E
the authority delegated to it by the board by
including them on the Stock Exchange and the
company’s website.

FRL BRI B AT R A E A8 AR
HBEsE RREACRESQERTAN
#7 -

C.3.5 |Where the board disagrees with the audit C e The Audit Committee recommended to the Board that, subject to
committee’s view on the selection, appointment, shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting, Deloitte
resignation or dismissal of the external auditors, Touche Tohmatsu be re-appointed as the Company’s external auditor for
the company should include in the Corporate 2017. The Board agreed with the recommendation made by the Audit
Governance Report a statement from the audit Committee.
committee explaining its recommendation and BEREZECNEECREE ENECEYBEERASHMITHELR
also the reason(s) why the board has taken a AT FEMNIMNEZEA  EBERFNAERITHRRAFAE
different view. EE FAEE -EESREEREEECRE-
NEZETRAEEREEGHTE T &

ABEMNERHMEENER  DEEER
EFERBREPIEERZE MM ARENE
B AREEGERTRERNRE

C.3.6 | The audit committee should be provided with C e The Audit Committee has been advised that the Company Secretary can
sufficient resources to perform its duties. arrange independent professional advice at the expense of the Company
BEREERREMHERRARUNETERSE should the seeking of such advice be considered necessary by the Audit

Committee.
ERLECERBN EEREECRRALUESKBUELXER A
AWERR ALY BRBARAEX-.

C.3.7 | The terms of reference of the audit committee C e Please refer to C.3.1 and C.3.3 above for details.

HMFELH EXEC31RC33HE-
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D DELEGATION BY THE BOARD
BEEgRNNER
DA Management functions
B
Corporate Governance Principle
TEERRA
The Company should have a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved for Board approval and those delegated to management.
NEEE—HEAMNEEAE JH S EEE S AN ERARREERBATNER
D11 |When the board delegates aspects of its C e Management meetings are held periodically where executive Directors and
management and administration functions heads of senior management of the respective business divisions are present
to management, it must, at the same time, and clear directions are given as to the management’s powers.
give clear directions as to the management's EEEeTHATHE WTEFREHREBIFNERERAEBNE
powers, in particular, where management should EAEBHREEE WHERENE NG TIEMIES -
report back and obtain prior board approval
before making decisions or entering into any e Any issue that is considered to be material will be referred to the Board for
commitments on the company’s behalf. approval.
EEERREEE RITHEE N ER ERMEEA EERIRHHRBESGER -
TERER VEARKREEENEN &
EMEES R E R EEMERSER e Any materials matters requiring disclosure under the Listing Rules or other
IARIERE R AR R E S AT S frl A applicable rules or regulations, appropriate disclosure will be made and
RIERGESSHAESETEIT - where necessary, circular will be prepared and shareholders’ approval wil
be obtained in accordance with the requirements of the applicable rules and
regulations.
RiE ERRASEMERORASROIMETRE, EES1E - gk
HiEE 2 BB WHREERREBER 25 R KAk P88 K LR
BREz A
D.1.2 | Formalise functions reserved to the board and C e Under the leadership of the Chief Executive Officer who is also the Chairman
those delegated to management and to review of the Company, management is responsible for the day-to-day operations of
those arrangements periodically to ensure that the Group.
they remain appropriate to the company’s FEETRAE (BEMARARZER)RET EEEAEAELEMNAH
needs. HEEo
NEERSILRE TES SRR R ALK
TEREMNBEL D BT TR WEBIERE o The Company has established clear terms of reference for the Board which
NRERBALRFARANTEE - are reviewed periodically to ensure that they remain appropriate.
ARBREREFEHENEMABERE Y HRaBRARSAE.
D.1.3 | The company should disclose the respective C e The respective responsibilities, accountabilities and contributions of the board
responsibilities, accountabilities and contributions and management have been discussed through this Corporate Governance
of the board and management. Report.
AREREESeREREERANBE B EEeRERERENBEC N CEE ARE TRl
B AR B E RIEHER
D.1.4 | Directors should clearly understand delegation C ¢ Directors are given formal letter of appointment setting out the key terms and

arrangements in place. The company should
have formal letters of appointment for directors
setting out the key terms and conditions of their
appointment.
ERREREBUTENENERTH - AT
BEAMESZEE AREREENETER
F Mt

conditions of their respective appointment. Each newly appointed Director
will also be issued with a letter of appointment.
EEREWAEAZAEE WEEITHEZEZFERARGE -5
ENEAESTHERELEEE

BRMEEECXARAA « —E—RFFR
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should require them to report back to the
board on their decisions or recommendations,
unless there are legal or regulatory restrictions
on their ability to do so (such as a restriction on
disclosure due to regulatory requirements).
EERETRLEeNBREERRTZER
eZnEFRERARTES RIFZEZE
B8 XA ol BB IR B AT IR i 1 88 1 UL [E 3R
(N E B 5 52 1 IR IR 58 )
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D.2 Board Committees
EFQRTHNZER
Corporate Governance Principle

E. /Cl EE‘J
Board Committees should be formed with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with their authority and duties.
EERE TR R BN B ASANTERESE FLIIBEZESRNLBE-

D.2.1 | Where board committees are established to C e Four Board Committees, namely, Audit Committee, Remuneration

deal with matters, the board should give them Committee, Nomination Committee and Management Committee, have
sufficiently clear terms of reference to enable been established with specific terms of reference. Please refer to A.5.1-5.4,
them to perform their functions propery. B.1.3, C.3.3 and D.1.2 for detalls.
EERVEZECREEE EFCRMNEHE ExgiRUNEETEEe NENEEY FWEEe REZEY
SRRHEANFENREGE FHLEE REBEZEE SERAMBESHE FAEL2HM EXFEAL154B13
BiTHL - C.3.3KD.1.218°

D.22 | The terms of reference of board committees C e Board Committees report to the Board of their decisions and

recommendations at the Board meetings.

EXERETREeNEEQeANEEQEREREREE -

D.3 Corporate Governance Functions
REERRAE

D.3.1 | The terms of reference of the board (or a C
committee or committees performing this
function) should include:

B (HBETHBENEES) RERE
[ERE:

- develop and review the company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and
make recommendations to the board;

HITE MR a A AR R EEABR L ER -
TRESERIER:

- review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of
directors and senior management;

B REREEREREBABNEIIR
SERRER:

No corporate governance committee has been established. The Board is
responsible for the corporate governance functions with the following duties:
ARAVERVGEERZES CEEABMHEEERR YA T
SRR -

(@ to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make reoommendations

HETRBA AR EMEEERRERER LIRS

(o) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors;
B REZREZNEIRSEEERRE

() to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

i RERARNAEETERREERENENEERER
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D.31 |- review and monitor the company’s policies (d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance

(con’t) and practices on compliance with legal and manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;

(&) regulatory requirements; BT s RERERNEE REENRTTRIRARFMR (1E)

B REEAREETAEREERTES
ENERRER: (e) to review the Company'’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report; and
—  develop, review and monitor the code of READRETFTAMNBERRRCEERREFRELORE: &
conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and directors; and () such other corporate governance duties and functions set out in
B A REREE RESMBR AR the Code (as amended from time to time) for which the Board is
RERFM(0AE) : Rk responsible.
HFINTRANEZGEENZSHMOEE BE LB (BTH
- review the company’s compliance with CHIE
the Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.
B R RETREE R TANBELRER
EERBMENNRE-

D.3.2 | The board should be responsible for performing C e No corporate governance committee has been established. The Board is
the corporate governance duties set out in the responsible for the corporate governance functions. Please refer to D.3.1
terms of reference in D.3.1 or it may delegate the above for details.
responsibility to a committee or committees. RARUERICEERZE S PEERBERAESSAR B
EEeREERIIDI KB EAEMEM D 28 EXED3AE
%%ﬁ%é’ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%*ﬁi%ﬁé
==

E COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
MR R ER

E.1 Effective communication
BRER
Corporate Governance Principle
REERRA
The Board should be responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue with shareholders and in particular, use annual general meetings or other
general meetings to communicate with them and encourage their participation.

EEERAEERFHRERFYE LARERRAFAGRHAMRFTAGERTEBREDMOMNZHE -
E1.1  |For each substantially separate issue at a C e Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings of the Company

general meeting, a separate resolution should be
proposed by the chairman of that meeting. The
company should avoid “bundling” resolutions
unless they are interdependent and linked
forming one significant proposal. Where the
resolutions are “bundled”, the company should
explain the reasons and material implications in
the notice of meeting.

EBRRAe L e2TRERTEERBUMN
FEERREAER BRIFBAAZR 2 EE
EREREE ARRAK-—HEARE &
BIAE R e [ REREE LR
ER NAEEEZREHRERARET SR
MERTE-

on each substantially separate issue, including the election of individual
Directors.

BEERBUNZE HEARAREAG LUERNARRREZ 04
ERERES
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E1.2 |- The chairman of the board should attend C e The 2016 annual general meeting (2016 AGM") at which the external
the annual general meeting. He should auditors attended was convened on 29 June 2016.
also invite the chairmen of the audit, T RFEZRRAFAEER T -ARFENAZ TR HMNE
remuneration, nomination and any other ZER IR E L E -
committees (as appropriate) to attend. In
their absence, he should invite another e Details of Directors’ attendance at the 2016 AGM are set out below:
member of the committee to be available TREFIEFHE T ARFREAFRG2FE:
to answer questions at the annual general
meeting. 2016 AGM
EERIFREERRAFAE WEE A
Z=REee FHESe BLEEeR Name of Directors EEpE RRAFKE
EAEMEES (BAEERATE)NE , N
EHE - EEEEEeTEARNE & Teo Siong Seng SRALE 1/1
e s e 2 Chan Kwok Leung RELR ”
Exe FESIEE- Teo Tiou Seng gﬁﬁﬁﬁi N
Chung Pui King, Rebecca ﬁéﬁlijﬂg 11
- The chairman of the independent board _PFuan Kim Kin Eﬁﬁ% n
Lo . an Chor Kee FRiE 11
committee (if any) should also be avallaple Cheng Fu Kwok, David W 11
to answer questions at any general meeting Lau Ho Kit, van 2| 11
to approve a connected transaction or any Ong Ka Thai IRk 1/1
other transaction that requires independent Yang, Victor EER 11
shareholders’ approval.
ERgETMBIZES (WA)MLE e |n 2016, the Chairman of the Board (also served as Chairman of Nomination
TEAEHAER TSR BRAE E0 Committee), Chairman of the Audit Committee and Chairman of the
JERIRE - BNERE X 5 3 (L H M A B L Remuneration Committee attended the AGM and were available to answer
BESINA: 0N questions.
RIE—R"F EFGTR (RARRZELTR) ERZEGIREK
- The company’s management should YNEEeFREELHERFAFAE UARNE FEERMA-
ensure the external auditor attend the
annual general meeting to answer questions e In 2016, the Company's external auditor attended the AGM and was
about the conduct of the audit, the available to answer questions.
preparation and content of the auditor’s R-B—AE AARSNERBMEEREAEAS TTNE LEE
report, the accounting policies and auditor 2R o
independence.
DRI E TR EEMRIMNEZ RN LB RER
BERE MEEMESLIE REZH
s R E AR - 5THUR A RS An &)
B ERE
E1.3 |The company should arrange for the notice C e The Company’s notice to shareholders for the 2016 AGM of the Company
to shareholders to be sent for annual general was sent at least 20 clear business days before the meeting.
meeting at least 20 clear business days before ARRBEZZ—"ERFAFAGETANEL R TEEEARRR
the meeting and to be sent at least 10 clear HREMEBM-
business days for all other general meetings.
BRREFREME  ARELHERGET
AELRZHAZEBRRREXBA Mt
PIAEMBRRAEME BIBERGRITHE
PRTESERERBM-
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Comply (‘C")/
Explain (‘E")
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #s([c])/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2E38 | FHKX #((El) PEERER
E1.4 | The board should establish a shareholders’ C e The Board has established a shareholders communication policy and made
communication policy and review it on a regular it available on the Company’s website. The policy is subject to review on a
basis to ensure its effectiveness. regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.
BRI T RRAABCR - W E B AT EERHERRBERBLR  WEBHNAD B - ZER KT B ED
REAR ] AR EL R R
e This policy aims to set out the provisions with the objective of ensuring
that the Company’s shareholders (the “Shareholders”), both individual and
institutional, and, in appropriate circumstances, the investment community
at large, are provided with ready, equal and timely access to balanced
and understandable information about the Company (including its financial
performance, strategic goals and plans, material developments, governance
and risk profile), in order to enable Shareholders to exercise their rights in an
informed manner, and to allow Shareholders and the investment community
to engage actively with the Company.
WBURFTE X B ERRADAIRE (TIRR]) - BfEEAREERE
REBEBEATBE-REEAL AUERRE2E HRARE HE
BOALEER (DEAMBERR BREERE EXER B
REBREDR) - —FEERRAENEERTTREN - EhERR
RIGE AT HEARRE) IN5EE®
E2 Voting by poll
Mg AFRR
Corporate Governance Principle
EERRA
The Company should ensure that shareholders are familiar with the detailed procedures for conducting a poll.
NEEBRRRABAREF ETRROFBIZF
E2.1 |The chairman of a meeting should ensure C e Detailed explanation regarding the procedures for demanding poll by

that an explanation is provided of the detailed
procedures for conducting a poll and answer any
questions from shareholders on voting by poll.
REFRERRESE LRARRBEARTES
HETRRNFRE T  WEERRAMAR
EHARABEERMA -

Shareholders had been provided at the commencement of the 2016 AGM.
BRARRERUREFARANEFOFAFRRER T —AFREA
FREHMBRA-

At the 2016 AGM, the Chairman of the meeting put each resolution set out
in the notice to be voted by way of a poll in accordance with the Company's
Article.
RIB-—RFERRAFAS L AGLFEREARRZRZAY HRK
REAFARBENZ EBABRETRER R

Representatives of the Share Registrar of the Company were appointed as
scrutineers to monitor and count the poll votes cast at the 2016 AGM.
ARRABRNBEREZRREZAA S "FERERAFASGHES
B NERRERBERY

All the resolutions put to vote at the Company’s general meetings were taken
by pall.
FERARRIRREAE HRZVABRRERREFETRAR-
Poll results were posted on the websites of the Company and Stock
Exchange.

BERRERCERNARF RABRATHEY -

BRMEEECXARAA « —E—RFFR
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Comply (‘C")/
Explain (‘E”)

Code Ref. | Code Provisions 5 ([c])/ | Corporate Governance Practices

2E38 | FHKX #@((El) PEERER

F COMPANY SECRETARY
NEAWE
Corporate Governance Principle
REERRA
The Company Secretary plays an important role in supporting the Board by ensuring good information flow within the Board and that Board policy
and procedures are followed. The Company Secretary is responsible for advising the Board through the Chairman and/ or the Chief Executive
Officer on governance matters and should also facilitate induction and professional development of Directors.

NANELIEESZE HEEZSZAE BRRESFENEZHEARGRE UREBREEGUREEF RANEATEBFRR /X
BRTHAENESSREEAFENIEER URHESM ARSI REEER-

F1.1 The company secretary should be an employee C e Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca (‘Ms. Chung”) (a certified public accountant),
of the company and have day-to-day knowledge who was appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company on 10
of the company'’s affairs. September 2013, is also a director of the Company. Ms. Chung is currently
NEWEERRLRNES HRARMEESH the Chief Financial Officer of the Company. The biographical details of Ms.
BFTRH - Chung are set out under the section headed “Honorary Chairman, Directors

and Senior Management Profile”.

@gmnzt ([Ext]) (FRETMR_T—=FALA+AEZEA
ARBZ REME BMRALRES - ERTRETADR 2 HFIH
BE Bt BREFEHN [KEBEE EERAEEREAE] -

e The Company Secretary ensures the Board meetings are conducted under
appropriate procedures.
NEMERRESSEENEE R TET.

e The Company Secretary prepares written resolutions or minutes and keeps
records of substantive matters discussed and decisions resolved at all Board
and Board Committee meetings.

NEMERBRAEEEREE TREeRREMARRIGACH
Ve FEANEEFHRREBMRE

e During 2016, the Company Secretary undertook not less than 15 hours of
professional training to update her skills and knowledge.

RZZE—RE - RARERET ISR FEEI AR H A
SIS

F1.2 | The board should approve the selection, C e The selection, appointment or dismissal of the Company Secretary is
appointment or dismissal of the company approved by the Board.
secretary. NEWENRE ZERFEIRESSHE
éﬁ%%%%gxéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁmé$§m
o

F1.3 | The company secretary should report to the C e The Company Secretary reports to the Board through the Chairman whilst all
board chairman and/or the chief executive. members of the Board have access to the advice of the Company Secretary.
AAMERRNESEEER/RITRERE AENEERTIRAEFGER MAEESEXBHITRGELTINE
e ZER-

F1.4 | All directors should have access to the advice C e Al Directors have full access to the advice and services of the Company
and services of the company secretary to ensure Secretary and legal and professional consultants of the Company,
that board procedures, and all applicable law, whenever necessary, to ensure compliance with all applicable law, rules and
rules and regulations, are followed. regulations, and corporate governance practices.
PRIAEESEAREARMENERMNZ B SRESHA2EERARANARIME REEREXER (WERE)
R UBRESGRFRAEEREE B ME R RS URRENMEEREE RAEIINRCEE RS
A R AR B 15 <F o o
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The board of directors (“Board”/’Directors” of Singamas
Container Holdings Limited (the “Company”) presents the
Company’s annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding
and provision of management services to its subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures. The principal activities of its
principal subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are set
out in notes 46, 18 and 19, respectively to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 135 to 136.

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The 2017 Annual General Meeting of the Company is
scheduled to be held on Thursday, 22 June 2017 (the
“AGM”). For the purposes of determining shareholders’
eligibility to attend and vote at the AGM, the register of
members of the Company will be closed as set out below:

At 4:30 pm
on Friday, 16 June 2017

Latest time to lodge transfer
documents for registration with
the Company’s share registrar

Monday, 19 June 2017 to
Thursday, 22 June 2017
(both dates inclusive)

Closure of register of members

Record date Monday, 19 June 2017
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During the above closure periods, no transfer of shares wil
be registered. To be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM,
all properly completed transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration with
the Company’s share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong no later than the aforementioned latest time.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Review of our business and performance

A review of the business of the Company and a discussion
and analysis of the Group’s performance during the year and
the material factors underlying its results and financial position
are provided in the Chairman’s Statement from pages 8 to
13, Financial Highlights from pages 4 to 5 and Frequently
Asked Questions from pages 14 to 17 of this Annual Report,
which discussion forms part of this Report of the Directors for
purposes of Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622). The outlook of the Company’s business is discussed
throughout this Annual Report.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The following are the principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) and are in addition to
the matters referred to in the Chairman’s Statement and
Frequently Asked Questions of this Annual Report:

1. Economic Conditions and Market Competition Risks
The impact of global economic conditions and market
sentiment would directly affect the business of the
Group. The slowdown of global economy generally
affected the world trade and export from the People’s
Republic of China (‘PRC”), which in turn affected
the market demand in, and the average selling price
(“ASP”) of, new dry freight containers. The Group
noted that many new containers vessel deliveries have
been postponed since 2015, which in return affected
demand in new containers as well.
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The industry faces intense competition from container
manufacturing companies concentrate in PRC. The
competitors may attempt to gain market share by
offering products at prices at or below those typically
offered by the Company. The Company may be
required to reduce prices when facing competition,
which may affect the Group’s profitabilities and growth
potential.

The Group continues to implement a series of cost
control measures and is continuing its focus in
expanding its product mix by developing more higher-
margin specialized containers thereby reducing its
dependency on specific markets.

Manpower and Retention Risks

The competition for talents has led to the risk that
the Group is not being able to attract or retain key
personnel and talents with appropriate and required
skills, experience and competence which would
meet the business objectives of the Group. The
Group will conduct regular reviews of its recruitment
and retention practices, remuneration packages and
succession plan to mitigate the risks. Moreover, in view
of continuing increase in wage rate in manufacturing
industry in China in recent years, the Group will
increase the level of automation in production in order
to reduce manpower requirements in the future and to
minimise the labour cost.
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3. Financial Risks
In the course of business activities, the Group is
exposed to a variety of financial risks, including
customers’ credit, liquidity, currency and cash flow
interest rate risks.

a. Customers’ credit risk

The Group’s and the Company’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group and the Company
due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties is arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position as disclosed in note 42b to
the consolidated financial statements.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at the end of
each reporting period to ensure the adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts, if necessary.

Details of the customers’ credit risk are set

out in note 42b to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Liquidity risk

In management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and
cash equivalents deemed adequate by
management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation
of bank borrowings and ensures compliance
with loan covenants or to timely negotiate with
the lenders if any non-compliance is expected.

Details of the liquidity risk are set out in note
42b to the consolidated financial statements.

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign
currency sales and purchases, bank balances
and cash and bank borrowings, which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk. On 11
August 2015, China government weakened
the Renminbi (‘RMB”)’s daily reference rate
by 1.9%, allowing depreciation to combat a
slump in exports. As at 31 December 2016,
the RMB’s daily reference rate was dropped
by 6.8% as compared to 31 December 2015.
Such RMB depreciation exposed the Group
to foreign currency risk as significant amount
of Group’s monetary assets and liabilities are
denominated in RMB. However, this exposure
was partially offset by the advantages taken
from such depreciation, as almost 71% cost
of sales are denominated in RMB whilst 90%
sales are denominated in US$. The Group
manages and monitors foreign exchange
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Details of the currency risk are set out in note
42b to the consolidated financial statements.
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d. Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s and the Company’s cash flow
interest rate risk primarily relates to floating
rate borrowings and variable rate bank
balances. Interest rate risk on bank balances is
considered immaterial due to short maturity. It
is the Group’s policy to keep its borrowings at
floating rate of interest so as to minimise the fair
value interest rate risk. In order to hedge against
the interest rate risk arising from the potential
increase in interest rate in relation to the term
loan, the Company entered into certain interest
rate swap contracts to partially swap the term
loan in floating rate to fixed rate.

The management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise.

Details of the cash flow interest rate risk are set
out in note 42b to the consolidated financial
statements.

IMPORTANT EVENTS SINCE THE END
OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

To the best of our Directors’ knowledge, the Company is not
aware of any other important event affecting the Company
that have occurred since the end of the financial year.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

A discussion on the Company’s environment policies
and performance as required to be disclosed pursuant to
the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) are provided in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report from pages 96
to 123 of this Annual Report.
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Compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence
to applicable laws, rules and regulations in particular, those
have significant impact on the Group. As a listed company in
Hong Kong, the share of the Company is listed on the main
board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 8 July 1993, the Group continuously
complies with the requirements under the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange including the
disclosure requirements, corporate governance provisions
and Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers therein. Under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Cap.571), the Company is required to maintain
a register of interests in shares and short positions and a
register of directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short
positions and is obliged to the disclosure requirement of
inside information. The Board will monitor the Group’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements and such policies are regularly reviewed. Any
changes in the applicable laws, rules and regulations are
brought to the attention of relevant employees and relevant
operation units from time to time.

The Group believes that employees are the valuable assets
of an enterprise and regards human resources as its
corporate wealth. The Group is committed to comply with
the requirements of the applicable laws and regulations,
such as the Privacy Ordinance, ordinances against
disability, sex, family status and races discriminations, the
Employment Ordinance, the Minimum Wage Ordinance
and the ordinances applicable to occupational safety so
as to safeguard the benefits and interests of the Group’s
employees.

As a responsible enterprise, the Group has endeavoured to
comply with laws and regulations regarding environmental
protection and adopted effective environmental technologies
to ensure its operations meet the standards and ethics in
respect of environmental protection.
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To protect the Group’s intellectual property rights, the Group
has registered its domain name and trademarks have been
applied for or registered in various classes in Hong Kong, the
PRC and other relevant jurisdictions and takes all appropriate
actions to enforce its intellectual property rights.

During the year, our Group has obtained all the approvals,
permits, consents, licences and registrations required for
our business and operations and all of them are in force.
There was no material breach of or non-compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

Relationships with employees, supplier and
customers

The Group understands that it is important to maintain
good relationship with its suppliers and customers to
fulfil its immediate and long-term goals. To maintain its
competitiveness and dominant status, the Group aims at
delivering constantly high standards of quality in the products
and service to its customers. During the year, there was no
material and significant dispute between the Group and its
suppliers and/or customers.

The Group also understands that employees are valuable
assets. The Group provides competitive remuneration
package to attract and motivate the employees. The Group
regularly reviews the remuneration package of employees
and makes necessary adjustments to conform to the market
standard. The Group also organised staff-friendly activities for
employees, in order to provide communication opportunities
among staff, which are vital to promote staff relationship and
physical fitness.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages
287 1o 288 of this annual report.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and
the Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and note 47 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December
2016, calculated under section 297 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, amounted to US$56,009,000 (2015:
US$54,010,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND
JOINT VENTURES

Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures of the Company are set out in notes 46, 18 and
19, respectively to the consolidated financial statements.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had bank balances
and cash of US$209,009,000 (2015: US$242,726,000)
and total interest-bearing debts of US$365,540,000
(2015: US$315,000,000). This represented a gearing ratio,
calculated on the basis of the Group’s total interest-bearing
debts over equity attributable to owners of the Company, of
0.69 (2015: 0.53) and a net debt to equity ratio, calculated
on the basis of the Group’s net interest-bearing debts (after
deducting bank balances and cash of US$209,009,000) over
equity attributable to owners of the Company of 0.29 (2015:
0.12).
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With the Group incurred loss before taxation due to soft
demand, although interest expense was comparable with
the same period last year, the calculation of interest coverage
ratio of the Group’s profit before interest, tax, depreciation
and amortisation (EBITDA) to total net interest expense for the
year ended 31 December 2016 was not applicable (2015:
7.8 times).

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group’s revenues are largely transacted in US Dollars
(“US$"). However, certain operating expenses are transacted
in other currencies including Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”)
and Chinese Renminbi (“RMB”). To monitor the currency
risk exposure and due to large interest rate difference
in US$ borrowings and RMB borrowings, the Group’s
interest-bearing debts balance as at 31 December 2016
were 99.96% in US$ (2015: 100%).

Of the total interest-bearing debts as at 31 December
2016, the maturity profile spread over a period of four
years with US$274,812,000 repayable within one year
and US$90,728,000 within one to four years. The Group’s
interest-bearing debts are principally on a floating rate basis.

In order to hedge against the interest rate risk arising from
the potential increase in interest rate in relation to the term
loan, the Company entered into certain interest rate swap
contracts to partially swap the term loan in floating rate to
fixed rate.

BANK BORROWINGS

Details of bank borrowings of the Group and the Company
are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements. No interest was capitalised by the Group during
the year.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

The Group had the following continuing connected
transactions during 2016:

1. On 30 December 2013, Singamas Terminals (Hong
Kong) Limited (“STHK”), a company engaged in
the business of provision of container depot and
logistics services, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a depot agreement (the
“2014 Depot Agreement”) with Pacific International
Lines (HK) Limited (“‘PILHK") to take effect from 1
January 2014, for a term of three years and ended on
31 December 2016. PILHK is currently a subsidiary
of PIL (the controling and substantial shareholder of
the Company as defined under the Listing Rules).
Accordingly, PILHK is a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules. Since the 2014
Depot Agreement involves transactions, which
occur on a recurring basis over a period of time,
the transactions constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

It was estimated that the amount of STHK’s
transactions with PILHK, on annual basis, for the three
financial years commencing from 1 January 2014
would not exceed 5% for each of the percentage
ratios, other than the profits ratio, in the threshold tests
in Rule 14A.76 of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the
transactions are only subject to the annual reporting,
announcement and annual review requirements and
exempt from the shareholders’ approval requirement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of
these continuing connected transactions have been
disclosed in the announcement published on 31
December 2013 in compliance with the Listing Rules.
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On 30 December 2013, Singamas Logistics (Tianjin)
Co., Ltd. (“SLTC”), a company engaged in the
business of provision of container depot services, is
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into an addendum to a depot agreement (the “Depot
Agreement”) with the Tianjin Branch of Pacific
International Lines (China) Ltd. (“PIL China (Tianijin
Branch)”) to take effect from 1 January 2014, for a
term of three years. In view that PIL China (Tianjin
Branch) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of PIL, PIL
China (Tianjin Branch) is a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules. Since the Depot
Agreement involves transactions, which occur on a
recurring basis over a period of time, the transactions
constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

It was estimated that the amount of SLTC’s
transactions with PIL China (Tianjin Branch), on
annual basis, for the three financial years commencing
from 1 January 2014 would not exceed 5% for
each of the percentage ratios, other than the profits
ratio, in the threshold tests in Rules 14A.76 of the
Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions are only
subject to the annual reporting, announcement and
annual review requirements and exempt from the
shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Details of these continuing
connected transactions have been disclosed in the
announcement published on 30 December 2013 in
compliance with the Listing Rules.
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On 6 October 2014, the Company (for and on
behalf of the Group) entered into a master purchase
contract (the “Master Purchase Contract 2015”) with
PIL (for and on behalf of PIL Group), for the sale
of the Equipment to PIL Group. In view that PIL is
a connected person of the Company, the entering
into the Master Purchase Contract 2015 constituted
a connected transaction. As the Master Purchase
Contract 2015 involves transactions, which occur on a
recurring basis over a period of time, the transactions
constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Each of the applicable percentage ratios (other than
profits ratio) calculated pursuant to Rule 14.07 of the
Listing Rules in respect of the proposed annual caps
for the transactions exceeds 5%. Accordingly, the
transactions contemplated under the Master Purchase
Contract 2015 are subject to annual reporting,
announcement, annual review and shareholders’
approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. After obtaining the approval from the
shareholders on 19 November 2014, the Master
Purchase Contract 2015 took effect from 1 January
2015 and will be ending on 31 December 2017.
Details of these continuing connected transactions
have been disclosed in the announcement published
on 6 October 2014 in compliance with the Listing
Rules.
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Pacific International Lines (China) Ltd. (“PIL China”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of PIL, the controlling
and substantial shareholder of the Company, had
entered into a tenancy agreement with Singamas
Container Holdings (Shanghai) Limited (‘SCSL”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, pursuant
to which PIL China leased a property to SCSL for
a period of eight and a half months commencing
from 15 April 2014 to 31 December 2014 (the “Initial
Tenancy”). As none of the applicable percentage
ratios (as defined in Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules)
in respect of total transaction amounts for the Initial
Tenancy would exceed the 0.1% thresholds, these
transactions were not subject to any annual reporting,
announcement, annual review and shareholders’
approval requirements under the Listing Rules.
The lease under the Initial Tenancy expired on 31
December 2014. On 31 December 2014, SCSL
entered into the renewed tenancy agreement with PIL
China for the renewal of the Initial Tenancy for a further
term of three years commencing from 1 January
2015 to 31 December 2017, both dates inclusive
(“Renewed Tenancy Agreement”). As PIL China is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of PIL and SCSL is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, PIL is a connected
person of the Company and PIL China is an associate
of PIL under the Listing Rules. The Renewed Tenancy
Agreement involves transactions, which will occur on
a recurring basis over a period of time; accordingly,
the transactions constitute a continuing connected
transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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As one or more of the applicable percentage
ratios (other than profits ratio which shall not
apply) calculated pursuant to Rule 14.07 of the
Listing Rules in respect of the annual cap for the
transactions is more than 0.1% but all of them are
less than 5%, under Rule 14A.76 of the Listing
Rules, the transactions therefore constitutes a
continuing connected transaction which is only
subject to the annual reporting, announcement and
annual review requirements and is exempt from the
shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Details of these continuing
connected transactions have been disclosed in the
announcement published on 31 December 2014 in
compliance with the Listing Rules.

On 14 December 2016, the Company (for and on
behalf of the Group) entered into a master services
contract (the “Master Services Contract 2017”) with
PIL (for and on behalf of PIL Group), for the provision of
container depot and logistics services to PIL Group. In
view that PIL is a connected person of the Company,
the entering into the Master Services Contract 2017
constituted a connected transaction. As the Master
Services Contract 2017 involves transactions, which
occur on a recurring basis over a period of time,
the transactions constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. The Master Services Contract 2017
takes effect from 1 January 2017 and expire on 31
December 2019.
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As one or more of the applicable percentage
ratios (other than profit ratio) calculated pursuant
to Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules in respect of the
proposed annual Caps for the transactions exceeds
0.1% but all of them are less than 5%. Accordingly,
the transactions contemplated under the Master
Services Contract 2017 are subject to annual
reporting, announcement, and annual review but are
exempted from Shareholders’ approval requirement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details
of these continuing connected transactions have
been disclosed in the announcements published
on 14 December 2016 and 23 December 2016 in
compliance with the Listing Rules.

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been
approved by the Directors and the independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed these transactions and are in the
opinion that:

@)

those continuing connected transactions between
STHK and PILHK are entered into in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group, conducted
on normal commercial terms and are entered into in
accordance with the agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the shareholders of the Company as a whole and
on terms no less favourable than those available to or
from independent third parties. The total amount of
such transactions for the year ended on 31 December
2016 was HK$8,261,972 and did not exceed the
annual cap of HK$16,000,000;
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those continuing connected transactions between
SLTC and PIL China (Tianjin Branch) are entered
into in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Group, conducted on normal commercial
terms and are entered into in accordance with
the agreements governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole and on
terms no less favourable than those available to or
from independent third parties. The total amount of
such transactions for the year ended on 31 December
2016 was RMB4,179,248 (equivalent to approximately
HK$4,900,000) and did not exceed the annual cap
of RMB14,400,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$18,246,240);

those continuing connected transactions between
the Group and PIL Group are entered into in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group,
conducted on normal commercial terms and entered
into in accordance with the agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the shareholders of the Company as
a whole and on terms no less favourable than those
available to or from independent third parties. The total
amount of such transactions for the year ended on 31
December 2016 was US$27,713,510 (equivalent to
approximately HK$215,096,000) and did not exceed
the annual cap of US$125,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$975,000,000); and

those continuing connected transactions between
SCSL and PIL China are entered into in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group, conducted
on normal commercial terms and entered into in
accordance with the agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the shareholders of the Company as a whole and
on terms no less favourable than those available to or
from independent third parties. The total amount of
such transactions for the year ended on 31 December
2016 was RMB2,941,927 (equivalent to approximately
US$445,000) and did not exceed the annual cap
of RMB5,640,791.90 (equivalent to approximately
US$909,805.15).
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company
has engaged the external auditors of the Company to
report the continuing connected transactions of the Group
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The external
auditors have reported to the Board and confirmed that for
the year 2016 the continuing connected transactions (i) have
received the approval of the Board; (i) are in accordance
with the pricing policies of the Company; (i) have been
entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing the transactions; and (iv) the continuing connected
transactions in paragraphs (1), (2), (3) and (4) above
have not exceeded the relevant caps as disclosed in the
announcements dated 31 December 2013, 30 December
2013, 6 October 2014 and 31 December 2014 respectively.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE
13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

On 24 September 2013, the Company entered into a facility
agreement (the “Facility Agreement”) with The Bank of
Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd., DBS Bank Ltd., The Hongkong
and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited, ING Bank N.V.
and United Overseas Bank Limited as the mandated lead
arrangers and other financial institutions for a term of four
years for the purpose of financing the corporate funding
requirements and the capital expenditure of the Group,
including refinancing of the existing term loan and revolving
credit facilities under the facility agreement dated 25 March
2011 and the notes issued by the Company on 14 Agpril
2011. The Facility Agreement includes conditions to the
effect that Mr. Teo Siong Seng and his family members shall
maintain the Management Control of every member of the
Group. A breach of the above conditions will constitute an
event of default under the Facility Agreement. If such an event
of default occurs, all amounts outstanding under the Facility
Agreement may become immediately due and payable.
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CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016, no asset of the Group (2015: Nil)
was pledged as securities to any third parties.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During 2016, the Company provided guarantees to banks as
securities for credit facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of
the Company in the PRC. The Group does not provide any
guarantee to any third parties and does not have contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital are set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance and has taken appropriate steps to
adopt and comply with the applicable principles and code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code during the year
ended 31 December 2016.

Further information on the Company’s corporate governance
practices is set out in the “Corporate Governance Report”.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having
made specific enquiry of the Directors, all of the Directors
have complied with, for any part of the accounting period
covered by this annual report, the required standard as set
out in the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
annual report are:

Mr. Teo Siong Seng

Mr. Chan Kwok Leung

Mr. Teo Tiou Seng

Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca
Mr. Kuan Kim Kin#

Mr. Tan Chor Kee*

Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David*
Mr. Lau Ho Kit, lvan*

Mr. Ong Ka Thai*

Mr. Yang, Victor*

# Non-executive Director
* Independent Non-executive Director

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s articles
of association (“Articles”), at each AGM one-third of the
Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at
an AGM at least once every three years but shall be eligible
for re-election.

The term of office for non-executive Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) is for a year and is
subject to retirement and re-election at the annual general
meeting in accordance with the Articles.

The Company has received annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of Listing Rules from
each of Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David, Mr. Lau Ho Kit, lvan, Mr.
Ong Ka Thai and Mr. Yang, Victor and considered them as
independent.
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The names of directors who have served on the boards of
the subsidiaries of the Company (the “Subsidiaries” during
the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to the date of this

report, are set out below:—
(in alphabetical order)

Current directors of Subsidiaries:
CHAN Kwok Leung
CHENG Chih Hsin
CHU Chee Leong
CHUNG Pui King, Rebecca
HE Jian Xu

HSU Yung Ming

LAl Zhi Yong

LAM Gar Wing, Debbie
MA Wei Bo Kirby

PAN Chun Ling

QIAN Ming

REN Yu Dong

SUN Da Peng

Takao SHINOHARA
TEO Siong Seng

TEO Tiou Seng

TEO Teng Seng
WANG Wen Zhen
WANG Zhi Qiang
WENG Sheng Qiang
WU Bing Hong

WU Ding Xiang

XU Jin Yong

XU Sun Tong

YANG Shao Peng

YIP Ching Han
ZHANG Tian Bao
ZHAQO Bing

ZHAQO Pei Cong

Resigned directors of Subsidiaries:
CHOI Yong Suk

Masayuki NOSOHARA

Paal WILSGAARD

Per Ingar Heer AMLIE

SHI Zhen Xing

Tore ERTZAAS

YU Bing
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Paal WILSGAARD
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests or short positions of
the Directors in the shares of the Company (the “Shares”),
underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) which (a) were
required notification to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which any such Director is taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or
which (b) were required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO
to be entered into the register maintained by the Company; or
which (c) were required, pursuant to Model Code contained
in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange were as follows:

(A) Ordinary Shares of the Company

ESRRD - HEARD S ERER 2

BmRKE

RZZE—RE+-A=+—H FEBFEX
ARREAREEE (TR (BHERAER
1) SEXVER) MR AT (T8 ]) - AAT]
HBARGD REFEABEIRE (F7 kBB
) EXVERET R ESD AR EBAMA DT B
Rz EmSKR (BEEERE (EH RS
BIGH) 2 BBIEEBRRIAR A 2 i
FRR)  KOBEKE (EHRAEE) &
35216 E RN AR AR ZGERIFE 2 &
ARz S SOA R ROBKEHN LT
ARy EM BT ABERETESR HHFRETH
(MRESTRI) ) BAA R B KB R P2 s sk
AT

A ARAEBER

Number of Shares/
Underlying Shares Held Percentage of
BEZRG/HERGHE Total Issued
Personal Corporate Total Shares
Name Capacity Interest Interest Other Interest  {EEPBERT
B L BARSR AEER Hith BER ROBML
Mr. Teo Siong Seng (Note 1) Beneficial Owner 51,884,250 - - 51,884,250 2.15
RINB LA (Hit1) EREAA
Mr. Chan Kwok Leung (Note 2) Beneficial Owner 2,287,050 - - 2,287,050 0.09
BREIRSE A (Hi22) EHBEA
Mr. Teo Tiou Seng (Note 3) Beneficial Owner 668,730 - - 668,730 0.03
RPBEE (H323) ERBEEA
Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca Beneficial Owner 1,062,525 - - 1,062,525 0.04
(Note 4) BREAA
BREt (#it4)
Mr. Kuan Kim Kin (Note 5) Beneficial Owner 668,730 - - 668,730 0.03
BRREE (Hits) EREAA
Mr. Ong Ka Thai (Note 6) Beneficial Owner 668,730 - - 668,730 0.03
ERR%4E (Hit6) EHBEA
Mr. Tan Chor Kee (Note 7) Spouse Interest - - 6,000 6,000 0.00
BRI (f57) FeBREs
Mr. Yang, Victor (Note §) Beneficial Owner 120,000 - - 120,000 0.00
BEREE (Hits) ERBEAA
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Notes:

(1)

@

(&

“)

©

©

(7)

©

The personal interest of Mr. Teo Siong Seng represents the
interest in 42,377,250 Shares and interest in 9,507,000
underlying Shares in respect of the share options granted
by the Company, the details of which are stated in the
following section “Share Options”.

The personal interest of M. Chan Kwok Leung represents
the interest in 2,287,050 underlying Shares in respect of the
share options granted by the Company, the details of which
are stated in the following section "Share Options”.

The personal interest of Mr. Teo Tiou Seng represents
the interest in 196,780 Shares and interest in 471,950
underlying Shares in respect of the share options granted
by the Company, the details of which are stated in the
following section “Share Options”.

The personal interest of Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca
represents the interest in 195,291 Shares and interest in
867,234 underlying Shares in respect of the share options
granted by the Company; the details of which are stated in
the following section “Share Options”.

The personal interest of Mr. Kuan Kim Kin represents
the interest in 104,000 Shares and interest in 564,730
underlying Shares in respect of the share options granted
by the Company, the details of which are stated in the
following section “Share Options”.

The personal interest of M. Ong Ka Thai represents the
interest in 52,000 Shares and interest in 616,730 underlying
Shares in respect of the share options granted by the
Company, the details of which are stated in the following
section “Share QOptions”.

Ms. Lee Tew Guan, spouse of Mr. Tan Chor Kee held 6,000
Shares. Mr. Tan Chor Kee is deemed to be interested in
6,000 Shares held by Ms. Lee Tew Guan.

The personal interest of Mr. Yang, Victor represents the
interest in 120,000 underlying Shares in respect of the
share options granted by the Company, the details of which
are stated in the following section “Share Options”.

All the interests disclosed above represent long
position in the Shares and underlying Shares.
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. —
(B) Share Options (B) EEfziE
Particulars of the share option scheme adopted by ARAIN—_ZETLF A —BEMEE
the Company on 1 June 2007 (the “Option Scheme”) AeEETE ([EEMERTE ) 2 FFIBERER
are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial B BRERMIFESS -
statements.
Movements of the share options under the Option RENRN - BERERTE TR EZE) N
Scheme during the year are as follows: N
Number of Share Options
BRERE
As at As at
1 January 31 December
2016 2016
i ® Exercise
Name/Category %/ 58% —E-RE Granted Exercised Lapsed ZE-RE Grant Date Exercisable Period Price
of Participants 245 -fA-A B [y %% t=A=1-8H BHAH Eiid: EE
Notesa, bé ¢) HKS
(Biita, b Ke) BT
Directors gz
M.TeoSongSeng  ElEEE 2613000 - - - 2613000 W07 28/6/2008-27/6/2017 398
2613000 . . . 2613000 WE00T 28/6/2009-27/6/2017 38
2613000 - - - 2613000 W07 28/6/2010-27/6/2017 39
1333 . . . 1333 10010 1/71011-30/6/2020 138
833333 - - - 83333 VTR0 1/712012-30/6/2020 138
8333 . . . 83333 IR010 1/71013-30/6/2020 138
9,507,000 - - - 9,507,000
M: ChenKiwokLeng BB %4 522600 . . . 522600 WE00T 28/6/2008-27/6/2017 38
522600 - - - 522,600 W07 28/6/2009-27/6/2017 39
522600 . . . 522,600 WE00T 28/6/2010-27/6/2017 38
750 - - - 750 §/8/2008 §/8/2009-5/82018 148
750 . . . 750 §/8/2008 §/8/2010-5/8/2018 148
217,750 - - - 217,750 §/8/2008 §/8/2011-5/82018 148
166,666 . . . 166,666 1IR010 1/712011-30/6/2020 138
166,667 - - - 166,667 VTR010 1/7/9012-30/6/2020 138
166,667 . . . 166,667 IR010 1/71013-30/6/2020 138
2,287,050 - - - 2,087,050
MiTeoTouSeng  EHEsE 130,650 . . . 130650 WE00T 28/6/2008-27/6/2017 38
130650 - - - 130650 W00 28/6/2009-27/6/2017 39
130,650 . . . 130650 WE00T 28/6/2010-27/6/2017 38
40,000 - - - 40,000 VTR0I0 1/7/2012-30/6/2020 138
40000 . . . 40,000 IR010 171013-30/6/2020 138
471,950 - - - 471,950
Ms.ChungPuKing, LT 261,300 - . . 21300 28082007 28/06/2008-27/06/2017 398
Rebecca 261,300 - - - /130 28082007 2806/2009-27/06/2017 39
261,300 . . . %1300 8082007 28/06/2010-27/06/2017 38
1 - - - 1 OMOTA0I0  0107/2012-30/06/2020 138
033 . . . @33 0107010 O1/07/2013-30/06/2020 138
867,234 - - - 867,23
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Number of Share Options
BREHE

As at As at

1 January 31 December

2016 2016
IS ® Exercise
Name/Category e/ 8% —E-R% Granted Exercised Lapsed —E-RE Grant Date Exercisable Period Price
of Participants 245 -B-R Rl Fig:d %% +=A=1+-AH REAH e e
Notesa, bé ¢) HK$
(Hita b Re) AT
Mr. Kuan Kim Kin BsELE 130,650 - - - 130,650 28/6/2007 28/6/2008-27/6/2017 393
130,650 - - - 130,650 28/6/2007 28/6/2009-27/6/2017 393
130,650 - - - 130,650 28/6/2007 28/6/2010-27/6/2017 393
260 - - - 260 6/8/2008 6/8/2009-5/8/2018 148
260 - - - 260 6/8/2008 6/8/2010-5/8/2018 148
52,260 - - - 52,260 6/8/2008 6/8/2011-5/8/2018 148
40,000 - - - 40,000 1/7/2010 1/7/2011-30/6/2020 1.38
40,000 - - - 40,000 1/7/2010 1/7/2012-30/6/2020 1.38
40,000 - - - 40,000 1/7/2010 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 1.38

564,730 - - - 564,730
Mr. Ong Ka Thai IFFRE 130,650 - - - 130,650 28/6/2007 28/6/2008-27/6/2017 393
130,650 - - - 130,650 28/6/2007 28/6/2009-27/6/2017 393
130,650 - - - 130,650 28/6/2007 28/6/2010-27/6/2017 393
260 - - - 260 6/8/2008 6/8/2009-5/8/2018 148
52,260 - - - 52,260 6/8/2008 6/8/2010-5/8/2018 148
52,260 - - - 52,260 6/8/2008 6/8/2011-5/8/2018 148
40,000 - - - 40,000 1/7/2010 1/7/2011-30/6/2020 1.38
40,000 - - - 40,000 1/7/2010 1/7/2012-30/6/2020 1.38
40,000 - - - 40,000 1/7/2010 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 1.38

616,730 - - - 616,730
Mr. Yang, Victor BEHLE 40,000 - - - 40,000 1/7/2010 1/7/2011-30/6/2020 1.38
40,000 - - - 40,000 1/7/2010 1/7/2012-30/6/2020 1.38
40,000 - - - 40,000 1/7/2010 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 1.38

120,000 - - - 120,000

Sub-totel it 14,434,694 - - - 14,434,604

Employees in aggregate [EEAH

Note ) (Hid) 391,050 - - - 391,950 26007 28/6/2008-27/6/2017 3%
391,950 - - - 391,950 28/6/2007 28/6/2009-27/6/2017 393
391,950 - - - 391,950 28/6/2007 28/6/2010-27/6/2017 393
147,925 - - - 147,925 6/8/2008 6/8/2011-5/8/2018 148
84,668 - - - 84,668 1/7/2010 1/7/2011-30/6/2020 1.38
136,667 - - - 136,667 1/7/2010 1/7/2012-30/6/2020 1.38
136,665 - - - 136,665 1/7/2010 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 1.38

Subota At 1,681,775 - - - 1681775
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Number of Share Options
BREYR
As at As at
1 January 31 December
2016 2016
i ® Exercise
Name/Category e/ 8% B Granted Exercised Lapsed —E-RE Grant Date Exercisable Period Price
of Participants 245 -B-R Rl fig:d %% +=A=1+-A8 REAS Eagid | 1fEE
Notes &, b & ) HKS
(frita, b Kc) oy
Al other employees Pﬁﬁﬁf@ﬁa 348,400 - - - 348,400 28/6/2007  28/6/2008-27/6/2017 393
in aggregate A4 348,400 - - - 348,400 28/6/2007 28/6/2009-27/6/2017 393
348,400 - - - 348,400 28/6/2007 28/6/2010-27/6/2017 398
118,954 - - - 118,954 6/8/2008 6/8/2009-5/8/2018 148
118,953 - - - 118953 6/8/2008 6/8/2010-5/8/2018 148
202,953 - - - 202,953 6/8/2008 6/8/2011-5/8/2018 148
Sub-total Nt 1,486,060 - - - 1,486,060
Total st 17,602,529 - - - 17,602,629
Notes: Biat -
@ The share options with the exercise price of HK$3.93 are @ KUTITIEEI.93E T R BE IR #E 2 77 Bl =
vested and exercisable in three tranches on 28 June 2008, FEENFANA=ZFNAH ZFFEAFNA
2009 and 2010 respectively and up to 27 June 2017. ZFNARZF-FFNA=F/THS=
B9k BEEE R Al (R 7T(E ﬁ/)‘?@?_—c_ ==
_‘I‘_’ﬁ/\ﬁ_ "/'fEJ_ﬁ °
) The share options with the exercise price of HK$1.48 are b) KUITIEE1.48E T RIFERIEE 7 FIR = F
vested and exercisable in three tranches on 6 August 2009, FEAFENANH  —FE—FF)\HNHE
2010 and 2011 respectively and up to 5 August 2018. —EFE——F NANAZ =G BEER
AR T = FE—NFENNARH
o
© The share options with the exercise price of HK$1.38 are © UITIEE1.38E T RIFEREE 7 FIR = F
vested and exercisable in three tranches on 1 July 2011, ——F+A—H ZF——F+A-HAK
2012 and 2013 respectively and up to 30 June 2020. —E—=FLA—AZ=EGEBEER
AT T - E—FFNA =1
Ak
@ Employees are working under employment contracts that @ B01% (IEBIXDI) Arism [EEE 4]
are regarded as “continuous contracts” for the purposes of TIERES -

the Employment Ordinance.
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At no time during the year was the Company, its holding
company, fellow subsidiaries or any of its subsidiaries a party
of any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

Save as disclosed above, none of Directors nor their
associates, had any other interests or short positions in the
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required notification to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which any such Director or chief executive is taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or
which (b) were required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO
to be entered into the register maintained by the Company;
or which (c) were required, pursuant to the Model Code
contained in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company
or the Stock Exchange and none of Directors, nor their
spouse or children under the age of 18, had any right to
subscribe for securities of the Company, or had exercised any
such right during the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2016, according to the register kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, and so
far as was known to any Director or chief executive of the
Company, the following persons (other than the interests
of certain Directors disclosed under the section headed
“Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures” above), had an interest or a short
position in the Shares and underlying Shares which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

FERRz2ER

R-ZZE-—RE+_A=+—0 REARAR

(BrLHEGN) £336FFEZELMA
IR AR ARBEZTSSRITHABR
o TIAL (BRIAL TEFERRD - BERD
FERELEELRR ] —BERBETESH
B2z RO RBERNES 2 Ea
SokE - WARE (5 RHEEERD) EXVED
F2R3DBWAARRIRENIT

Percentage of

Number of Ordinary Shares Total Issued
EBERRE Shares
Name Notes  Direct Interest Indirect Interest HEEE BT
#®E Bt BEiEkR EEfEm R&OBDE
Mr. Chang Yun Chung (1) 493,291 (¥ 993,825,345 (L) 41.14
wAREE
Madam Lee Kheng Wah @) - 994,318,636 (L)* 41.14
FBELL
PIL (1) 993,825,345 (L)* - 4112
N
PIL Holdings Pte. Ltd. (1) - 993,825,345 (L)* 4112
Y.C. Chang & Sons Private Limited 3) - 993,825,345 (L)* 4112
Prime Capital Management
(Cayman) Limited 166,061,336 (L)* - 6.87
Edgbaston Investment Partners LLP 120,916,000 (L)* - 5.00
(L)# — Long Position (L#—4fE
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Notes:

(1) A total of 993,825,345 Shares are directly held by PIL. PIL is
100% owned by PIL Holdings Pte. Ltd. and Mr. Chang Yun Chung
is interested, in aggregate, in 496,800,000 shares representing
89.61% of the issued share capital of PIL Holdings Pte. Ltd.. Mr.
Chang Yun Chung’s interest in shares of PIL Holdings Pte. Ltd.
comprises a personal interest in 79,275,000 shares and corporate
interests in 175,600,000 shares through South Pacific International
Holdings Limited, a company in which he holds 2.02% of the issued
share capital and 242,025,000 shares through Y.C. Chang & Sons
Private Limited, a company in which he holds 5.71% of the issued
share capital. Messrs. Teo Siong Seng and Teo Tiou Seng, Directors,
both of their interests in shares of PIL Holdings Pte. Ltd. comprise
personal interests in 3,600,000 shares and 2,400,000 shares
respectively and representing 0.65% and 0.43% of the issued share
capital of PIL Holdings Pte. Ltd..

@) Maadam Lee Kheng Wah, as the spouse of Mr. Chang Yun Chung, s
deemed to be interested in these Shares.

€ PIL is a wholly-owned subsidiary of PIL Holdings Pte. Ltd. in which
Y.C. Chang & Sons Private Limited holds more than one-third of
interests in PIL Holdings Pte. Ltd.. Accordingly, Y.C. Chang & Sons
Private Limited indirectly controls one-third or more of the voting
rights in the shareholders’ meeting of PIL, in accordance with SFO,
Y.C. Chang & Sons Private Limited is deemed to be interested in
PIL’s interests in the Company’s issued Shares.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other person known
to the Directors or chief executive, other than the Directors
or chief executive of the Company, who, as at 31 December
2016, had an interest or a short position in the Shares and
underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENT

As at 31 December 2016, no Directors or proposed directors
had any existing service contract or proposed service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which
is not terminable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Other than disclosed in note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements (which were approved by the independent
non-executive Directors and in the opinion of the Directors
were carried out on normal commercial terms and in ordinary
course of the Group’s business), no material transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company, its immediate
and ultimate holding company, fellow subsidiaries or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of
the Company or an entity connected with a director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has insured and maintained directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance throughout the year, which provides
appropriate cover to certain legal actions brought against its
directors and officers. The permitted indemnity provision is
in force for the benefit of the Directors as required by section
470 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) when this report
prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance with
section 391(1)(@) of the Companies Ordinance.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of the Group’s purchases and sales

Report of The Directors EE & &

FERFREER

AEEREREIEEBETREIZHER LT

attributable to major suppliers and customers are as follows: P Z B DL :
Percentage
B
Percentage of purchases attributable to REEZAEEEMMLBERE 17.9%
the Group’s largest supplier
Percentage of purchases attributable to RNEE O AREEEMMEBERE 38.5%
the Group’s five largest suppliers
Percentage of sales attributable to REEZABEPHh &R 14.0%
the Group’s largest customer
Percentage of sales attributable to REBRARBRFPAGEXER 40.5%

the Group’s five largest customers

During the year, none of the Directors nor their associates
nor any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had an
interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company has
not entered into any equity-linked agreement.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company was entered into or existed during the year.

REN FEFKEBHEA TSERBR (5
BB AR RRZ RAES% ) R EHE £
AEFEHEEMEL P HE A Em-

BE - HENEE EHESE

AN RS E A BB A R AR A BB E - i
ESERIAAFMER EHES

B SR 2 175 R
BE-T—AF+-A=+—ALFE AL
B3 45T S AE A BRI 4 40 o

EEEH

RRABRFERLEAT LS FHEREGHEARF]
ERSIEMERBNRHF 2 EERITREL

93



94

Report of The Directors EE&# %

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the Retirement Benefits Scheme are set out in note
12 to the consolidated financial statements.

PARTICULARS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out on pages 18 to
26 under the “Honorary Chairman, Directors and Senior
Management Profile” section of this annual report.

REMUNERATION POLICIES AND
EMPLOYEE RELATIONS

The remuneration policy for the employees of the Company
is set by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their
merit, qualification and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management
of the Group are decided by the Remuneration Committee
with reference to the Group’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group employed 9,225
(2015: 9,465) full-time employees. Staff costs (including
Directors’ emoluments) amounted to US$ 129,049,000
(2015: US$127,530,000) for the year. All full-time salaried
employees, except for factory workers and contract
employees, are being paid on a monthly basis, plus a
discretionary performance bonus. Factory workers are
being remunerated based on a basic wage plus production
incentive. Share options are also being offered to selected
grantees of the Group. The Group ensures that the pay levels
of its employees are competitive and employees are awarded
on a performance related basis within the general framework
of the Group’s salary and bonus system. To further enhance
the capability of its human resource, the Group provides
on-the-job training to its employees.
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Other than the subsidiaries in the PRC, neither the Company
nor any of its other subsidiaries has established labour union.
The Company and its subsidiaries, however, are not subject
to any collective agreements. The Group has maintained
good relationships with its employees. None of the Group’s
employees is represented by a labour union.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at
the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this Annual
Report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float
as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

A resolution for the re-appointment of Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as external auditors of the Company is to
be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board

Teo Siong Seng

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 30 March 2017
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2016 has been a very challenging year. Due to the slow-down
of China export as well as the downturn of the shipping
industry, the demand and the average selling price of new
dry freight containers have been affected. Fortunately, the
China export market slowly recovered by the fourth quarter
of 2016, same as to the shipping industry. In addition,
China strengthens environmental laws imposing harsher
punishments for polluting factories as well as stringent labour
protection after a number of improvements made to the
labour rights in China. Despite the economic, environmental,
and social challenges we faced, the Group has no doubt to
commit ourselves to sustainability in our businesses.

Sustainability is a responsibility and a key success factor
for long-term competitiveness. While we implement our
sustainability approach in line with business objectives, we
also recognise how important our stakeholders are to the way
we conduct business in the communities where we operate.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016
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Over the past years, we spent continuous efforts to develop
our strategies and governance structure. The Board has
overall responsibility for developing Environmental, Social
and Governmental strategy and reviewing the Environmental,
Social and Governance report. We formed a highly engaged
Environmental, Social and Governance team, who had
contributed to the sustainability efforts in our Group with
key deliverables: to better manage our businesses, heighten
performance levels and introduce sustainability development
into our work processes. It is our obligation to manage our
Group to be in a better shape than ever before. The high
levels of trust and engagement shown by our employees are
an essential element in reaching our goals.

The coming year will be challenging for our businesses,
but also one with plenty of opportunities for those who are
prepared to seize these opportunities. We believe we are on
the right track in bringing sustainability to our Group in these
volatile times.

By order of the Board
Chan Kwok Leung
Executive Director and Chief Operating Officer

Hong Kong, 30 March 2017
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EXPLANATION ON PREPARATION

The Group issued its second Environmental, Social and
Governance Report for the 2016 financial year (‘FY 2016”).

The report content is prepared according to the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”). It covers the information and activities of our
headquarters in Hong Kong and our factories in mainland
China located in Huizhou, Xiamen, Shanghai, Qidong,
Ningbo, Qingdao, Yixing and Tianjin. Our container depots,
terminals and logistics businesses represent a relatively small
proportion of the Group’s overall revenue and are therefore
not included in this report.

The reporting period covered in this report is FY 2016 (from
1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016), which is the same
financial period covered in the 2016 annual report. This report
is issued annually together with our annual report.

The content of this report includes:

° Environment
v Emission and wastes management
v Resources management
v Environmental impact

° Society

v Product responsibility
Supply chain management
Corporate Integrity
Human Resource Management
Labour standards
Health and Safety

AN
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OUR VISION AND MISSION

The Group continues to strive for efficiency, innovation
and proactivity, and its customer-oriented focus prioritises
quality. We leverage our advanced technology to maximise
our corporate performance, corporate values and long-
term returns to shareholders and society, and share the
achievement with our staff. We are committed to making
the container industry chain energy-efficient, environmentally
friendly and sustainable, and we aim to provide fast,
convenient container logistics service solutions, which gain
widespread recognition and contribute positively to society.

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT
(TO DEFINE THE PROCESS OF
MATERIAL ASPECTS AND RESULTS)

We engaged an independent consultant to review
material aspects most relevant to our business and to our
stakeholders. In FY2015, we have conducted a research with
our internal stakeholders and prioritized the list of aspects
with materiality. A review process was conducted this year to
see if any adjustment of the materiality matrix is needed this
year. Since there was no significant change of our business
in FY2016 as compared to last year, the material aspects
generally remain applicable and appropriate. “Environmental
& natural resources” is moved to the most material brick due
to our investments and efforts in replacing solvent borne paint
with waterborne paint in compliance with the convention of
industry association.
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According to the materiality matrix, we have identified the
aspects most relevant to both the Group as well as the
stakeholders in descending order of significance as listed
below. We will disclose our management policies and
performances accordingly.

° Environmental and natural resources
° Product responsibility

° Emissions

° Health & safety

o Use of resources

o Supply chain management

Although the aspects below are relatively less important either
to the Group or to the stakeholders, we have still included
their basic management approaches in this report.

o Employment and labour standards
o Anti-corruption
o Development & training

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT
(TO IDENTIFY THE PROCESSES OF THE

FOLLOWING:

1) MAJOR STAKEHOLDERS;
2) ISSUES CONCERNING STAKEHOLDERS;

Environmental, Social and Governance Report B - &R ERHE

KHENSE
(FARBEBIL N EHARE

1V)EERDE

3) HOW TO ENABLE STAKEHOLDERS

TO PARTICIPATE)

The Group’s major stakeholders include customers,
employees, shareholders and investors, the government,
suppliers, and the community in which we operate. We
believe that stakeholder’s participation are the basis for

formulating a sustainable development strategy and are
necessary for our long-term sustainable development.

The following table sets out our major stakeholders’ main
concerns, as well as the respective communication channels:

2) F I ENEIEEE;
) MAMBFHENSHEE)

AEENIZRHNERBREL, BT KRE
WEE  BF - HEREEAEAEER - 3
PIAEE {0 & )2 B2 I E Al A8 R SR K )
i

EEEREFFEERNREST -

TEBESIE EHAE BEHEE  IARAAME
RS R

Labour conditions; complaints; promotion
opportunities; corporate integrity

Corporate culture

FeRM HEEI BELR
BEGM: B RS CEAE
rEXE

Major stakeholders Main concerns Communication channels
TEEHA BEsE BRERE
Customers e Product quality, price and delivery date - Telephone/email
P e Corporate financial performance - Customer quality evaluation form
e Corporate reputation and brand image - Customer visit or factory review
e Market demand - Industry exhibition
o EmmE BREXEAH - BE/ETHH
o KEMBIR - EBEFmEEXR
o REEERMBER - EP2BUIREX
. TBER - T¥RER
Employees e Salaries and welfare; educational training; | — Occupational health and safety training
8T occupational safety - Regular meetings

- Publications/notice boards in the offices
- Suggestion boxes/mail boxes/email

- Work performance evaluation

- BERERHEZ2E

- TEHEER

- BIZEFY/ETR

- BRM/ER/ETBH

- I{ERENZ

Shareholders and investors

BREEEE

Corporate financial performance; dividends
policy

Corporate governance and integrity;
risk management; laws and regulations
compliance

DEMBIN : REBER
SEERENRE ARER EERERN
B

— Annual and interim results announcement
- Annual report and interim report

- Corporate website

- RFERPHEERMBG

- FHRRPHEE

- REAEL
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Major stakeholders Main concerns Communication channels
TEERA BEEE BREERE
Government e Environmental pollution; production safety; | — Government website
T energy conservation and emission reduction | —  Official documents/meetings
e Labour conditions; laws and regulations | — Written reports/visits
compliance; economic contribution; anti- | —  Monitoring/inspection
corruption - BUR#h
o REHE REREEHEAY - AX/EFE
o BEIRMFOEERERNER: KEER: |- XERS/FEH
k&R - EB/RE
Suppliers e Quality, price and delivery date of raw | — Telephone/email
HEn materials - Site visits
e Corporate financial conditions - Suppliers” annual audit
o MHME BREXEAH - BE/ETBH
o KEBIN - EMER
- HERFEER
Local community e Environmental pollution; construction of local | —  Participation in community activities
Bt facilities; community feedback - Donation/sponsorship
o RFFE MHER HEME - BEMETH
- BRER
ENVIRONMENT BIR
.  Emission and waste management . HEMANREEYEIE

The Group attends to the possible impact of container
production on the environment, and considers
environmental protection an important task during
its production and operating activities. The Group’s
major environmental impact mainly relates to
energy consumption and waste generation. We are
committed to the following to minimise our impact on
the environment:

o Complying with applicable laws, regulations
and other legal requirements relating to
environmental protection

° Ensuring the production facilities comply with
ISO 14001
° Ensuring there are sufficient investments in

environmentally friendly facilities and practices,
and that they operate safely and effectively
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° Reinforcing promotion of environmental
conservation and educational training, and
enhancing staff's environmental awareness

° Incorporating environmental targets into our
business decisions

We started implementing the ISO 14001
environmental management system in 2013 within
the Group. Each of our factories, as well as our
management headquarters in Shanghai, has obtained
the accreditation in ISO 14001 environmental
management standards since October 2014. The
establishment of the environmental management
system has improved environmental management
standards in our factories by laying down a solid
management foundation that focuses on energy
conservation and emission reduction, and on
achieving our sustainable development objectives.

1. Air emissions

Applying coating to containers is an important
process in container manufacturing, and the
volatile organic compounds (VOCs) contained
in coating raw materials is an air pollutant.
The governance of industrial waste gas
containing VOCs is therefore the focus of major
environmental work and control in the container
manufacturing industry.
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The Group has always placed great emphasis
on the control and governance of organic
waste gas generated during the production
process. It has a separate, confined area for
its coating operations. In addition, each plant
has special waste gas treatment facilities —
the industrial waste gas generated during the
production process is collected and treated
to ensure the national and local environmental
departments’ emission standards are met
prior to discharging to the atmosphere. The
Group’s Technology & Development Centre
has set up a project resource management
team, which is responsible for managing the
environmental affairs of the Group. Each plant
also has a “Health, Safety and Environmental
department”, a special environmental equipment
management team and a comprehensive
environmental management system, to ensure
the treatment facilities at each plant operate
safely, effectively and systematically. All factories
have already complied with the requirement of
Safety Production Act ({% & A E %)) to have
at least one full-time safety production manager
to ensure that the latest environmental and
safety requirements can be implemented at the
factories.

The implementation of the amended “Law
of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Atmospheric
Pollution” on 1 January 2016, and the State
Council’s Air Pollution Prevention and Control
Action Plan (also known as “Ten Articles”) (
Bt (KRR a1TEEE)), aimed
to improve the atmospheric environmental
quality and put forward new requirements for
enterprises’ environmental protection work.
To comply with the new requirements, the
Group is actively exploring and testing the
use of waterborne paint, implementing the
“Prohibition of the solvent borne and Promotion
of the waterborne” (ZE)i#E7K ) activity which
is organised by the industry association in form
of convention, and is putting funds to upgrade
and renovate the coating lines in every plant. It
aims to transform the corporate environmental
governance from “end terminal” to “source
control”.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016
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Waste water and waste management

All of the Group’s factories are equipped with
special sewage treatment pools, and industrial
waste water is directed to the production lines
for reuse after being treated in the sewage
treatment system. Treating and reusing
industrial waste water not only greatly reduces
the use of water, but also fulfils the goal of
“zero waste water emissions” in the production
process.

The Solid Waste Pollution Prevention Act ({[&]
BEREW) )5 R IRIENT JAE)) provides detailed
guidelines that all storage, transportation and
disposal of solid wastes must be processed
by the qualified and certified hazardous waste
disposal units. All of the Group’s factories are
strictly complied with the regulations in handling
hazardous waste e.g. paint residue.

For waste management, a garbage classification
system is in place to sort production wastes.
The most crucial type of hazardous waste
produces by factories is paint residue. Each
factory carries out stringent management and
disposal of hazardous waste in accordance
with national laws and regulations. Every
plant has a hazardous waste storage location
which fulfils the conditions required by the
environmental protection departments for
storage of hazardous waste. It must be a fixed
premises in anti-rain and anti-leakage structure
and with anti-theft system. The Group has
established a comprehensive hazardous waste
management system and the corresponding
emergency plan, which are managed by
professional hazardous waste management
staff. The Group also works with institutions
which are qualified to dispose hazardous waste
to handle the hazardous waste.
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Long-term goal: As an environmentally responsible
enterprise, the Group will focus on industrial
development and social responsibility, implement
sustainable development strategies, and strive to
achieve zero VOC emissions which goes beyond the
legal requirements which only needs to maintain VOC
emissions at an acceptable level.

Resource Management

1.

Energy management

Energy conservation and emission reduction,
advocating green operation:

Global warming is one of the biggest
environmental challenges we are facing
today. All enterprises should be responsible
for reducing greenhouse gas emissions
and protecting the environment. The Group
adheres to the concept of “energy conservation
and emission reduction leads to green
production” and continuously introduces the
elite management concept. We leverage such
measures in technology re-engineering and
innovation to continue escalating enterprise
energy management standards, improving
production efficiency and reducing energy
consumption.

Solar panels on the roof of
our factory in Qidong

BERILBER X G FEEIR
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Most of the energy consumed during
production is electric power, as well as some
diesel oil. We aim to improve our energy
utilisation rate to achieve low-carbon practices
and emission reduction throughout our
production and operation, and strive to save
electricity and develop renewable energy. Most
of our factories are equipped with high-density
lighting boards to increase natural daylight in
workshops and reduce electricity consumption
from lighting during the day. In addition, to
supplement its energy supply, the Qidong plant
has installed solar panels on its roof to generate
clean energy, reducing the consumption of
traditional energy to a certain extent.

At the same time, the Group actively
implements the “green office” concept and
strives to reduce office energy consumption.
It also vigorously promotes a paperless office
and encourages staff to reduce electricity and
water usage in their daily work to create a green
office.

2. Water resource management

The Group has a strong focus on the water
conservation, and therefore tries to prevent
water pollution that can result from production
and operation processes. It promotes sewage
treatment and reuse, so as to reduce the
amount of water used and ensure water is
used sustainably. Our factories build their own
sewage treatment pools to handle sewage
generated by production lines. After treatment,
the sewage is redirected into production lines to
enable industrial sewage from factories to reach
the “zero emission” standard.

Long-term goal: In the future, the Group will actively
promote a low-carbon economy and sustainable
development, and will be increasingly socially
responsible. Through our ongoing efforts, the Group
will achieve its goal of reducing the usage of electricity
and cutting carbon emissions.
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Environmental impact

Although advancements in manufacturing have
brought unprecedented prosperity to society, it has
also had a serious impact on the natural environment.
In today’s modern society, protecting nature and
the environment has become an inescapable social
responsibility for every enterprise. As a socially
responsible enterprise, we constantly look for
ways to maximise benefits with minimal resources
consumption and environmental impact, and continue
to strive for sustainable development.

With respect to minimising the environmental impact,
we mainly focus on the treatment and emission
reduction of VOCs. In addition to changing the coating
process and transforming corporate environmental
governance, we also proactively participate in effective
emission reduction through “source control”.

By actively participating in the VOC governance action
of the container industry as well as implementing
and suggesting the pledging of the “China Container
Industry Association VOCs Governance Self-Discipline
Convention” ((REI&EFAEITEHEVOCSHE B
A#7)) with the China Container Industry Association
and other counterparts in March 2016, we hope
to achieve the “Prohibition of the solvent borne,
Promotion of the waterborne” (Z£5M#7K) vision in
the whole industry, and fully adopt waterborne paint
to minimise the impact of industrial production on the
environment.
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As waterborne paint for coatings is water-soluble
(does not include volatile organic solvents), it is an ideal
method for addressing the air pollution that comes
from traditional spray-painting. We are proactively
involved in promoting waterborne paint. Since July
2016, our factory in Huizhou firstly adopted the
waterborne paint for all production. In addition, our
largest production base, in Qidong, has equipped the
facilities which are able to produce containers using
waterborne paint since it was established in 2012.
Through reinvestment in their production facilities, the
remaining factories are preparing to upgrade their
coating production lines starting from April 2017.

In 2017, we plan to invest a large amount of capital
into transforming the coating facilities of every factory
into production lines which are capable to mass-
produce waterborne paint containers. At the same
time, we work closely with our customers and paint
suppliers, and test batches of waterborne paint
containers produced at each of our factories. By
identifying the characteristics and improvement
measures of waterborne paint application, and using
the experience we have gained in the waterborne
paint container production process, we have a solid
foundation to comprehensively market waterborne
paint containers in the future.
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Waterborne paint container
produced by our factory in Huizhou
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In terms of natural resources, wood flooring is one of
the major raw materials used in containers. Traditional
flooring often uses tropical hardwood, which has a
long growing period and consumes a substantial
volume of valuable hardwood forest resources. In
recent years, as container customers have become
increasingly environmentally aware, more and more of
them choose to use containers with bamboo flooring
or OSB flooring (oriented strand board). Bamboo is
the main raw material for bamboo flooring — bamboo
resources are abundant, it only requires a short
growing period, whereas the main raw material of
OSB flooring is cultivated from fast-growing forests.
Such flooring is considered eco-friendly as it reduces
the consumption of tropical hardwood resources.
Singamas Group will increasingly purchase and use
bamboo flooring and OSB flooring. We will also
manufacture containers with steel flooring for some
customers, thereby taking responsibility for protecting
natural resources together with our customers.

During the reporting period, the Group’s factories
were strictly complied with the regulations under the
State Environmental Protection Law ({Bl R IR R
7)), the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution
((R|I52M87%)) and the Solid Waste Pollution
Prevention Act (&7 BE¥13R3%)5 205767%)) with no
violation to these rules.
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. Product responsibility

1.

Product quality management

Quality is an important ongoing topic for
enterprises. We prioritise quality, continue to
improve quality management standards, and
strive to provide high-quality, safe container
products and services for customers. As
we continue to focus on building a quality
management system and integrating it
with our development strategies, we are
gradually implementing the ISO 9001 quality
management system into our factories. Each
of our factories, including our management
headquarters in Shanghai, have been fully
certified in the ISO 9001 quality management
system since October 2014. The actual
quality management operation results are
strengthened through sound organisation, clear
authority and responsibility, and standardised
operation. While the focus remains on our
customer and quality management, we
continue to enhance the quality of products,
including having the Quality Assurance
department inspect raw material purchases
and product delivery; and having factory-
based inspectors and representatives from the
Classification Society conduct stringent checks
at every level in order to fully ensure the safety
of our products.
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Product safety

Our factories value product safety. The
production and sales process are strictly
complied with the requirements of Product
Quality Law (EmmEE)%)) . In this regard,
we have established a raw materials storage
inspection system; and perform ad hoc
inspections of important materials including
steel plates, corner castings, flooring and
accessories, and deliver the raw materials to
the materials laboratory of our Technology &
Development Centre for examination in order
to safeguard the quality and safety of the
materials. In terms of production, the factories
recruit well-trained production workers with a
strong focus on product quality and safety, and
a systemic and standardised product quality
control system, which helps ensure product
quality and safety.

Intellectual property

In accordance with the requirements of the
Patent Law ((HAH))%)) and its implementing
rules, the Group protects technological
innovation and promotes technological
development in the industry. Our legal
department is in charge of protecting our
intellectual property. In addition to highlighting
and protecting intellectual property and
ensuring we respect the intellectual property
of others, we protect the fair competition
environment, and comply with industry
standards and criteria. Through intellectual
property training, we enhance our staff’s
awareness of intellectual property, and establish
the concepts of innovation, integrity and
protection of intellectual property.
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Customer relationship management

Customer satisfaction is the foundation of an
enterprise’s survival, and we continuously try to
improve on this. We have a customer-oriented
focus and strive to provide quality products
and services by continuously hearing what our
customers are looking for. We collect quality
and service appraisals relating to each batch
of our manufactured products from customers’
factory-based inspectors, which are used as
important references in our constant efforts to
improve product quality and promote customer
satisfaction. We are always trying to improve,
and address complaints or feedback quickly to
resolve any issues. In addition to established
Marketing departments, each factory has
set up a Customer Services department
to maintain ongoing communication with
customers and ensure we can provide excellent
service.

We put great emphasis on protecting customer
privacy, and implement stringent internal
management for marketing activities to
safeguard customer information security.

The Group has strictly complied with all relevant
regulations with no violation noted.
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Supply chain management

1.

Our supply chain

The major raw materials for manufacturing
containers are classified into four types: steel,
flooring, paints and container accessories.
Of these, steel accounts for over 50 percent
of material costs, and is the most important
raw material in the container manufacturing
industry. At present, the majority of container
manufacturing materials are purchased
domestically. The steel suppliers are large-scale
domestic steel factories, including Shougang
(&), Ansteel (821]) , BX Steel (Zif) ,
WISCO, BAOSTEEL, and Guangxi Liuzhou Iron
and Steel (#]ifil) and etc., while other material
suppliers are mainly located in Eastern and
Southern China.

Supply chain management policy

The Group has adopted a centralised
procurement method in terms of major
container manufacturing materials, and has
set up a central procurement centre at the
management headquarters in Shanghai.
The centre is in charge of the standardised
procurement of steel, flooring, paints and
important container accessories, and
manages sourcing for our supply chain and
factories. As the second largest container
manufacturing corporation in the world, we
need reliable suppliers that provide quality
products and services. To enhance supply
chain management, we have formulated
management systems such as “Supplier
Access Requirements” ((HEFEREARTED) ,
“Standard Management Process for Suppliers”
((EEEZREEERIE)) and “Procurement
Management Method” ((EREE & 32 #1%)) ,
and regulate the supplier selection process
to systematically evaluate and screen new
suppliers. In selecting, evaluating and rating the
suppliers, we include environmental protection,
safety production, and occupational health
protection as part of our consideration so can
stimulate the suppliers to value the importance
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of social responsibility and sustainable
development. This enables top notch suppliers
to enter our supply system and become
our qualified suppliers, thereby facilitating
our stable development. According to our
“Standard Operating Procedure” and quality
management system relating to the supplier
management process, we carefully manage
and select qualified suppliers and carry out
regular evaluations to safeguard the quality of
our materials and to ensure our product delivery
times, establishing a foundation for providing
quality products to our customers.

Customers are becoming more concerned
about environmental issues, and stress
the importance of using environmentally
friendly materials including waterborne paint,
waterborne sealing glue and bamboo flooring.
We will continue to communicate these
demands to our suppliers, strengthen our
cooperation with suppliers regarding their ability
to deliver environmentally friendly materials,
coordinate with them in product trials, and work
with them to produce “green” containers.

Corporate integrity

Anti-corruption policy

As corruption is detrimental to fair competition and
corporate integrity, anti-corruption has become one
of the main corporate business ethics principles for
many of the world’s premier enterprises. “Honest
and pragmatic” is not only the core of our corporate
culture, but is also our biggest corporate social
responsibility. We advocate honest operation and fair
competition, and require that our staff comply with
Interim Provisions on Banning Commercial Bribery
CKEARZEILAERBITANEITRE)) and Anti-
Unfair Competition Law ({R T 1EE #F)%)) , as well
as the Group’s regulations and systems. To promote
compliance in the workplace, we also focus on
anticorruption and anti-bribery principles for staff.
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As part of our unremitting efforts to make
anticorruption an important corporate management
activity, we set up whistleblowing channels to help
prevent irregularities. All staff must comply with the
Group’s business code of conduct, which aims to
prevent corruption from a system perspective. We also
continue to improve our internal control and monitoring
system, and improve the independence of the Finance
department. Each factory’s Finance department
reports directly to the Group’s finance headquarters,
which reviews and monitors operating decisions and
business conduct of each factory through internal
controls and regular audits. If problems are identified,
we take immediate action, and would not tolerate any
form of corruption in order to prevent irregularities.

The Group has strictly complied with all these
regulations with no violation noted.

Human resources management
1. Improving and protecting staff rights

The Group has more than 9,000 staff
members. The Group and its members are
obliged to strictly comply with the relevant
national laws and regulations, including the
“Labour Law” ({B®))%)) , “Labour Contract
Law” (B B)&[RE)) and “Social Insurance
Law” (((E2REE)) . A few factories have
already accepted the services provided by
external human resources solutions provider,
and the Group has implemented the same
welfare benefits for both contract workers and
full-time workers employed by those external
human resources solutions providers to
safeguard workers’ legal interests and pay them
full salaries on time.
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The Group is keen to improve employee
benefits with average salary exceeds the local
minimum wage requirement. The Group is
based on the Group’s performance, market
condition, worldwide economy, local living
standards and the Group’s remuneration
strategy to regularly examine and adjust
the salaries and other benefits. Besides in
complying with the Labour Law minimum
requirements (e.g. stated-own insurance
program, minimum pay leave, high temperature
subsidy, etc.), the Group offers other additional
benefits to employees e.g. commercial
insurance coverage.

As container production requires a large
number of skilled workers, a stable staff
team is vital for ensuring consistent product
quality. The Group has established an internal
communication and exchange platform where
staff can communicate through a general
manager mailbox, and reasonable suggestions
put forward by staff are adopted in order to
enhance cohesion. The Group put a lot of
effort into establishing harmonious labour
relationships, and hold regular recreational and
sports activities for staff to enrich their work-life
balance, enhance their sense of belonging and
create a positive environment to help ensure the
stable development of the Group.
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Intensifying staff training efforts and
expanding the staff development
platform

The Group continues to intensify its efforts to
promote staff training programmes, and each
member of the Group integrates internal training
with external training to enhance management
and technical training. This helps provide the
necessary protection for talent reserves for
corporate development. We provide staff with
a wide range of training, including skills, safety,
management and development training.

We offer various kinds of on-job training
for assembly line workers such as welding,
handling of forklift, electrical maintenance etc.
We also provide different kinds of training
program to managerial staffs according to their
professionalism. These training not only can
enhance the management skills but also staff
cohesion and the sense of responsibility.

The Group has strictly complied with all
government regulations with no violation noted.

V. Labour standards

1.

No child labour

The Group strictly complies with International
Labour Standards and the government’s
“Provision on the Prohibition of Using Child
Labor” ((ZEIEERAETRE)) . In terms of
recruitment, we strictly prohibit the employment
of minors under 16 years old. During
recruitment, we stringently review and verify the
authenticity of identity card information to avoid
employing child labour that can result from
forged identity card information.

No forced labour

The Group firmly eradicates any forced labour,
employment discrimination and occupational
discrimination, and strives to establish
harmonious labour relationships. We provide
sufficient rest and leave days to staff according
to relevant government laws and regulations.
We arrange for staff to work overtime on a
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voluntary basis based on the number of orders
we receive, and overtime and holiday pay are
implemented according to national policies and
our salary policy. The Group fully respects our
staff's freedom of employment, and will never
hold on to staff's identification documents or
collect deposits during the employment period.
There is no forced labour in any of our factories.

The Group strictly abide by the provisions of the
Labor Contract Law ({Z5&)& [RE)) . All terms
and conditions of the employment including job
description and nature, remuneration and other
benefits are clearly defined and stated in the
employment contract.

The Group has strictly complied with all relevant
regulations on child labour and forced labour
with no violation noted.

Health and safety
Health and safety management

As a manufacturing enterprise, Singamas Group
always places great emphasis on occupational health
and safety protection for staff. We firmly adhere to the
principle of “safety first and prioritise prevention”. We
strictly comply with the “Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Work Safety” ((fP#E AR EMBE L 24 =
y%)) and other relevant laws and regulations. Through
the establishment of a specialised department at
management headquarters in Shanghai, a work
safety committee and the work safety management
department — the Health, Safety and Environment
department which is led by the Group’s Chief
Operating Officer — each of our factories holds regular
health and safety meetings to study and resolve safety
production problems, and periodically organises
projects to eliminate hidden dangers. All levels of the
Group have signed a safety production accountability
certificate whereby they have committed to prioritising
safety and have assumed responsibility for safety
during production. For outsourcing construction
projects, we have signed a safety accountability letter
with external units to ensure construction safety.
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To further improve staff awareness regarding
safety in the production process, we carry out
“Work Safety Month” activities in every factory. The
Group carries out safety management training for
production management staff and further promotes
the standardised management of corporate safety
production. The Group carries out three basic levels of
safety education for newly recruited staff, and strictly
requires the special operator to have a “valid job
certificate” (538 1) .

The Group cares about our staff's safety, health
and working environment, and provides regular
medical check-ups for them. At the same time, we
continuously improve our workshop sites to reduce
workload intensity for frontline staff and improve the
working environment. To prevent occupational injuries
and diseases, every factory provides high quality,
relevant worker protection gear, and closely monitors
that staff use these items correctly.

The Group has strictly complied with all relevant
regulations on health and safety with no violation
noted.

CONCLUSION

We only have one earth — enterprises therefore have a social
responsibility to protect the environment and treasure our
resources. By integrating social responsibility into corporate
development, the Group will continue striving for pollution
governance, energy conservation and consumption
reduction, as well as effective use of resource. We
continuously make capital investments to replace, reconstruct
and upgrade plants and equipment, strictly comply with
environmental laws and regulations, and endeavour to
transform the plants into environmental friendly green plants,
facilitating our sustainable development and helping us
achieve a harmonious relationship with nature.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016
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2016 ESG PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

PRODUCTION
UNIT
tEE

ENVIRONMENT
B

SOCIETY
HE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report IR1E

ZE-ARRE -HERE

AENEE

KPI FAEENIEE 2016
TEU HREAERE 523,785
ccu! ccuU! 1,820
Energy used BERfE R
Purchased Electricity BENSE kWh T FL B 129,312,832
Purchased renewable electricity? BAEEMBEE 2 kWh F F B 5,594,370
Natural Gas RAR me 3775 K 3,318,392
Diesel (Gen Set) Sm (BREHA) Litre F+ 1,837,983
Freshwater K me 3775 K 687,028
Carbon emission® T BE Be Tonne I& 7,305,648
Direct Emissions HEBEWR Tonne I& 4,798
Indirect Emissions R HE IR Tonne MA 7,300,849
Product responsibility EmEE
% of Product recall due to EmBERREZ SRR No. of cases K& 0
Health and Safety reasons mARKMNE 2t
No. of prosecutions against TEEERMEBERZE  No. of cases RE 0
Product-related Regulatory 510 1% B0 S AR B
Violations
Health & Safety BEHEZE
No. of Fatalities TERARIET AR Nos. AZ 0
No. of Injuries (by people) TR E Nos. A& 184
No. of Lost Days TBBATHERE Nos. A 3,675
No. of prosecutions against Health TR& R No. of cases &K 0
and Safety Regulatory Violations ZERBEERER
4% &1 Rk B 5
Employment (As of 31 December) ER(BZ+t=A=+—8)
Total no. of employee 1B B 1Bk Nos. A 7,416
Total no. of male employee FMHESEE Nos. A 6,988
Total no. of female employee ZHEEEE Nos. A& 428
Total no. of full time employee® EX{E B giEs Nos. AZ 3,717
Total no. of contracted employee* 249,/ I EEE 82 Nos. AZ 3,699
Total no. of management staff® EIREABHE5 Nos. A £ 204
Total no. of workers TAEE Nos. AZ 6,599
Anti-corruption RBH®
No. of prosecutions against HE RN E BT A No. of cases K&K 0
Corruption HESRBIEELER
B FARMGREE
Training & Development IR R
No. of training hours for management EIBE A B XA hours /)NBF 802
staff
No. of training hours for workers TAZFNERE hours /J\E 58,188
BMEECERRAR « —T—AFFRH
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Notes:

Data disclosed included performance of 10 factories, unless otherwise
stated, namely, Qidong Singamas Energy Equipment Co., Ltd., Hui Zhou
Pacific Container Co., Ltd., Ningbo Pacific Container Co., Ltd., Qingdao
Pacific Container Co., Ltd., QSOE, Shanghai Baoshan Pacific Container Co.,
Ltd., Singamas Container Industry Co., Ltd., Shanghai Pacific International
Container Co., Ltd., Tianjin Pacific Container Co., Ltd. and Xiamen Pacific
Container Manufacturing Co., Ltd..

1. CCUis only applicable in QSOE.

2. Qidong Singamas Energy Equipment Co., Ltd. purchased renewable
electricity from the solar power producer.

3. Including contracted staff, office staff and above-grade staff.

4. Including temporary and part-time labor.

5. Including manager or above ranking staff.

6.  Carbon emission included Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions from the
use of diesel (generator sets), purchased electricity and purchased
natural gas. Source of electricity emission factors: The Provincial

Greenhouse Gas Inventory Guidelines ( (& A8 =R 625 B4 21
m) (B2 AIR[2011]10415% ) (2005 Emission Factors)).

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016
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GUIDE
General
Aspects Disclosure & KPIs Corresponding Chapter
g —REERER MBS
A. Environmental
RE
A1, Emission General Disclosure I Emission and waste management
BB —R = BEMAIEE B IR
A2, Use of Resources General Disclosure II. Resources management
BEREHA —BEE BEREE
A3.  The Environment and General Disclosure IIl. Environmental impact
Natural Resources —REKR REvE
RERARER
B. Social
o
Employment and Labour Practice
EREHELTER
B1.  Employment General Disclosure V. Human resources management
= —MRKE ANEBRERE
B2.  Health and Safety General Disclosure VI. Health and safety
EEEZ S —R = EEEZ S
B3.  Development and Training General Disclosure V. Human resources management
R KIE — R ANERER
B4.  Labour Standards General Disclosure V. Labour standards
BITZR| —MRREE BITR|
Operating Practices
ZEEH
B5.  Supply Chain Management General Disclosure Il Supply chain management
HERE R — R HERER
B6.  Product Responsibility General Disclosure I Product responsibility
EmEE —RIKE EmEE
B7.  Anti-corruption General Disclosure IIl. Corporate integrity
k&S —MR = PEME
Community
HE
B8.  Community Investment General Disclosure The aspect is not identified as material

HtERE

—MRIKE

issue, see materiality assessment for

details
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BN &

Deloitte.

TO THE MEMBERS OF SINGAMAS
CONTAINER HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Singamas Container Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 135 to 286, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (‘HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Independent Auditor’s Report & 3 #% # £l ¥k &
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Key audit matters

HEEITEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

EARBERTEEREERSEENS X

Estimated provision for losses incurred in relation to the explosion in Tianjin and the destruction by

typhoon in Xiamen

REBREREMBRABIRSI BUIEANATRE

We identified the estimated provision for losses incurred
in relation to the explosion in Tianjin and the destruction
by typhoon in Xiamen as a key audit matter due to
the significant estimates and assumptions involved by
management in arriving the provision for losses.
ENEEEEETCHREREER KA TEAMA R
RE% - HAIK 2R B KRR B A K EPIRe R B 5| BUR
KA BERR RBARETEE

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016

Our procedures in relation to assessment of the
reasonableness of the estimated provision for losses
incurred in relation to the explosion in Tianjin and the
destruction by typhoon in Xiamen included:

BAEHE T RRBIE R EPIRABKIESIBUE KRR
AREREAEE WERT TR

o Obtaining an understanding from the
management on how the provision is estimated;
EE 7 5 3R AN (] TR R TS

o Obtaining and reviewing the lists of damaged

containers and the terms and conditions of
the sales contracts to assess management’s
estimation of the potential obligation on
customers due to the Incident and the Typhoon;
ERREZBEREREEE BRIES

AR MG - LARHE B IR B L% 1 A RE ﬂ%
SIBHEPHNEEERE:
° Obtaining an understanding on management

controls over inventory cycle and testing the
monthly stock movement, on a sample basis,
to assess the reasonableness of the number of
damaged containers identified;
%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁffﬂ%Z?%Jﬂ%ﬁﬂﬂt

FEED UHMEBECEREHERLS
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Key audit matters

HREEITEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

EARBERTEEREERSEENS X

Estimated provision for losses incurred in relation to the explosion in Tianjin and the destruction by

typhoon in Xiamen (Continuead)

RERIER EPIRE R RS BUB RN HABE (2)

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, due to the explosion which took place
on 12 August 2015 in Tianjin Port (the “Incident”) in
the Binhai New Area of Tianjin and the typhoon which
took place on 15 September 2016 in Xiamen (the
“Typhoon”), some of the containers kept on behalf
of the customers were destroyed. During the year
ended 31 December 2016, an additional provision of
approximately US$10,525,000 related to the Incident
and a provision of approximately US$1,94 1,000 related
to the Typhoon were made. As at 31 December
2016, the provision included in other payables was
approximately US$3,198,000 in relation to the Incident
and US$1,941,000 in relation to the Typhoon.
WUNGRE B REM 4T T - N —hF\A
TZREERKRBZRENRRNEOR I REBEIE
([ZE=H])  AERZZE—R"ENATHAREMEE
ZBeRE ([RE]) - REPREZ M ERKAWIEIE -
RZB-—RFT_A=+—RILFE HZEMHE—
HRAEX910,625,0003 7T - I 158 @ B #)1,941,000
EL-BE-_ZT—AF+-_A=+—8" BifHME
NBRFRE B 52 S 14 HO B 55 /33,198,000 7T » M i
& 1#1,941,000% 7T °

Assessing the reasonableness of the amount
of the provision estimated by the management,
based on the number of containers damaged
in the Incident and the Typhoon as well as their
estimated production costs;

BREZEHENRRPRE, EERHERA
HEtEEKAR  SHEE R ER v BB E R

REARE:

Obtaining and reviewing the settlement
agreements entered with the customers under
voluntary settlement in relation to the losses for
containers damaged in the Incident to confirm
the agreed amount of losses; and

B R EZEE PRI 2 MEHE (ZIHBE T
BARZEHPIERERE 2 B EBMNE) - I
REEMEBREH: &

Reviewing the bank and cash ledger for bank
payments made by the Group to customers
subsequent to the reporting period, on a
sample basis, and enquiring with management
on the nature of those settlements for any
understatement of provision in relation to the
Incident and the Typhoon.

U A BB S HRRITERER S
BEER EREMTFPER 2RI Wt
ZEXMZMEARERE  ABBEMER
ZE M MR 2 AR

BREBEEXFRAT « —T—RFFR
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Key audit matters

HEEITEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

EARBERTEEREERSEENS X

Estimated impairment of the long overdue trade receivable

RABHRN 2 B ARFRE G ET

We identified the estimated impairment of the long
overdue trade receivable as a key audit matter due to
the significant estimates and judgments involved by
management.
ENEREBRA T ER G MAE RAKRAR
HIARN 2 B BRFORE AT B RS ET I -

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group has reported an overdue trade
receivable balance of approximately US$5,553,000 (net
of allowance of US$611,000) from a customer since
2018.

WG S MmN T4PEEE . BEEEE28®A
—E=FURBR—BREFZRABHARNZE
U B 3K 2 BR BB 49 /55,553,0003 7T ( B 0Bk SR IR 245
611,000%7T) °

In 2015, a legal action was taken by the Group against
the customer and its business partner (the “Business
Partner”). In November 2016, the Group received the
first court judgment from Xiamen Intermediate People’s
Court which decided that the Business Partner was
solely liable to settle the overdue trade balance of
approximately US$6,164,000. Following the court’s
decision, the Business Partner submitted to the court
for appeal. As of the date of the report, the appeal is in
progress and has not been concluded.
R_TE—1F EBEEEHURATPRAZBEH
([ZEBBH]DREEEFD-R_T—RF+—
A BEEBWIEPITHRRARERELNE—
IRFIR - FIRZES R H T B A EEEB RN
2 3 58R%06,164,0003 7T - BREEFT BV HIR - 54575
B RVER IR EAF B EHE A LEFIEEETT
R ER

The recoverability of the overdue trade receivable
is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Management has
exercised its judgments in determining the amount
of impairment and has concluded that there was no
impairment made in respect of the overdue trade
receivable as at 31 December 2016 which is based on
the latest status of the litigation.

B B PR AR R AT B TR S B ) B BT TR S o
ERECETREAEBEBERESRE WEHER
BESHFABL BERBE_T—RF+_A
=+ — BB HARKRRIEE —TRE-
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Qur procedures in relation to assessing the
reasonableness of the estimated impairment of the long
overdue trade receivable included:

AL T RABEBARN 2 BYERFORERGTEE
BEWEMRT TlEF

o Reviewing the court judgment, and discussing
with management and the Group’s legal counsel
on the details of the court’s decision from
Xiamen Intermediate People’s Court;
FEHEB AR WERERE N E BEEEE
BRI B EPI T  RARIET BEEHIRF BT

LA
o afg -

o Enquiring with management on the latest
development of the litigation and checking legal
correspondences in relation to the litigation
subsequent to the reporting period;
HFRNZITERAPEIEE - WAREREH
1& B2 3 FANE RR B AR B 1

o Obtaining the financial information of the
Business Partner to assess its financial ability;
and
ERREBREZHBES  ATHEEM B8R
VARDS3

o Assessing the reasonableness of the
management’s basis on impairment
assessment.

A EEREORENEEERLTAE
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HREEITEE
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How our audit addressed the key audit matters

EARBERTEEREERSEENS X

Valuation of property, plant and equipment and impairment of goodwill

Y3 BN RENGENHENRE

We identified the valuation of property, plant and
equipment and impairment of goodwill as a key audit
matter due to the significant management judgments in
the determination of their recoverable amounts.
ENEREREET RS RER  KA T EARAE
B e MR B M EMEEARES R
RBRETSE

As disclosed in notes 4 and 17 to the consolidated
financial statements, as at 31 December 2016, the
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment of
the Company’s five subsidiaries to which goodwill
has been allocated to was US$75,428,000, and the
carrying amount of goodwill was US$3,589,000.
AR SRR FAMM 7T RE - BHE-F— X
F+ZA=+—H EBRAEHEFEZENARW
BT AR - #e3 N kil 2 BRE B /575,428,000
ST - 1 A& 2 BRTE B /33,589,000% 7T ©

Our procedures in relation to evaluating the
appropriateness of the valuation of property, plant and
equipment and impairment of goodwill included:
BAAIEHE TR #es RRENHENEDENRE
BERE BT TiEF:

o Understanding the management’s impairment
assessment process and approach;

AR B IR 2R ERHE R R ITA

° Evaluating the reasonableness of significant
assumptions and key inputs used by
management in determining the value in use,
including projections of cash flows, discount
rates and growth rates;
AEEEEEEEEATEERMKACE
ERJILEFE[ASE AERERE R
= RIBRERIEA

BREBEEXARAT o —T—RFFR
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Key audit matters

HEEITEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BARBERTEEREERSEENS X

Valuation of property, plant and equipment and impairment of goodwill (Continued)

M- HEBERRBEENEENEE (&)

Property, plant and equipment mainly represent
leasehold land and buildings and site improvements
as well as plant and machinery. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill that arose from
acquisitions is allocated to property, plant and
equipment of the Company’s five subsidiaries in
manufacturing of container to form the Group’s
cash-generating units. As at 31 December 2016,
management has conducted an assessment to ensure
that the recoverable amount of each cash-generating
unit which has been determined based on value in
use calculations are carried at no more than their
recoverable amounts. The value in use calculations
are dependent on inputs that involve management’s
judgments, including preparation of cash flow
forecasts, determination of the discount rates, growth
rates, and expected changes to selling prices and
direct costs.

MxE BRELRREFTEEEMEE L EF R T
RIA K28 K&t - URERHEER &Y AUWIBE S
NEBRIREEAR ARKREERMEENNE
FRBINYE HRRBHE ALK E SRR 2 IR
BN -BE_T—RFT+_A=t—RH BEEZ
ETEHE UNERBEREREBETERE ZZER
IR € B BREDFE T BB E Al Y0 £ 78 - T
EREEZTESINERBHEB 2 RA  BHEEA
AR LEREME BENHE BRE - UARHE
EERNEEERCRRESE -

Based on management’s assessment, during the
year ended 31 December 2016, an impairment loss
of US$2,657,000 was allocated to goodwil and no
impairment loss was identified for property, plant and
equipment.

BEEEENNG 822 — X F+-A=1+—H
LIEFE - BB RR BB 1E R2,657,000% 7T M -
s RREIRBRERK -
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Comparing cash flow projections to recent
financial budgets provided by management,
and evaluating the reasonableness of these
budgets with reference to the past performance
of respective cash-generating units and
management’s business plan of respective
cash-generating units as well as the available
market data;

IR ERERSOERERMH MR
BETHER WRERLRER EREEHER
REBCEM 2R EIARAIER TS
BE AHMERERERE S

Assessing the reasonableness of the discount
rates by benchmarking with the internal data
and available market data; and
Wi EANEER KA EE TS ERETTL
B TEAREREAE R

Comparing the growth estimation to historical
growth rates for business and management’s
business plan of the respective cash-generating
units.

IR REEKFELIBRE  UREREY
EBEMMIR B ERTEEITH R



OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE
DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend
to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.
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Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section
405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.
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REEBARREE BEXENMBREERE-
BB F TS M RR AR
5fF

BANER REGEMBEHRREBRS T
ERRREFERMEHH BN FERPAEUS
BIERE  WIRRE B R RGP FE4065F R
EEAEZEKE HABERMERNZEEN
HE e BRib 25N AR R E A A BIEE AR
& TN ERARENABTREAEMAL
B FSAREAE - S BRERE KR
& BETRERERR (BARTEL) £178
Bil AR —BABERRIMFER B RER -
AR A AR BRF Bk SR AR B R - IR B TR
HEMEBIERER AR ERSMHRER
A EARREAR S TS MR P E L VAR E

1B B0 #E SR BRI AT AR E B K

ERE (BAETEL) ETEFNBRES
BPERTERHE RS TEXEREE -
HAPIIR -

. BRI G B B FF S SRR M AR S
SRR GFEERERBIMARR &
ETRBMITERTE AR S E LRI - BA
NER T RAEENERE EAR

FIE RAVERE - NEKEFRTBE S MR AR
i ERER  EER SOEERA

BRI 2 L - B R BE B IR R EKGF i &
B EXERER A E R SRR AL IR
PR 85 7R T 8 B B K R PR At e L s

TR AR R ERES] - ARRETE
BB BENLIEY ;\;‘%I
NEEHI BB EERER -



Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report & 3 # B £l 3k &

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Wong Kuen.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 March 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GmeESmREMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 —F— NF+_-H=+—HIFZE

2016 2015
—E-XKE —T—hF
Notes US$’000 US$'000
M et FEx FET
Revenue ExH 5 916,433 1,126,414
Other income LN 7 7,293 4,802
Changes in inventories of FURK o M AEE m Y
finished goods and FEEE
work in progress (32,262) (28,680)
Raw materials and RAE RSB FER ST
consumables used (657,330) (807,774)
Staff costs EB KA (129,049) (127,530)
Depreciation and e R E
amortisation expense (33,741) (80,376)
Exchange gain bE 5 Wz 1,042 8,440
Other expenses EMER (122,024) (128,734)
Finance costs M%BEMR 8 (11,060) (10,663)
Investment income RERA 9 2,764 5,086
Change in fair value of derivative TSR T A2
financial instruments NAEEZEH 36 376 (259)
Share of results of associates MBS AR Z &1 (1,201) (2,450)
Share of results of joint ventures (& & 1% 2 )& 7 410 659
(Loss) profit before taxation BRELAT (B51E) =R 10 (58,349) 8,935
Income tax expense FriStiIa Rz 13 (3,571) (10,287)
Loss for the year AFEEEE (61,920) (1,352)

BRHEBEEXFRAT « —T—RFFR
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income & EBEREME2EINER
For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 —F— NF+=-H=+—HIFEZF

2016 2015
—B-ARf —T—I%
Notes US$’000 US$'000
M et FEx FET
Other comprehensive expense H1th 2 HE % tH
Item that may be subsequently H#ESXED T8z HIEH :
reclassified to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising MEINEFEZR
on translation (2,512) (10,387)
Other comprehensive expense FRH 2 H % H
for the year (2,512) (10,387)
Total comprehensive FAEAE X LARRE
expense for the year (64,432) (11,739)
Loss for the year attributable to: 7~ EFE{5E518
Owners of the Company PAN/NE] S (59,434) (2,723)
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR AR R 2 (2,486) 1,371
(61,920) (1,352)
Total comprehensive expense FE{h & H > H #1258 :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company PIN/NE] i ESS (61,613) (12,770)
Non-controlling interests FEVERR AR SR M (2,819) 1,031
(64,432) (11,739
Loss per share BREE
Basic BN 15 US(2.46) centsEfll  US(0.11) centzE (L
Diluted e 75 US(246) centsE Al US(0.11) centzE Al
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

As at 31 December 2016 R=—F—NF+—-HA=+—H

2016 2015
ZE-RE —T-1F
Notes US$’000 US$'000
Hia FEx FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M3 MR R 16 349,195 359,855
Goodwill RS 17 3,589 6,246
Interests in associates REE R 2 s 18 41,931 43,983
Interests in joint ventures REBERE 19 20,833 22,391
Avalilable-for-sale investment AEEZIRE 20 6,608 6,608
Amounts due from joint ventures JEW A B EFIA 28 - 6,006
Amount due from an associate JE W 2 X R IR 29 - 10,000
Derivative financial instruments TSI A 36 350 -
Prepaid lease payments AR EE IR 21 71,672 64,473
Deposits for non-current assets ERBEEKRS 22 19,183 22,364
513,361 541,926
Current assets REBEE
Inventories A 23 136,819 157,207
Trade receivables & L BR 53R 24 209,163 146,765
Prepayments and other receivables a1t K E fib fE Uk k18 25 85,381 41,910
Amount due from immediate holding & Uk & %z 1% i A 8] 738
company 26 281 44
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries F& U [7] 2 M B A 7118 27 55,184 31,006
Amounts due from joint ventures JEW &G BEERIR 28 3 1,070
Amounts due from associates G NI Bz 29 13,970 534
Derivative financial instruments TEEmTA 36 6 -
Tax recoverable A E 2 BiE 756 1,335
Prepaid lease payments FENHEERIE 21 1,694 1,517
Bank balances and cash RITEBR LIRS 30 209,009 242,726
712,266 624,114

BRHEBEEXFRAT « —T—RFFR
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position ZR& B IR R 3®
As at 31 December 2016 R —ZE—NF+_H=+—H

2016 2015
—B-RE —ZT—NF
Notes US$’000 US$'000
Viorz3 FEx FET
Current liabilities REAE
Trade payables FETBR X 31 131,745 85,108
Bills payable JEN R 32 80,701 22,755
Accruals and other payables et E A R EMERRR 33 57,326 81,554
Amount due to immediate holding B B B IEM A B FIAE
company 26 - 16
Amounts due to associates AN YNEI PO 34 366 132
Amounts due to joint ventures BT ERERIR 34 15 46
Tax payable JE IR 4,682 5,538
Bank borrowings RITER 35 274,812 70,000
549,647 265,149
Net current assets REEEFE 162,619 358,965
Total assets less current liabilities EE & RGBS & 675,980 900,891
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital & 2% 37 268,149 268,149
Accumulated profits Eitm 221,799 282,846
Other reserves H i 43,066 44,287
Equity attributable to RARRREGER
owners of the Company 533,014 595,282
Non-controlling interests FEHE R A R A 2 44,806 52,379
Total equity R 577,820 647,661
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 4= & BI &R 3%

As at 31 December 2016 R=—ZF—NF+—-H=+—H

2016 2015
—E-RFE —ZT—HF
Notes US$’000 US$'000
Kt FEx FET

Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Bank borrowings RITIENK 35 90,728 245,000
Derivative financial instruments PTESRT A 36 - 20
Deferred tax liabilities B IEEE 39 7,432 8,210
98,160 253,230
675,980 900,891

The consolidated financial statements on pages 135 to 286
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 30 March 2017 and are signed on its behalf by:

Teo Siong Seng R E
Director &%

HNFEI1BEEFE280A i MBHRREES
SR _E—tF=A=+HMERREDNR
Wil FIEEHREE

Teo Tiou Seng REAE

Director %
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

LERERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 —F—~NF+_-H=1+—HIFFZE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AR RRREL
Exchange Non-
translation controlling
Share reserve General Development  Revaluation  Share option Hedge Other  Accumulated interests
capital  HENRE reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Totdl  FERRR Total
e @ -REE  BRRE ERERE BRERE  WMEE  HiERE  ZHEd 2 & 1]
Us$000 US$000 US$000 US$000 US$000 US$000 US$000 US§000 US§000 US§000 US§1000 US$000
i i i i 3 SE I SEIp SE e i i i
(Note)
i3
At1 January 2015 RZ5-1F
-A-H 268,149 9374 30261 699 1,361 3,367 = (3912 302,035 617,630 54803 672,433
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - - - - - R (ks 1371 (1,359)
Bxchange diferences RENENEZE
arising on translation - (10,047) - - - - - - - (10,047) (340) (10,387)
Total comprehensive AEERENH
xpense orhe year o - (004 - - - - - - 013 (127 1081 (11.739)
Share repurchase ek - - - - = = = = (224 (224 - (224
Dividend paid to non- BEEEUED
controling inerests Ezke - - - - - - - - - - (3.455) (3.485)
Diidend paid to the owners - AR GRE
of the Compeny Re - - - - . = - - 9354) 0354 - 0354
Tranfer fom accumulated & B 1R
profs . . 5493 1305 . . . . 6889 B, . .
At 31 December 2015 i it:d
T-R=t-H 268,149 (673 35,764 8390 1,361 3,367 = (3912 282,846 595,282 52,319 647,661
Loss for the year rERER - - - - - - - - (59434) (59434) 2489) (61.920)
Bxchange diferences BENEREEE
afising on translation - 2179 - - - - - - - @179 (333 2512
Total comprehensive AEERENE
xpense orhe year o - @179 - - - - - S EeY P81y )
Acquistion of addtionl ~ EEHBAR
interest in subsiciaries Py 43 - - - - - - - [ - ? (3878 (3,880
Share of reserves of EEBELRT
an associae LG - - = = = = = (659) = (659) < (659)
Diidend paid to non- BRFERER
controling interests EnRkE - - - - - - - - - - 876) 876)
Transfer fom accumulated 5 5 25HEF|
profts - - 1,600 13 - - - - (1613 - - -
At31December 2016 HW=F-5xF
tZR=t-H 268,149 (2852 31,254 8,503 1,361 3,367 - 4,567) 221,19 533,014 44,806 517,820
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity #r &= 88K
For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z —FE—NF+ - H=+—HIFFZE

Note:

In 2009, at the time of the acquisition of additional 20% equity interests of
Hui Zhou Pacific Container Co., Ltd. and Ningbo Pacific Container Co., Ltd.,
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of these subsidiaries
continued to be carried at their book values in the consolidated staterment
of financial position. The excess of the fair value and the book value of the
net assets attributable to the addltional interests acquired, amounted to
US$3,193,000, had been recognised as other reserve in the consolidated
Statement of changes in equity.

Pursuant to the relevant regulations in the People’s Republic of China (‘PRC”)
(other than Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan) applicable to the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries, these entities have to provide for the PRC statutory reserves
before declaring dividends to their shareholders as approved by the board
of directors. The reserves, which include general reserve and development
reserve, are not distributable until the end of the operation periods of the
respective entities, at which time any remaining balance of the reserves
can be distributed to shareholders upon liquication of the subsidiaries. The
general reserve can be used to offset accumulated losses of the entities.
The general reserve and development reserve can be used to increase
capital upon approval from the PRC'’s relevant authority. The distributable
profits of the subsidiaries are determined based on their accumulated profits
calculated in accordance with the PRC accounting rules and reguilations.

Hise

REZBENF  BEWEENLFEEER L A RERAF
E1EBR A FI20%2 85 MEm FF + ZZH1 B2 7]2Z Al #5)
BE BREREHREFEERGSUHMNIZAKEE
ABR MRS FEEZ A BERIKE A E
3,193,000 T Rt & 1 B B 7 18,2 B MY 1 153 ©

WRIFE R A E BRI EA R ([FE]) (FE

MPIR & Ef5)) 2 B2 AlZ # BIERZE D] i F 2 F]
B F M EIRENR S 7% E e T B0 ZE 1 o 7
BT ERE—REBRERFEFEEEZS LA EEFHY
ABRETIGT B 3 ° T2 S 1B 2 BLEERAF - 82 T 2 (A 1
R B AGIIR o — AR 1E 1 AT A TEFBla% & A 7.2 5T
18 o —ARH 1 R BB 7 15 FEAS T B R B L 12 T TE
IBINEL K o 18 2 7.2 AT ZEF B TR 1% P B & &t <7 Al %
HERKA Rt a Pt B EE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERTREREK

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 —F—~NF+_-H=1+—HIFFZE

2016 2015
ZE-RF —T-IOF
Notes US$’000 US$’000
Jiorz3 FEx FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES EETEE
(Loss) profit before taxation BrBiAT (E18) & (58,349) 8,935
Adjustments for: FEE -
Depreciation e 31,993 28,909
Gain on disposal of property, plant & W3 - #42E K R
and equipment -l (405) (3,421)
Loss on property, plant and FIEHYIE R R ERIE
equipment written off ) %= 287 111
Share of results of associates P B & R B) 2 o ) 1,201 2,450
Share of results of joint ventures FriEa B2 B (410) (659)
Amortisation of prepaid lease AN HEERIBEH
payments 1,748 1,467
Allowance for doubtful debts REBREE - 653
Investment income FERA (2,764) (5,086)
Interest expense B H 9,257 9,016
Change in fair value of derivative ~ T4 &R T A2
financial instruments ~REEE (376) 259
Adjustment on goodwill in an —HE Rz
associate EESEEE 5,465 —
Impairment of goodwil 22 RIE 2,657 —
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows #Z&HE &R 8K
For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z —F—NF+ - H=+—HIFFZE

2016 2015
ZE-RE —T—0F
Notes US$’000 US$'000
Hiat FEx FET
Operating cash flows before EESSRHA &
movements in working capital JRE&RE (9,696) 42 634
Decrease in inventories FERL 24,529 75,706
(Increase) decrease in JiE U BR R (3 00) R >
trade receivables (61,183) 101,300
(Increase) decrease in TEAT K B E W kIR
prepayments and (3 0n) m
other receivables (42,333) 93,507
Increase in amount due from JE W B B PR A )3 AN
immediate holding company (233) (44)
(Increase) decrease in amount due  fE UK [F] X i /& A &) K18
from fellow subsidiaries (3 h0) m (24,178) 11,446
Increase in amount JFE Uk Bt 4 /X ) FRIE A N
due from associates (4,991) (52)
(Increase) decrease in e & & EFIE
amount due from (3 hn) R
joint ventures (3) 1,223
Increase (decrease) in JE AT BRFRIG 0 Ok 2>)
trade payables 45,899 (112,603)
Increase (decrease) in FERTEZIE I OFLD)
bills payable 57,946 (59,552)
(Decrease) increase in FERTE R R H A ER
accruals and other payables BRE OB 380 (26,041) 7,644
Cash (used in) from operations &% (FTiE) FI88HE &£ (40,284) 161,209
Interest paid AN (9,232) (9,234)
Income tax paid BB (4,594) (12,779)
Net cash (used in) from EETE (FT3E) 8
operating activities HEFE (54,110) 139,196

BREBEEXFRAT « —T—RFFR
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows #ZZ&HE &R MK
For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 —F— NF+=-H=+—HIFEZF

2016 2015
ZE-RFE —T-I0F
Notes US$’000 US$'000
Bt FEx FET

INVESTING ACTIVITIES BRETE
Purchase of property, plant and BEMHE HER

equipment Bdi] (19,337) (29,184)
Payment of prepaid lease payments 451+ ¥& <+ #1 & zx 18 (738) (11,077)
Deposits paid for non-current assets 2 3ER BN E E LS (7,781) (13,228)
Capital reduction of an associate ~ JE#F — B2 AR &K 18 257 -
Additional capital injection in an e A RREINEE

associate 18 (6,144) (10,175)
Acquisition of additional interest BE —BEArREIMER

of an associate - (866)
Proceeds on disposal of property, &% - 25 &

plant and equipment RIEE 875 6,822
Dividends received from associates & UgEf & A &) &

and joint ventures BELERE 1,353 886
Interest received 2 W F B 2,052 3,209
Acquisition of subsidiaries WHEHT B R Al e 40 2,693 —
Dividend income from unlisted BEWIEETEFIKERE

equity investment - 877
Loan to an associate BT —BERRER - (10,000)
Net cash used in investing RETEMERSFEHE

activities (26,770) (62,7306)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows #ZZ&HE &R 2K
For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z —F—NF+ - H=+—HIFFZE

2016 2015
ZE-RE —T—0F
Notes US$’000 US$'000
HtaE FEx FET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEH
New bank loans RITHERK 146,579 49,141
Repayment of bank loans BEBIRITER (96,039) (111,635)
Dividends paid to non-controling 21~ F JE#E A% I SR A 25
interests Z BB (876) (3,455)
Dividends paid to owners T AR B RS
of the Company - (9,354)
Advance from immediate holding & A B A A
company I8 319 476
Repayment to immediate holding &8 B & 1EA A A7)
company I8 (335) (465)
Advances from associates PN EUNCI B el 1,097 724
Repayments to associates EE & R RIFIA (863) (650)
Advances from joint ventures fEASEEKIEA 247 221
Repayments to joint ventures EEAELENIEA (278) (218)
Payment of repurchase of shares S %15 B 88 - (224)
Consideration paid for acquisition ~ Z#—KIB R RlEzm 2
of additional interest RN ERA
in a subsidiary (3,880) =
Net cash from (used in) RMEEBFE (i)
financing activities RE&FHE 45,971 (75,439)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE ReEREREEZ
IN CASH AND CASH CRE2>) #8
EQUIVALENTS (34,909) 1,021
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R— B —HZHRE& R
AT 1 JANUARY SREE 242,726 249,793
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXE o T8
changes 1,192 (8,088)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R+ =HA=+—HB»2
AT 31 DECEMBER REREERE 209,009 242,726
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS & R SRR &8 A :
REPRESENTED BY:
Bank balances and cash IRITER MRS 209,009 242 726

SMEMEEXBRAR o —T— R FFH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

P E S

GENERAL

The Company is a listed public limited company
incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). Its ultimate holding company is PIL
Holdings Pte. Ltd. (“PIL Holdings”) and its immediate
holding company is Pacific International Lines (Private)
Limited (“PIL”). Both companies are incorporated
in the Republic of Singapore. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the section of corporate
information of the annual report. The consolidated
financial statements are presented in United States
dollars (“‘US$”), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

The Group is principally engaged in the businesses
of manufacturing of containers and other related
products and providing logistics services.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) for the first time in
the current year.

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisttions of Interests in

Joint Qperations
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initative
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarnification of Acceptable Methodss of
and HKAS 38 Deoreciation and Amortisation
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Pants
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKFRS 10, lnvestment Entities: Aoolying the
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 Consoliation Exceotion

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-
2014 Cycle

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R &K i st

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in
the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.

New and amendments to HKFRSs in
issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and the Related Amendments'

HKFRS 16 Leases?

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classifcation and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions'

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Aaolying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts'

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contrbution of Assets between
and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture®

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initative*
Amendments to HKAS 12 Recogniton of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses*

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improverments to HKFRSs 2014-
2016 cycle®

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019.

Z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to
be determined.

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2017 or 1 January 2018, as appropriate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 81 753k & izt

2 APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets,
financial liabilities, general hedge accounting and
impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as
follows:

° All recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be
subsequently measured at amortised cost or
fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective
is to collect the contractual cash flows, and
that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured
at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. Debt instruments that are
held within a business model whose objective
is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets, and that have
contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, are measured
at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI”). All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their
fair values at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities
may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading)
in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit
or loss.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf % 3R & i st

2 BEMEFREBITINE BT
WEER ([BAMBHRE
28]) (&)

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
(Continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through
profit or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the
amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value
of financial liabilities attributable to changes
in the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under
HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in
the fair value of the financial liability designated
as fair value through profit or loss is presented
in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss
model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss
model under HKAS 39. The expected credit
loss model requires an entity to account for
expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 81 753k & izt

2 APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
(Continued)

The new general hedge accounting
requirements retain the three types of hedge
accounting. However, greater flexibility has
been introduced to the types of transactions
eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that qualify
for hedging instruments and the types of risk
components of non-financial items that are
eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the
effectiveness test has been overhauled and
replaced with the principle of an ‘economic
relationship’. Retrospective assessment of
hedge effectiveness is also no longer required.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an
entity’s risk management activities have also
been introduced.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 December 2016,
application of HKFRS 9 in the future may have a
material impact on the classification and measurement
of the Group’s financial assets. The Group’s available-
for-sale investments, including those currently stated
at cost less impairment, wil either be measured as
fair value through profit or loss or be designated as
FVTOCI .

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf % 3R & i st

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting
for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue
recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue,
HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step
approach to revenue recognition:

o Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: |dentify the performance obligations in
the contract

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the
entity satisfies a performance obligation
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Notes to the Financial Statements 81 %53k & Kzt

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers (Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been
added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS
15 in relation to the identification of performance
obligations, principal versus agent considerations, as
well as licensing application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may result
in more disclosures, however, the directors of the
Company do not anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 15 will have a material impact on the timing
and amounts of revenue recognised in the respective
reporting periods.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS
16 will supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts
on the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled
by a customer. Distinctions of operating leases and
finance leases are removed for lessee accounting, and
is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all
leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and
leases of low value assets.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R &K i st

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured
at the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability
is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well
as the impact of lease modifications, amongst others.
For the classification of cash flows, the Group currently
presents upfront prepaid lease payments as investing
cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for owned
use and those classified as investment properties
while other operating lease payments are presented
as operating cash flows. Under the HKFRS 16, lease
payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated
into a principal and an interest portion which will be
presented as financing cash flows.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised
an asset and a related finance lease liability for finance
lease arrangement and prepaid lease payments for
leasehold lands where the Group is a lessee. The
application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential
changes in classification of these assets depending
on whether the Group presents right-of-use assets
separately or within the same line item at which the
corresponding underlying assets would be presented if
they were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16
Substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require a
lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease or
a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 16.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 81753k & izt

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has
non-cancellable operating lease commitments of
US$5,382,000 as disclosed in note 44. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will
meet the definition of a lease under HKFRS 16, and
hence the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability in respect of all these
leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term
leases upon the application of HKFRS 16. In addition,
the application of new requirements may result
changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure
as indicated above. However, it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of the financial effect
until the directors complete a detailed review.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of other new amendments to
HKFRSs will have significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R R Ktz

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (“CQO”).

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
derivative financial instrument, which is measured at
fair value, as explained in the principal accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17
Leases, and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt 735 3R Mt 5

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or
3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement
in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

(@) Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the
investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect
its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it
controls an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt #53R R Ktz

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Basis of Consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gain control
until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other
comprehensive income are attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to
the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies in line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income and expenses and cash flows relating
to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt 735 3R Mt 5

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Basis of Consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership
interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries that do not result in
the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant
components of equity including reserves and
the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiaries. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted after re-attribution of the relevant
equity component, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and
is calculated as the difference between () the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of
the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the
Company. All amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition for subsequent accounting
under HKAS 39, when applicable, the cost
on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements Bt #53R R Ktz

3

(b)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is
measured at fair value, which is calculated as
the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition
date, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities and
liabilites or assets related to employee
benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19
Employee Benefits respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to
share-based payment arrangements of
the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered
into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition
date; and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are
classified as held for sale in accordance
with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations
are measured in accordance with that
standard.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt 735 3R Mt 5

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the
sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree
(if any) over the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed
as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of
the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer's previously held interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of
liquidation may be initially measured either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of
non-controlling interests are measured at their
fair value.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R &K i st

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

Business combinations (Continued)

When a business combination is achieved
in stages, the Group’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when
the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss.
Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree
prior to the acquisition date that have previously
been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where
such treatment would be appropriate if that
interest were disposed of.

Investments in associates and
joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence. Significant influence
is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets
of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 81 %53k & Kzt

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Investments in associates and
joint ventures (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of
associates and joint ventures are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of associates and joint
ventures used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and
events in similar circumstances. Under the
equity method, an investment in an associate
or a joint venture is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint
venture. When the Group’s share of losses
of an associate or a joint venture exceeds
the Group’s interest in that associate or joint
venture (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate or joint venture),
the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate or joint
venture.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt #53R R Ktz

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Investments in associates and
joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint
venture is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate or
a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the
investment over the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to
determine whether it is necessary to recognise
any impairment loss with respect to the
Group’s investment in an associate or a joint
venture. When necessary, the entire carrying
amount of the investment (including goodwiill)
is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 /mpairment of Assets as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of
the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Investments in associates and
joint ventures (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control
over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in the investee
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. When the Group retains an
interest in the former associate or joint venture
and the retained interest is a financial asset
within the scope of HKAS 39, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at
that date and the fair value is regarded as its
fair value on initial recognition. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate
or joint venture and the fair value of any retained
interest and any proceeds from disposing
the relevant interest in the associate or joint
venture is included in the determination of the
gain or loss on disposal of the associate or
joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that
associate or joint venture on the same basis
as would be required if that associate or joint
venture had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate or joint venture would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit
or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when
the equity method is discontinued.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#3Rk &K izt

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Investments in associates and
joint ventures (Continued)

The Group continues to use the equity
method when an investment in an associate
becomes an investment in a joint venture or
an investment in a joint venture becomes
an investment in an associate. There is no
remeasurement to fair value upon such
changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest
in an associate or a joint venture but the Group
continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion
of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if
that gain or loss would be reclassified to profit
or loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an
associate or a joint venture of the Group, profits
and losses resulting from the transactions with
the associate or joint venture are recognised in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate or
joint venture that are not related to the Group.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business less accumulated
impairment losses, if any, and is presented
separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units (or group of cash-generating
units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, which represent
the lowest level at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes
and not larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually,
or more frequently when there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwil
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period,
the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-
generating units) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the
end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount is less than the carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill and then to
the other assets on pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or
group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating
unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the amount of
profit or loss on disposal.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R R Ktz

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including
leasehold land (classified as finance leases) and
buildings and site improvements held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes other than
construction in progress and freehold land, are
stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Depreciation is recognised so
as to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment other than construction
in progress and freehold land less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Estimated
useful life
Leasehold land and
buildings and site
improvements outside
Hong Kong
- on medium term lease 20 to 50 years

Buildings and site improvements
in Hong Kong

—on short lease
Plant and machinery
Furniture, fittings and office
equipment
Motor vehicles

1to 10 years
5to 15 years

510 10 years
510 10 years
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Construction in progress is included in
property, plant and equipment in the course
of construction for production, supply, or
administrative purposes. The amortisation
of prepaid lease payments provided during
the construction period is included as part
of costs of building under construction.
Costs also include professional fees and, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. Construction in progress are carried
at cost less any recognised impairment loss.
Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis
as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R & M st

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f)

Impairment losses on tangible
and intangible assets other than
goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets with finite useful lives other
than goodwill to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. Where a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f)

Impairment losses on tangible
and intangible assets other than
goodwill (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a
cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The
carrying amount of an asset is not reduced
below the highest of its fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have
been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata
to the other assets of the unit. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or
cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash generating
unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R R Ktz

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(9)

(h)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost, comprises direct
materials, and where applicable, direct labour,
and those overheads that have been incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition.

Costs of inventories are calculated using
weighted average method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated cost of completion
and costs necessary to make the sales.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continueaq)

(i)

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into one
of the two categories, including loans
and receivables and available-for-
sale financial assets. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at
the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised
on trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a
method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an
effective interest basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continueaq)

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R R Ktz

3

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are
non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including trade
receivables, other receivables, amounts
due from immediate holding company,
fellow subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates and bank balances and
cash) are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on
financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets
are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are
not classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments. The Group designated
the unquoted equity investments as
available-for-sale financial assets.

For available-for-sale equity investments
that do not have a quoted market price
in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured, they are
measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each
reporting period (see accounting policy
on impairment loss on financial assets
below).
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continuea)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets
Financial assets are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of
each reporting period. Financial assets
are considered to be impaired where
there is objective evidence that, as
a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the financial assets have
been affected.

For available-for-sale equity investments,
a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of the security below its cost is
considered to be objective evidence of
impairment.

For financial assets, objective evidence
of impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or counterparty;

o breach of contract, such as
default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments;

° it becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active
market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R R Ktz

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continueaq)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continueq)

For financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the amount of the impairment loss
recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost,
the amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial
asset is reduced by the impairment loss
directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where
the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account.
When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited to profit or loss. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continueaq)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continueq)

For financial assets measured at
amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date
the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity
instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continueaq)

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R R Ktz

3

(ii)

Financial liabilities and equity
instruments (Continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract
that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of an entity after deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Group are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own
equity instruments is recognised and
deducted directly in equity. No gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss on the
purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of
the Company’s own equity instruments.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a
method of calculating the amortised cost
of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees
and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an
effective interest basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continuead)

(ii)

Financial liabilities and equity
instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including bank
borrowings, trade payables, other
payables, bills payable, amounts due to
immediate holding company, associates
and joint ventures are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Financial liability at fair value through
profit or loss

A financial liability is classified as held for
trading if:

- it has been incurred principally for
the purpose of repurchasing in
the near term;

= on initial recognition it is a part of
a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group
manages together and has a
recent actual pattern of short-
term profit-taking; or

- it is a derivative that is not
designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Financial asset/liability at fair value
through profit or loss include held-for-
trading derivative financial instrument
that is not designated and effective as
hedging instrument. At the end of each
reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition, financial asset/liability at fair
value through profit or loss is measured
at fair value, with changes in fair value
arising on remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in
which it arises.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R R Ktz

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continueaq)

(iii)

Derivative financial instrument
and hedging

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair
value at the date a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end
of the reporting period. The resulting
gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss immediately unless the derivative is
designated and effective as a hedging
instrument, in which event the timing of
the recognition in profit or loss depends
on the nature of the hedge relationship.

Hedge accounting

The Group uses derivative financial
instruments (primarily foreign currency
forward contracts) as hedges of the
foreign currency risk in respect of
the notes issued. Such hedges are
designated and accounted for as cash
flow hedges.

At the inception of the hedging
relationship, the Group documents
the relationship between the hedging
instrument and hedged item, along
with its risk management objectives
and its strategy for undertaking various
hedge transactions. Furthermore, at
the inception of the hedge and on an
ongoing basis, the Group documents
whether the hedging instrument that is
used in a hedging relationship is highly
effective in offsetting changes in cash
flows of the hedged item.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continueaq)

(iii)

Derivative financial instrument
and hedging (Continued)

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes
in the fair value of derivatives that
are designated and qualified as
cash flow hedges are recognised in
other comprehensive income and
accumulated in hedge reserve. The gain
or loss relation to the ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity (hedge reserve)
are reclassified to profit or loss in the
periods when the hedged item is
recognised in profit or loss.

Hedge accounting is discontinued
when the Group revokes the hedging
relationship, the hedging instrument
expires or is sold, terminated, or
exercised, or when it no longer qualifies
for hedge accounting. Any gain or loss
recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity
at that time remains in equity and is
recognised in profit or loss when the
hedged items affect profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continueaq)

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R R Ktz

3

(iii)

Derivative financial instrument
and hedging (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a
contract that requires the issuer to make
specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the original
or modified terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contracts issued by
the Group are initially measured at their
fair values and, if not designated as at
FVTPL, are subsequently measured at
the higher of: (i) the amount of obligation
under the contract, as determined in
accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with the revenue recognition

policy.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial
asset only when the contractual rights to
the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset,
the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable
and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continueaq)

(iii) Derivative financial instrument
and hedging (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

The Group derecognises financial
liabilities when, and only when, the
Group’s obligation are discharged,
cancelled or expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and
represents amounts receivable for goods sold
or services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related
taxes.

Revenue from manufacturing and
logistics operations

Revenue from manufacturing operations
is recognised either at the time when the
containers being delivered and title has passed
to customers or acceptance notes being issued
by customers; depending on the terms of the
underlying sales contracts and all the following
condiitions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer
the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing
managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership nor
effective control over the goods sold;
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R R Ktz

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(i)

Revenue recognition (Continuea)

Revenue from manufacturing and
logistics operations (Continued)

° the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably;
o it is probable that the economic benefits

associated with the transaction will flow
to the Group; and

° the costs incurred or to be incurred
in respect of the transaction can be
measured reliably.

Revenue from logistics services operations is
recognised when the services are rendered.

Deposits and instalments received from
customers prior to meeting the above criteria
for revenue recognition are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position
under current liabilities.

Dividend and interest income

Dividend income from investments is
recognised when the shareholders’ rights
to receive payment has been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the amount
of revenue can be measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is
recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income from a financial asset
is accrued on a time basis, by reference to
the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

@)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases
whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in the profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease.

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification
of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment
as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each
element have been transferred to the Group,
unless it is clear that both elements are
operating leases in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically,
the minimum lease payments (including any
lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements
in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and
building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R R Ktz

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

@)

(k)

Leasing (Continuea)

Leasehold land for own use
(Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease
payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is amortised over the
lease term on a straight-line basis. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the
entire lease is generally classified as a finance
lease and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the
tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
“profit before taxation” as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because it
excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years, and it
further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt 7R 3R Mt 5

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(k)

Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and interests in
associates and joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests
are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R R Ktz

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(k)

Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised to
profit or loss, except when they relate to items
that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business
combination.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt 7R 3R Mt 5

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

()

Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of each
group entity are presented in the currency
of the primary economic environment in
which the group entity operates (its functional
currency). For the purpose of the consolidated
financial statements, the financial performance
and position of each entity are expressed in
US$, which is the functional currency of the
Company, and the presentation currency for the
consolidated financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements of
each individual group entity, transactions in
currencies other than the functional currency
of that entity (“foreign currencies”) are
recorded in the respective functional currency
(i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at
the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates
of transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise, except
for exchange differences on monetary items
receivable from or payable to a foreign
operation for which settlement is neither
planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming
part of the net investment in the foreign
operation), which are recognised initially in other
comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on disposal or partial
disposal of the Group’s interests.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R R Ktz

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

()

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities
of the Group’s foreign operations including
comparatives are expressed in US$ using
exchange rate prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses are
translated at monthly average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates
fluctuated significantly during that year, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of the exchange
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e.
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in a joint arrangement or an associate
that includes a foreign operation of which the
retained interest becomes a financial asset),
all of the exchange differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 81753k & Kzt

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

()

(m)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal
of a subsidiary that does not result in the
Group losing control over the subsidiary, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or
loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial
disposals of associates or joint arrangements
that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence or joint control), the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange differences
is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on
identifiable assets acquired arising on the
acquisitions of a foreign operation on or after
1 January 2005 are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign operation and translated
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Exchange differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Retirement benefit costs

In respect of the subsidiaries in the PRC,
the Group contributes to a state-managed
retirement benefit schemes operated by the
PRC government. Contribution payable by
the Group to the schemes is charged to the
profit or loss when employees have rendered
services entitling them to the contributions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R R Ktz

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(m) Retirement benefit costs (Continuea)

(n)

Prior to 1 December 2000, the Group
contributed to defined contribution retirement
schemes which were available to certain
employees of Hong Kong. The assets of these
schemes are held separately and managed
by independent trustees. The amount of the
Group’s contributions, net of any contributions
forfeited in respect of those employees who
leave the schemes prior to vesting fully in the
contributions, is charged to the profit or loss
as incurred when employees have rendered
services entitling them to the contributions.

Effective from 1 December 2000, the Group
operates and contributes to Mandatory
Provident Fund (“MPF”) schemes which are
available to all employees of Hong Kong. The
assets of the scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in funds under the control
of trustees. Contribution payable by the Group
to the MPF scheme is charged to the profit or
loss when employees have rendered services
entitling them to the contributions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such
time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt 7R 3R Mt 5

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(o)

(p)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group
has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable
that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation. Provisions
are measured at the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision
is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows
(where the effect of the time value of money is
material).

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined
by reference to the fair value of share options
granted at the grant date is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share option
reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to ultimately vest. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates
during the vesting period, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss, such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with
a corresponding adjustment to share option
reserve.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016

3

BEE

(o)

()

SETEE (#)

i

2 NG B 36 5 IR 1M 3RS 7R &
R CEAEEBRIEEERT),
W HIRATRE B RIBITAFE S -
MZEHN SRS A SEM i ET
By - NERE S WL BRI -
ERSBRENSEREEE R
R EABOER N REEMEZ
% HREHRETIREELA
B ATEHE AR E(ET - IR A
RNTEHETRIEEHAH L
MR RENRGTE  HikES
BREZHeRENRE(ESE
MWEHEEESEANTER)

Y2 a2
UHEESEERUBRRZHR S

PS8 B AR RAE
PSSR AL BETD 2
BAENEREBNA L EEE
R BRI B SR
R (HARIEEENE) A
#10-

AEBNHEHRETARRR
SRENBRESR NI EH
NETRBRENTE (ME)R
BETER - B BRSO RIR
EFTR B TEHERAER
P HEE i s



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R R Ktz

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(p) Share-based payments (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (Continued)

Share options granted to employees
(Continuead)

When the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option
reserve will be transferred to share capital.
When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised
in share option reserve wil be transferred to
accumulated profits.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 81753k & Kzt

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continueq)

Estimated provision for losses incurred
in relation to the explosion in Tianjin
and the destruction by typhoon in
Xiamen

Tianjin explosion

Due to the explosion which took place on 12 August
2015 in Tianjin Port (the “Incident”) in the Binhai New
Area of Tianjin (the “Tianjin Port”), a building in the
depot of the Group which is located next to the Tianjin
Port was damaged, and part of those containers kept
on behalf of the customers were destroyed.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, a
provision of US$2,402,000 was made in relation to the
settlements of contractual obligations arising from the
Incident which are based on the number of containers
damaged and their estimated production costs. As of
the date of report, the claims of loss arising from the
Incident from insurance companies and the settlement
with customers have mostly finalised.

A further provision of US$10,525,000 was provided
during the year and charged to profit or loss which
represented voluntary settlements for the purpose
of business relationship. The provision remained
in other payables as at 31 December 2016 was
US$3,198,000 as disclosed in note 33.

On the other hand, the compensation received from
insurance company, amounting to RMB25,650,000
(equivalent to US$3,875,000) has also been recorded
as other income and credited to current year’s profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R & M st

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continueq)

Estimated provision for losses incurred
in relation to the explosion in Tianjin
and the destruction by typhoon in
Xiamen (Continued)

Xiamen typhoon destruction

Due to the typhoon which took place on 15
September 2016 in Xiamen, some containers kept in
the depots of Xiamen on behalf of customers were
damaged. A provision amounting to US$1,941,000
was made in current year and charged to profit
or loss which represented voluntary settlements
for the purpose of business relationship, based
on the number of containers damaged and their
estimated production costs. Part of the amount
can be recovered from the sale of those damaged
containers made in January 2017 at RMB5,250,000
(equivalent to US$757,000). The remaining is expected
to be recovered from insurance claim which is still in
progress at the date of this report.

Where the future cash outflows are more than
expected, further provision may arise.

Estimated impairment of the long
overdue trade receivable

Included in the trade receivables as disclosed in note
24 was the amount of US$5,553,000 (net of allowance
of US$611,000) which has been due from a customer
since 2013.

In 2015, a legal action was taken by the Group against
the customer and its business partner (the “Business
Partner”). In November 2016, the Group received
the first court judgment from Xiamen Intermediate
People’s Court which decided that the Business
Partner was solely liable to settle the overdue trade
balance of US$6,164,000. Following the court’s
decision, the Business Partner submitted to the court
for appeal. As of the date of the report, the appeal is in
progress and has not been concluded.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 81753k & Kzt

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continueq)

Estimated impairment of the long
overdue trade receivable (Continued)

The recoverability of the overdue trade receivable
is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Management has
exercised its judgments in determining the amount
of impairment and has concluded that there was no
further impairment made in respect of the overdue
trade receivable as at 31 December 2016 based on
latest status of the litigation. Where there is a change in
circumstances, a material impairment loss may arise.

Valuation of property, plant and
equipment and impairment of goodwill

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment of the Company’s five
subsidiaries to which goodwill has been allocated
to was US$75,428,000, and the carrying amount of
goodwill of the Group was US$3,589,000.

Property, plant and equipment mainly represent
leasehold land and buildings and site improvements
as well as plant and machinery. For the purpose
of impairment assessment, goodwill that arose
from acquisitions is allocated to property, plant and
equipment of five manufacturing subsidiaries of the
Company in manufacturing of container to form the
Group’s cash-generating units. As at 31 December
2016, management has conducted an assessment
to ensure that the carrying amount of each cash-
generating unit which has been determined based
on value in use calculations are carried at no more
than their recoverable amounts. The value in use
calculations are dependent on inputs that involve
management’s judgments, including preparation of
cash flow forecasts, determination of the discount
rates, growth rates and expected changes to selling
prices and direct costs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R & M st

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Valuation of property, plant and
equipment and impairment of goodwill
(Continued)

Based on management’s assessment, during the
year ended 31 December 2016, an impairment loss
of US$2,657,000 was allocated to goodwill and no
impairment loss was identified for property, plant and
equipment. Where the actual future cash flows are less
than expected, or change in facts and circumstances
which results in downward revision of future cash
flows, further impairment loss may arise.

Estimated allowance for doubtful debts

The Group makes allowance for doubtful debts
based on an assessment of the recoverability of trade
receivables taking into consideration the estimation
of future cash flows. The allowance is measured as
the difference between the carrying amount of the
assets and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition). Allowances
are applied to trade receivables where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected and where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be collectible. The identification
of doubtful debts requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expectation on the recoverability
of trade receivables is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact carrying value
of trade receivables and doubtful debt expenses in
the years in which such estimate has been changed.
As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount
of trade receivables was US$209,163,000 (2015:
US$146,765,000).
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Notes to the Financial Statements 81753k & Kzt

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation
processes

Some of the Group’s assets are measured at fair value
for financial reporting purposes. The directors of the
Company are responsible for the determination of the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair
value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of the assets, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is
available.

In estimating the fair value of derivative financial
instruments, the Group uses discounted cash flow
technique that include inputs that are based on
observable market data to estimate the fair value
of certain types of financial instruments. Note 42c
provides detailed information about the valuation
techniques, inputs and key assumptions used in the
determination of the fair value of various assets.

As described in note 42c, the directors of the
Company use their judgement in selecting an
appropriate valuation technique for financial instrument
not quoted in an active market. Valuation techniques
commonly used by market practitioners are applied.
For derivative financial instrument, assumptions are
made based on quoted market rates adjusted for
specific features of the instrument. The fair value of
the derivative financial instruments as at 31 December
2016 was estimated at assets of US$356,000 (2015:
a liability of US$20,000).

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R & M st

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

In applying the accounting policy on property,
plant and equipment with respect to depreciation,
management estimates the useful lives of various
categories of property, plant and equipment according
to the Group’s experiences over the usage of
property, plant and equipment and also by reference
to the relevant industrial norm. If the actual useful
lives of property, plant and equipment is less than
the original estimate useful lives due to changes in
commercial and technological environment, such
difference will impact the depreciation charge for the
remaining useful life. As at 31 December 2016, the
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment was
US$349,195,000 (2015: US$359,855,000).

REVENUE

Revenue represents sales of goods from
manufacturing and services income from logistics
services operations, less returns, discounts and sales
related taxes, and is analysed as follows:

4
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+=—A=+—H8 W% %%%& % BR
HE1{E A349,195,000% T (ZE— R4 :

359,855,000% 7T, ) °

ERHE
HEIRRIE R 2 HE R RRES 2

BWLI& DRERED - TR A BHEER
DR :

2016 2015

—E-RE —RF

US$’000 US$'000

FER FETT

Manufacturing BUEET 880,654 1,093,802
Logistics services )i AR 7% 35,779 32,612
916,433 1,126,414
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt 7R 3R Mt 5

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Group’s chief operating
decision maker (i.e. Chief Executive Officer) for the
purpose of resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance are organised into two
operating divisions — manufacturing and logistics
services. These divisions are the basis on which the
Group reports its segment information under HKFRS
8.

No operating segments identified by the chief
operating decision maker have been aggregated in
arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

Principal activities are as follows:

Manufacturing - manufacturing of marine dry freight
containers, refrigerated containers,
collapsible flatrack containers, tank
containers, US domestic containers,
offshore containers, other specialised
containers and container parts.

Logistics - provision of container storage, repair and
services trucking services, serving as a freight
station, container/cargo handling and other

container related services.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R & M st

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 DEER®

Information regarding these segments is presented REDEEHEHRBOT
below:
Segment revenue and results THEXEERFA
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and REERMERKED B EXBRE
results by reportable and operating segment: BT
2016 — 7~
Logistics
Manufacturing services Sub-total  Eliminations Total
HEEK MR R et ik ot
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
S S TEn S S
REVENUE EXE
External sales HOMHE 880,654 35,179 916,433 - 916,433
Inter-segment sales PHREHEE - 5,881 5,881 (5,:881) -
Total CE 880,654 41,660 922,314 (5,881) 916,433
Inter-segment sales HBRHEEER
are charged at prevaiing DERTTISER
market prices. Exe
SEGMENT RESULTS PHEE (50,545) 907 (49,638) - (49,638)
Finance costs BBER (11,060)
Investment income REKA 2,764
Change in fair value fTEERIAL
of derivative NrEES
financial instruments 376
Share of results of associates  EREEE ARl Z B (1,201)
Share of results of joint ventures ~ [E{RA BN E 7 &7 410
Loss before taxation BEAIEE (68,349)

BRHEBEEXARAT « —T—RNFFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements 81753k & Kzt

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueq) 6 oIER B
Segment revenue and results (Continued) THEXRBEREER (B
2015 —E-RF
Logistics
Manufacturing services Sub-total  Eliminations Total
HEXK Nk by NG i &%
US§'000 US§'000 US§'000 US§000 US§'000
FE7 TET TET TET TEn
REVENUE EXE
External sales HIMAE 1,093,802 2612 1,126414 - 1126414
Inter-segment sales PEFEHE - 7475 7475 (7,475) -
Total At 1,093,802 40,087 1,133,889 (7,479) 1,126,414
Inter-segment sales PHREEEER
are charged at prevaiing IR TIHER
market prices. Exe
SEGMENT RESULTS PHEE 10,888 5,674 16,562 - 16,562
Finance costs FBER (10,663)
Investment income BEWA 5,086
Change in fair value fTESRIAY
of derivative MrEEED
financial instruments (259)
Share of results of associates  FEfREEE ARl Z B (2,450)
Share of results of joint ventures  [E{E A& % 2 5 659
Profit before taxation BRBLALE A 8,935

Segment results represent the (loss) profit earned by
each segment without allocation of finance costs,
investment income, change in fair value of derivative
financial instruments, share of results of associates and
share of results of joint ventures. This is the measure
reported to the Group’s Chief Executive Officer for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R R Ktz

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continueq) 6 DEER (&)
Segment assets and liabilities THEERARE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s total AEEA FHE ML ED TN BEE KRB
assets and total liabilities by reportable and operating BEITWT:
segment:
2016 —E—AfE
Logistics
Manufacturing services Total
REER W% B kel
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TERT TEn TEn
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEEE 815,603 61,093 876,696
Interests in associates N NI 5 41,931
Interests in joint ventures NN MR £ 20,833
Unallocated corporate assets AR RFEBE 286,167
Consolidated total assets RREELS 1,225,627
LIABILITIES 2
Segment liabilities AHAE 254,936 14,836 269,772
Unallocated corporate liabilities AR ARIEE 378,035
Consolidated total liabilties meRREE 647,807
OTHER INFORMATION Hitn &R
Amounts included in the measure AR ETE 2 20 A
of segment profit or loss or FEHBRA D HEE
segment assets: MeEai:
Additions of capital expenditure  FTIEE AR % 28,418 2,052 30,470
Depreciation and amortisation NEREE 30,190 3,551 33,741
Gain (loss) on disposal of property,  HEWE - HER R RE
plant and equipment ik (E18) 408 &) 405
Loss on property, plant and IEME B R
equipment written off ZE#E 49) (238) (287)
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt 7R 3R Mt 5

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 DEER®

Segment assets and liabilities (Continueqd) DEHEEREGRE (&)
2015 —F-IF
Logistics
Manufacturing services Total
BERK MR B
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TE1n TEn TErn
ASSETS {3
Segment assets NEEE 737,297 63,040 800,337
Interests in associates N =N E 43983
Interests in joint ventures REEE #R 22,391
Unallocated corporate assets APERRBE 299,329
Consolidated total assets RAEERE 1,166,040
LIABILITIES &
Segment liabilties NHAE 175,498 13,919 189,417
Unallocated corporate liabilities vl W/NN=T 328,962
Consolidated total liabilties FRRERR 518,379
OTHER INFORMATION HitER
Amounts included in the measure ~ FERA5HE 2 203 A1l 3,
of segment profit or loss or BEIDHEEN
segment assets: SEERE:
Additions of capital expenditure  FTiE B ARFI% 41,156 1,00 42,165
Depreciation and amortisation WEREH 26,859 3517 30,376
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE B RS R
plant and equipment 3,044 377 3,421
Loss on property, plant and REELIERY S Tl
equipment written off (105) ©) (111)
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R R Ktz

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6

Segment assets and liabilities (Continuead)

The amounts included in other information are part of
the reportable and operating segments.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances
and allocating resources between segments:

- all assets are allocated to operating segments
other than interests in associates, interests in
joint ventures and unallocated corporate assets.
Assets used jointly by reportable segments are
allocated on the basis of the revenue earned by
individual reportable segments; and

- all liabilities are allocated to operating
segments other than unallocated corporate
liabilities, which included current and deferred
tax liabilities. Liabilities for which reportable
segments are jointly liable are allocated in
proportion to segment assets.

Revenue from major products and
services

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue
from its major products and services (after elimination
of inter-segment sales):

TEER (&)
NEHEERAGE (&)
EEIE E b B B ERIE Ty AT SR R AR A

REVEE SRR D BRBNERD
fic:

- KBREBEQRZ#EZ RAEDR

X2 MAD R ABEESIN
FEEES D RERKEDE-R
HEDBEEBE 2 BETIZE
BRI $R & 0 8B 2 ‘& SRR S A
gol Rl d

I

_H:r

- BARIEXFABE(BEAFE

BMBENMBELEHBRAE) FAAERE
VOREZENE-AIHREDHE
BB ZRENROMEER
A LBl fE > e

FTEEmMmRBRBZERE

AEBEIRERLRE 2EXBOMN
T (EHEHEDHEEE) -

2016 2015
—E-XF —ZT—hF
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FETT
Manufacturing: BUEFERS:

Dry freight containers s ERMA 584,341 644,627
Refrigerated containers RRERE 84,156 155,592
Tank containers AR 56,303 111,247
US domestic containers ERENPESREM 77,972 121,648

Other specialised containers and HEabir@Eesa &
container parts SERMARH 77,882 60,688
Logistics services Y7 IR T% 35,779 32,612
916,433 1,126,414
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Notes to the Financial Statements 81753k & Kzt

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 DEER®

Geographical information Hh [ 5 &1

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong REBZEBOIMREBRPE - RE
and the PRC. The Group’s manufacturing division B REEBRNPE - YRR
is located in the PRC. Logistics services division is BERPEH-

located in Hong Kong and the PRC.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s TREHAEEIZTFE 2 & M5
revenue by geographical market based on the location DM ERE WAREZRERMEEEM
of customers, irrespective of the origin of the goods/ ARG TR AL IR Hb -
services:
2016 2015
ZE-RE —T-IOF
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FETT
USA ES 320,676 423,386
Hong Kong B 155,859 197,952
Europe M 143,970 186,321
Singapore nig 112,526 24,007
PRC s 81,650 138,534
Taiwan =N 32,138 48,568
Others H A 69,614 107,646
916,433 1,126,414
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical information (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of
segment assets and non-current assets, other than
financial instruments, analysed by the geographical
area in which the assets are located:

Carrying amount of
segment assets

TEER (&)

WE 5 EB (2)

AT 2itE CEEFEM) DD BE
ERFERDEE (SMIARIN) 2EE
SHE -

Carrying amount of non-
current assets other than
financial instruments

SET BN
PHEEZ kRBEEZ
RHEHFE BREFE
2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-RE ZT-HF ZE-RE —T—AOfF
US$000  US$000  US$000  USS000
FER e FEx FER
PRC B 849,186 762,103 459,042 465,647
Hong Kong 5 27,463 38,106 16,713 15,433
Others =) 47 128 30,648 38,232
876,696 800337 506,403 519312
Information about major customers FEXREA

Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the
total sales of the Group are mainly derived from the
manufacturing segment. In 2016, one customer (2015:
no customer) contributes over 10% of the total sales
amounting to US$128,272,000.

OTHER INCOME

Included in other income was the compensation
received from insurance claim, amounting to
RMB25,650,000 (equivalent to US$3,875,000) for the
Tianjin explosion as disclosed in note 4.

EAKRBEHEEAEBEI0NNEFE
EREBREXG DR -R_F—R"F-
HHELBBEBIONHNEFE — K

“E-hEF - EBEP) HEERER
128,272,0003 7T

HAtbig A

REMKAFREIET KEBEIEZRBR
B BE(E & A R#25,650,0007T (FHE R
3,875,000 7T) * FAMIsE4 K 5 -
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8 FINANCE COSTS 8 HKEH
2016 2015
—RE —RE
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Interest on bank loans BRAFAZTIEE L
and overdrafts wholly IRITERKBEZFE
repayable within five years 9,257 9,016
Bank charges RITFEE 1,803 1,647
11,060 10,663
9 INVESTMENT INCOME 9 BEWA
2016 2015
—XRE —hE
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Interest earned on bank deposits RITFE AT B A 2,052 3,209
Interest income from an associate —EE R R ERF B A 712 482
Interest income from a joint venture ~ — A B EERF B WA - 518
Dividend income from Al E 2 R E R B A
available-for-sale investment - 877
2,764 5,086
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R & M st

10 (LOSS) PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 10 %Al (B18) &R

2016 2015
ZEB-RFE —ET—RHF
US$’000 US$'000
FER TETT
(Loss) profit before taxation has been i AT (&1 ) %K 2 0
arrived at after charging (crediting) (2 A) T5I%I15 -
the following:
Auditor’s remuneration % ERRT BN 649 554
Staff costs, including directors’ EBERAN BIEEE#HE
emoluments
— Salaries and other benefits - HF & NEMEF 124,005 122,879
— Retirement benefit costs — RN R (MFEE12)
(note 12) 5,044 4,651
129,049 127,530
Depreciation and amortisation e &y
Depreciation of property, plant and WS RGER G SR BT EE
equipment 31,993 28,909
Amortisation of prepaid lease TR E 2 FEAT
payments in respect of leasehold fAE%g
land B 1,748 1,467
33,741 30,376
Operating lease charges 4R AT E B
— Land and buildings - T RIEF 5,316 6,059
— Plant and machinery — ML T =0 115 203
5,431 6,262
Allowance for doubtful debts RIFEEAEE - 653

BRHEBEEXARAT « —T—RNFFR
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10 (LOSS) PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 10 FRBiAl (B18) %R (@)

(Continued)
2016 2015
—E-X"E —T—hF
US$’000 US$'000
FEx TETT
Share of taxation charge of associates i {f B 42 /A 7] 54 18 323 246
Share of taxation charge of FE(HEEBERIA
joint ventures 146 270
469 516
Cost of inventories recognised as EREANERAZEE
expense 875,784 1,038,679
Gain on disposal of property, HHEE M  MESR T SR
plant and equipment S5 F| (405) (3,421)
Loss on property, plant and ERiEIE R Yy
equipment written off &8 287 111
Impairment of goodwill HE 7 E 2,657 _
Adjustment of goodwill of an associate — B 44 /X 7] 7 pg & 22 5,465 -
Compensation received from RFBBIEZ R RFEEES
insurance claim for Tianjin explosion (3,875) -
Provision for Tianjin explosion SHERRIEE 2 BE 10,525 2,402
Provision for Xiamen typhoon SHE B PR R A IE 2 B
destruction 1,941 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R & M st

DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST 11 EEREEESFMHMALZ
PAID INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS [, |67
The following was the emoluments paid or payable to UWTRENSEN T (ZE—R4F:
each of the 10 (2015: 10) Directors of the Company. TH)EEZEEME -
2016 ZB-RF
Teo Chan Teo Chung Cheng Lau
Siong Kwok Tiou PuiKing, Kuan Tan Fu Kwok, Ho Kit, Ong Yang,
Seng Leung Seng Rebecca KimKin Chor Kee David lvan  Ka Thai Victor Total
RRE RER REEB  ERR BHEE REE  HHE UK EIRZE BEH Fot)
(Note)
(L)
US$'000 US$'000 US$000 US$000 USH000 USH000 USH000 US$000 US$'000 US$000  USS$000
TE¥x TEx TEx TEx @ TEx TER O TER O TER O TER O TER O TER
Fees ik 50 26 26 26 4 26 26 46 36 44 347
Other emoluments: ~ E & :
Salaries and other ¥4 R E A
benefits & 430 325 - 204 - - - - - - 959
Contributions to RINEF
retirement benefit 43k
scheme 22 15 - 9 - - - - - - 46
Performance related 4 & T{E
incentive payments  XBEEE - - - - - - - - - - -
502 366 26 239 4 26 26 46 36 44 1,352
2015 —E-RF
Teo Chan Teo Chung Cheng Lau
Siong Kwok Tiou  PuiKing, Kuan Tan  Fu Kwok, Ho Kit, Ong Yang,
Seng Leung Seng  Rebecca KimKin ~ Chor Kee David lvan Ka Thai Victor Total
wINE  RER  RPB SR WRE  BEE  BHE AR EXZ BES ek
(Note)
(BfsE)
US$000  US$000 US$000 US$000  US$000  US$000  US$000  US$000  USH000  USH000  USHO00
T FFEr FFER FER FER OTER OFER O TER TER OFER TER
Fees e 50 26 2 11 # 26 26 46 36 44 332
Other emoluments: ~ E £ :
Salaries and other & R EEF|
benefits 425 334 - 196 - - - - - - 955
Contributions to R
retirement benefit
scheme 21 15 - 9 - - - - - - 45
Performance related 48 R T{ERHE
incentive payments B & - 52 - 32 - - - - - - 84
496 427 26 248 4 26 26 46 36 44 1,416
Mr. Teo Siong Seng is also the Chief Executive Officer RINBEETIARNRNRIERITBRE A

of the Company and his emoluments disclosed above
include those for services rendered by him as the Chief

Executive Officer.

Note:

executive director on 2 July 2015.

Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca has been appointed as

EREZHEE BRMIESEFTTHRE

B2 PTHR (A AR 755 2 B

/\O
N7

Bist: BMRRXLR-FE—aF+H_AEEZE

RHTEE-
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt 7R 3R Mt 5

11 DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

The above analysis includes 3 (2015: 3) Directors
whose emoluments were among the five highest
paid individuals in the Group. Details of the aggregate
emoluments paid to the remaining 2 (2015: 2)
individuals whose emoluments were among the five
highest paid individuals in the Group and which have
not been included in Directors’ emoluments above are
set out below:

11

BEERTEBEREFMALZ
< =)

ERANE BEAEEE L RS HH
AtdEhy =4 (ZF—HF: =4)
£ - EWEBAE (CE—HF W
%) BAEEEAEEBHFMAL S
MARIIA LREFME R AL K
ATt eRENT -

2016 2015
—E-XF —ZT—hF
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Salaries and other benefits FekEMmET 266 312
Retirement benefit costs IR PR AE F R 6 13
272 325

Their emoluments were within the following bands: ®BEZMETIE TS EE :
2016 2015
—E—-RE —E—FRF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A A

US$128,843 — US$193,264 128,843 7T, — 193,264 7T,
(HK$1,000,000 — HK$1,500,000) (1,000,0007% 7T — 1,500,000

BIT) 2 2

No waiver of emoluments, compensation loss and
inducement to join or upon joining the Group was paid
to directors of the Company or the five highest paid
individuals during the year .
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R R Ktz

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

Prior to 1 December 2000, the Group operated
defined contribution retirement schemes for certain
employees in Hong Kong. These schemes are
registered under the Occupational Retirement Scheme
Ordinance. The assets of the scheme are held
separately and managed by independent trustees.
Under the rules of the schemes, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to
the scheme at rates specified in the rules. Any amount
unvested upon an employee ceasing to be a member
shall be used to offset subsequent employer’s
contributions.

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group has
joined MPF scheme for all employees in Hong Kong.
The MPF scheme is registered with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Authority under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The
assets of the MPF scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in funds under the control of an
independent trustee.

Under the rules of the MPF scheme, the employer and
its employees are each required to make contributions
to the MPF scheme at rates specified in the rules. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF
scheme is to make the required contributions under
the scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to
reduce the contribution payable in the future years.

The employees of subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of state-sponsored retirement benefit
schemes operated by the government in the PRC.
Subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of relevant payroll to the retirement benefit
schemes. Obligations under the scheme are borne by
the PRC Government.

The retirement benefit costs charged to the profit or
loss representing contributions payable by the Group
to the MPF Scheme operated in Hong Kong and the
retirement benefit schemes in the PRC amounted to
US$5,044,000 (2015: US$4,651,000).

No forfeited contributions of the Group’s defined
contribution retirement schemes was used to
reduce the current year’'s contributions. At the end
of the reporting period, the Group had no forfeited
contributions, which arose from the employees leaving
the retirement schemes and which are available to
reduce the contribution payable by the Group in the
future years.
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BIRBERHRK
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AETEBRERBRILATHIRIKE
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TAFERER - RIFFTEI2HRA) BE
FEEE ZARBRERE 2L EMmETE
B WE B TBEBRNALER  AIEHE
REER IS ERERBIKIERER
BE2HRK-

R_ZEZTF+_A A AEECZ
REBFBRERIAZEHBESE -
skt 8158 R R H1E NG & AT & RB] -
RE N AR (SE SEea i 1
Sl EEDEAKENEED I HE
MEFEARE

RiEgETtE AR BERERE
BRI R IE Z He R [A) AT &I 5K - X
SERREE F 82— B ERREZX
At S (R o I 4 15RO ST HOBER R
KRB Z K

EREZ KB AR ES T BB
HETT 2R RIRIRFHEIRCE - B R PR
REEHEE T AN LRE SR
pErElz EEAEDHPERAFEE -

BiEmER 2 RNEANERIAEE
BN FZSEET BRI BIESTE
RSB ZRIRGTE 2 3R &K
5,044,000% 7t ( = ZF — A F : 4,651,000
FEJT) °

FEARSRE 2 FUE FEFUR ARG 815 I 4%
Rz R E BAERUEIR & 2 2 (HAR
B RI|EHIR  AREARA RSB
FURIRET S J BEFE R HORUE 5= B 5K
BRZORU R
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13 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13 FEHIEMRX
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the BB NS IRZMEFE A b T ER
estimated assessable profit for both years. Fiom F 2 16.5%51 5 ©
PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been calculated on B FTIS B D LAF A ET FER B &
the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates FIRARE BN R L& R 2 BT R
of taxation prevailing in the PRC in which the Group TE-
operates.
2016 2015
ZE-RE —T-IOF
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Current tax: REEHIE
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBNEB
— Current year -ARFEE 3 48
— Prior years overprovision - B R S (5) ®)
2 40
PRC Enterprise Income Tax R (R ATIS T
— Current year -KEE 4,293 11,629
— Prior years under - BIFE DM (Z ) B
(over) provision 58 (176)
4,351 11,453
Deferred tax (note 39): ERERRIE (B/3239) -
Current year credit REEESE (778) (1,206)
Income tax expense for the year RNEZFAEHRIEBERX 3,571 10,287

In accordance with the tax legislations applicable to
foreign investment enterprises, a subsidiary of the
Company are entitled to the exemption from the
PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the first three years
commencing from the first profit-making year of
operations, after offsetting all unexpired tax losses from
previous years, and thereafter to a 50% relief from
the PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the following three
years. As a result, a subsidiary of the Company was
exempted from the PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R R Ktz

13 FSHERX (&)

2016 2015
ZE-RE —T-hEF
US$'000 % US$'000 %
S Bt TExx Bt
(Loss) profit before taxation BRAtAT (BHE) &R (58,349) 8,935
Tax at the domestic tax rate AR A% % 5325%
of 25% (2015: 25%) (2015 :25% )5t & (14,587) 25,00 2,234 25.00
Tax effect of share of results ERBERRIZBEZ
of associates Mgz 2 300 (0.51) 612 6.85
Tax effect of share of results EhaErEEN 2
of joint ventures nBEe (102) 0.17 (165) (1.85)
Tax effect of expenses that TERTE R 5
are not deductible in TEER 2
determining taxable profit Mgz 2 14,074 (24.12) 6,561 73.43
Tax effect of income that R EERTAHE
are not taxable in BERR WAL
determining taxable profit RETE (3,351) 5.74 (1,979) (22.15)
Tax effect on tax losses iNCIER N2
arising in the current RBEERINBYE
year not recognised 7,358 (12.61) 4,219 47.22
Tax effect of utiisation of FRAFEARERRZ
tax losses previously not BB RETE
recognised (12) 0.02 (640) (7.16)
Under (over) provision in AIEE DM (S BiE
prior years 53 (0.09) (184) (2.06)
Income tax on concessionary rate Fff {55 /8 2= 51 & (204) 0.35 (1,418) (15.87)
Withholding tax on undistributed & 2 B2 78 2 (0
profits REFE (708) 1.21 852 9.54
Others Hity 750 (1.29) 195 2.18
Tax charge and effectiverate  AFEEFIBES H K
for the year BRHE 3,571 (6.13) 10,287 115.13

BRHEBEEXARAT « —T—RNFFR
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14

DIVIDENDS 14 BRE
2016 2015
ZEB-RFE —T—RHF
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
Dividends recognised as RFRNERRBEDIRRE
distributions during the year:
Interim in respect of current REZZHHRE - B2
financial year, paid — Nil (ZF—h1%F:
(2015: HK1.5 cents) FE@AK1.5810)
per ordinary share - 4,677
Final in respect of the previous FFEZRERKRE - EE
financial year, paid — Nil (ZE—HR%F:
(2015: HK1.5 cent) BT mAR.5%)
per ordinary share - 4,677
- 9,354

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, no final
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2016 and 2015 has been proposed by the directors of

the Company.

BB e

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R R Ktz

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on
the following data:

15 BREE

ARRIBREGEA R ESERERT
BT BIRETH

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—FhF
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET

Loss: E1E -
Loss for the purposes of HUATEERREE

calculating basic and BREBEZEE

diluted loss per share (59,434) (2,723)
Number of shares: RinEE -

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares for the purpose of
calculating basic loss per share

RUAGTEERERER
ZE BN E

2,416,919,918 2,417,371,973

The computation of diluted loss per share for the
year ended 31 December 2016 does not assume the
exercise of the Company’s outstanding share options,
as the exercise price of those options are higher than
the average market price per share for 2016, and
therefore, was anti-dilutive to the loss per share.

B AN R A R TE 2 RE AR 2 1T {8 (B
KT R"FNERFOTHERR
= iR A EER S T EHE
—E-RETA=+—BIEREET
REER I AR BEZEERE-

BRHEBEEXARAT « —T—RNFFR
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16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND

Notes to the Financial Statements Bt 7R 3R Mt 5

16 Y- -HKBIERRME

EQUIPMENT
Leasehold Furniture,
land and Plant fittings
buildings and and and office Motor Construction
site improvements machinery  equipment vehicles  in progress Total
HELHRETF BER HE RER
REIBHR RE MAERE AE HEIR ot
US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn
Cost BAR
At 1 January 2015 RZT—hF—f—H 174,095 208,738 11,465 12,513 88,214 495,025
Translation differences MEEE (763) (448) (56) 32 - (1,299)
Additions ANE 268 4,933 477 680 24,730 31,088
Disposals e (4,287) (926) 40) (749) = (6,002)
Wiite off B - (1,865) (190) (164) = (2,219)
Transfer B 76,288 17,426 468 1,493 (95,675) -
At 31 December 2015 R=ZE—hF+=A
=+—H 245,601 227,858 12,124 13,741 17,269 516,593
Translation differences neE=® (797) (480) (60) 29 = (1,360)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEH B AR - 1,948 161 57 188 2,354
Additions NE 47 4323 185 109 15,837 20,501
Disposals e - (1,200 (218) (640) = (2,148)
Wite off Fii - (512) (129) (64) - (705)
Transfer 53 5,855 10,821 319 1,734 (18,729) =
At 31 December 2016 RZB-RE+=A
=r=g 250,706 242,668 12,382 14,914 14,565 535,235
Accumulated depreciation 2iEiE
At 1 January 2015 R=ZE—h%F—F—H 40,290 83,756 4236 4777 - 133,059
Translation differences HEEE (042) (236) 23) 20) - (521)
Charge for the year AEEHE 8,837 16,957 1,023 2,092 - 28,909
Eiiminated on disposals HE S (1,175) (813) 33 (580) = (2,601)
Eliminated on write off RRiEakE| = (1,774) (173) (161) = (2,108)
At 31 December 2015 R=ZZ-h%+=RA
=+—H 47,710 97,890 5,030 6,108 - 156,738
Translation differences HMEET (290) 276) (31) 2 - (595)
Charge for the year AEEHE 10,659 18,208 993 2,133 = 31,993
Eliminated on disposals i E S - (1,167) 61) (450) - (1,678)
Eliminated on write off REEIg - (238) (124) (56) - (418)
At 31 December 2016 R=B-~E+=R
Er=" 58,079 114,417 5,807 7,137 - 186,040
Carrying values REEE
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE-A&E+ZA
Er=F 192,627 128,251 6,575 7177 14,565 349,195
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RE+=A
=f+—H 197,891 129,968 7,094 7,633 17,269 359,855

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R R Ktz

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (continued)

The carrying value of land and buildings of the Group is

16 YE - -HBRKRE &)

AREBO LW RET ZREED TN

analysed as follows: T
Leasehold
land and Site
buildings improvements Total
HE L
kEF THHR R
US$'000 US$000 US$'000
FET FTETL FETT
At 31 December 2016 RZT—RE
+=-A=+—-H
Held in Hong Kong EEBHEER 13,477 - 13,477
Held outside Hong Kong ERABNIMEIFE - 179,150 179,150
13,477 179,150 192,627
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—RE+_H
=+—H
Held in Hong Kong EEBHEEE 13,920 - 13,920
Held outside Hong Kong EEBUINERE - 183,971 183,971
13,920 183,971 197,891

The land and building elements of a lease of land and
building cannot be allocated reliably between the land
and building elements, the entire lease is treated as
property, plant and equipment.

T REFHEOTH L RET D &
FERIwEETFEHOEAESR BN
HAOBRRIEYE Bz k-

BRHEBEEXARAT « —T—RNFFR
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17 GOODWILL 17 BHE
US$'000
FET
Cost 2N
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015and W =_ZE—HAF—A—HB - ZZ—A1F
31 December 2016 +ZA=+—BR-ZT—XF
+-A=+—8 7,872
Impairment RAE
At 1 January 2015 and 31 December 2015 RZE—RAF—A—BER=ZT—1F
+-BA=+—8 1,626
Impairment loss recognised BB 1B K TERR 2,657
At 31 December 2016 RZE—-—RF+ZA=1T—H 4,283
Carrying values REEE
At 31 December 2016 R-B—RE+=-HA=+—8 3,589
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—RAF+ZHA=1T—H 6,246
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has REARMS BES @Ei & 5 Bk
been allocated to an individual CGU, including five REReHEN EEAH(ZE—AF A

(2015: five) subsidiaries in manufacturing of container.
The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
of the Company’s five subsidiaries to which goodwiill

has been allocated to was US$75,428,000.

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or

&) BREsE

emr AT 9

IB AR #es MR 2 REE
A75,428,0003 7T
AEEeRIEFAEEETREN

more frequently if there are indications that goodwill
might be impaired.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R R Ktz

GOODWILL (continuea)

The recoverable amounts of CGU is determined from
value in use calculations. The key assumptions for
the value in use calculations are those regarding the
discount rates, growth rates, and expected changes
to selling prices and direct costs during the forecast
period. Management estimates discount rates using
pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
CGU. The growth rates are based on industry growth
forecasts. Changes in selling prices and direct costs
are based on past practices and expectations of future
changes in the market.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived
from the most recent financial budgets approved by
management for the next five years and extrapolates
cash flows for the five years based on an estimated
growth rate of 3% (2015: 5%). The rate used to
discount the forecast cash flows is 10% (2015:
10%). The directors of the Company consider that
reasonably possible change in key assumptions on
which the directors of the Company have based to
determine the CGU’s recoverable amount would
not cause the CGU’s carrying amount to exceed its
recoverable amount.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

17 BZE (&)

REGReBEMMAIRE SR REER
BERE tEEREERAERMANE
ERREEBUHEREOITEER R
KA RFBRHANHEEBRMNERXER
EVTRRT B E o B IR BRI A R B G
BER ARRENTSHERRREER
M ELFRERIR & B AR B VR E R 2 BT
fl o MRERAMRIBERNIERIAA MEE
HEERMERERANEEHUNSH

FE s B HIFIE R R E E N REERETE
BB

AEENRESRERARBREROAE
BEMBLNARRAFNMBEARER
B WHR3% (ZF— 0 F :5%) &t
BREERREARFORSRE - HAL
BRABRERENEERENHEERR
10% (ZE—HF:10%) - EFZRRA
NHEFREREEMAINEICENER
REREBEMEMAIEES) N 53
RenEBUnEmERLErTKE S
#o

18 REFE LRz

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—FhF
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Unlisted shares and investments: JE LT 2R RIRE -
At cost 7 dDWIN 52,602 52,180
Share of post-acquisition reserves, FEAG W12 R
net of dividend received BB AR A (10,671) (8,197)
41,931 43,983
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Notes to the Financial Statements 81753k & Kzt

18 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18 REtE QT ZfEsm (8
(Continued)
Particulars of associates as at 31 December 2016 and RZE—AREFER_FTE—HF+_H
2015 are set out below: =+ —H AEEZEEBEQRZF
BT
Place of

Form of incorporation/

business registration Proportion of
Name structure and operation Group equity interest voting power held Principal activities

R/ MR T58 Jiits3
2R KIFR gEY Fris R B 1id] TEER
2016 2015 2016 2015

—E-XE -I-7F CB-xE —ZI-F&

Modex Holding Limited (‘Modex) Incorporated British Virgin 29.9%" 29.9%" 33.3%" 33.3%"  Manufacturing and leasing
=B Islands (Note 1) (Note 1) Note 1) (Note 1) of offshore containers
EERLES (Hit) (Hiitt) (Hit1) (HiF1) BEREERISER

Ningbo Victory Container Co., Ltd. * Incorporated PRC 40.0%" 40.0%" 40.0%" 40.0%" Provision of container
BERRBEREBAR =B i (Note 2) storage and repair services
(Hiz2) REEEMBEER

HER%

Singamas Thai Logistics Co., Ltd. * Incorporated Thailand 25.0%" 250%" 25.0% 25.0% Provision of container
& % Note 3) storage and repair services

(#:3) REEEMBER

BER%

Xiamen Xiangyu Singamas Incorporated PRC 35.0%" 35.0%" 28.6%" 28.6%" Provision of container
Container Co., Ltd. * VAC] i (Note 4) storage, repair and
EMREBEHERER AR (fr#t4) trucking senvices, and
senving as a freight station

R ERHRE &
BEREELRG

* Associates held directly by the Company * AREIEZEIFBEI B ERE]

# Equity joint venture established in the PRC in accordance # RIEE AV R ERFEL T2 #Em s
with relevant laws and regulations Bibz

" In proportion to issued and fully paid registered capital 8 EEFH TR E AR B

222 Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R R Ktz

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18
(Continued)

Note:

7 In January 2016, Modex disposed its 50% equity interest
of a joint venture, Qidong Singamas Offshore Equiprment
Co., Ltd ("QSOE’), and 100% equity interest of a wholly-
owned subsidiary, Taicang Modex Energy Engineering
Limited ("MTC’), to the Group as disclosed in Note
40. An adjustment of Modex’s goodwill, amounting
to US$5,465,000, was resulted from the disposal and
included in interest in associates.

An additional capital injection of US$10, 175,000 was made
in April 2015, which increased the Group’s equity interest
in Modex Holding Limited from 28.5% to 29.9% and the
voting power from 20% to 33.3% as at 31 December
2018.

2 An additional capital injection of US$6, 144,000 was made
by the Group in proportion by all shareholders during
the year. The Group's equity interest in Ningbo Victory
Container Co., Ltd. remains unchanged.

3 The share capital of Singamas Thai Logistics Co.,
Ltd. reduces by Thai Bhat 36,000,000 (equivalent to
US$1,028,000). A cash proceed of US$257,000 received
from the capital reduction.

4 An acquisition of additional equity interests at consideration
of US$866,000 in February 2015, which increased the
Group's equity interest in Xiamen Xiangyu Singamas
Container Co., Ltd. from 28.0% to 35.0%.

Summarised financial information of a material
associate:

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s material associate is set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents
amounts shown in the associate’s financial statements
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

The associate is accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial statements.

REE N T 2w (2)

1 RZFE—NF—HF Modex!tl & — & &
PR — BREBEHETEEERL A
([QSOE |) 250% R # X = & 1 H .2 I
BRa — XERABERLIEFRA A
(IMTC /).Z2100%/% 1 77 £ 5 - 1 Hf it
4070 3235 © [7]5% (] B B 2 #fModext) 22
1EH 2 - & #8/36,465,000% 7T * It B 75
R ER 7]z #Ezm e

R-FE—FF+=—H=+—H AEF
A Modex Holding Limited 89 % 125 Je 75
SR 7 B 128.6 %12 11 2£29.9% K 20%
B INE33.3% FHAER-FE—HFMA -
REEF S T A 10,175,000 ETHIFEINE
Ko

2 RER  KE LT BRI )& it &

6,144,000 ° AL L E R s R R B R
R AR R BERFF T -

3 Singamas Thai Logistics Co., Ltd.Z f&7%
JB 2> 736,000,000 #% (#6511,028,000
FET) o B T F 8 B 2 155
257,000% 7T °

4 AEEFFEEFIR B G EERRA A
HYARIE 1 7 H128.0% 38 1 2.35.0% * A 7378
TE-AF A FEEUREEHRIA
866,000 TTHE B FRINK A 75

BERBE AR B ERE -

BRAAKREERY S AR ZHBER]
EHHM N Ml 2 MBFERRE SR
BERBMBRE LN RENVBTRERZ
BERRPBHRRFARIEHE -

Tre
TN

BARRARBGAR BEERAE
EA

el

2
N

s

o

Bl
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18

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18 REtE QT ZfEsm (8
(Continued)
Modex Modex
2016 2015
—B-RE —ZT—hF
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Current assets mMENVEE 18,906 23,087
Non-current assets JEMENE E 197,493 198,250
Current liabilities mEBE (12,884) (13,970)
Non-current liabilities JERBEE (121,201) (121,685)
Non-controlling interest FEIE IR AR B M 2 (1,050) (1,376)
Revenue HER 41,490 43,562
Loss for the year FREHE (8,868) (10,680)
Other comprehensive expense FREMEES N
for the year 1,509 (24,050)
Total comprehensive expense FAZTEZ LA
for the year (7,359) (34,730)

Dividends received from

the associate during the year

FRABERRBEEZ R
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18

(Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest in
the associate recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:

REBENT] 2= (#)

St BA TS B R 2R B AR B B 5 R PR
RZBENBERRAE B

2016 2015

—E-RE —ZT—hF

US$’000 US$'000

FEx FETT

Net assets of the associate B NAc BEFE 81,264 84,306
Proportion of the Group’s REE B A Modex 2 FT B #E#E 5

ownership interest in Modex Z LB 25,625 27,531

Goodwil EES 4,597 10,062
Carrying amount of the Group’s A& B Modex 2 HE 5 IR E B

interest in Modex 30,222 37,593

Aggregate information of associates that are not
individually material:

FERNEZ B ERRINEAER:

2016 2015
Z2-RE —T—0F
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FETT

The Group’s share of REEEG 2 AEE @A

profit for the year 864 734
The Group’s share of other AEEELEZFERA

comprehensive expense Hiz2mE M (624) (392)
The Group’s share of total AEEEGEZERN

comprehensive income FHW =R 240 342
Aggregate carrying amount of AEEEGZHE

the Group’s interests in NRBEREE

these associates 11,709 6,390

BRHEBEEXARAT « —T—RNFFR
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19

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 19

NEE D2 ER

2016 2015

—~E —E—hF

US$’000 US$'000

FEx FET

Unlisted shares and investments: FEETm2RMHO RIEE :
At cost 1R 23,088 23,101
Share of post-acquisition reserves, FE(L U B 1% R

net of dividend received BB U AR A (2,255) (710)

20,833 22,391
Particulars of principal joint ventures as at 31 RZE—RERZFTE—HF+=A

December 2016 and 2015 are set out below:

=+—8" 1*.21%‘& BEERHFB

LUNNE
Place of
Form of incorporation/
business registration Proportion of
Name structure and operation Group equity interest voting power held Principal activities
R/ S L] fi%
8 RIFR REEHY Frit e FREL A TEEH
2016 2015 2016 2015
ZB-xf C"T-1Ff ZB-x§ C—E-n%
Dalian Singamas International Incorporated PRC 36.8% 36.8% 33.3% 33.3% Provision of container
Container Co., Ltd. * E i storage and repair services
REBREREEEARA RUERBERER
HBRT
Fuzhou Singamas Container Co., Ltd. # Incorporated PRC 40.0% 40.0% 40.0% 40.0% Provision of container
BHBREERERAA! E] e storage and repair services

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016

RESKHERE
REERY



19

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R R Ktz

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

REBEL¥ RS (2

(Continued)
Place of
Form of incorporation/
business registration Proportion of
Name structure and operation Group equity interest voting power held Principal activities
AL/ r5E fits
£B RIFER REEHY Frit FRELH TEEH
2016 2015 2016 2015
“B-xE  ZET-1F  ZE-xE A%

Shanghai Huasing International Container Incorporated PRC 40.0% 40.0% 40.0% 40.0% Provision of container
Freight Transportation Co., Ltd. * VA i depot and related logistics
(‘Huasing’) services

FRERERSEREEERAR REERAEESET IR
([££]) kot oy

Qidong Singamas Offshore Incorporated PRC - 65.0% - 50.0% Manufacturing of offshore
Equipment Co. Ltd. * =B i (Note 1) (Note 1) containers

BRENSTEREERAR (i) (hett) HERTEER

# Equity joint venture established in the PRC in accordance g RIZB BB RAERF B2 e

with relevant laws and regulations

The voting power of the Group in respective joint
ventures is determined by the proportion of the
Group’s representatives in the board of directors of
respective joint ventures.

Note:

7 The Group acquired the remaining 50% equity interest of
QSOE in January 2016 thus QSOE became a subsidiary of
the Group.

Summarised financial information of a material joint
venture:

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s material joint venture is set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents
amounts shown in the joint venture’s financial
statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

BibE

AEBRALZEFAELRZRERTIR

ERAEENINZERELENES
SRFAZEPIRE-

1 REE[F R 20164 1. 54 QSOFFIERE0% A%
H# B I QSOERL 5 7N 2 [F a7 /8B 2~ 7]

EXAELENMBENBE

BERAAKREEASELE ZMBER
RN - Ml FEE R R BIR
BERBMBHRELNRROVBTHRERLZ
BELEMBMRTPIRZEE-

BHEREXFRAR o« TR EFR

227



228

Notes to the Financial Statements Bt 7R 3R Mt 5

19 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 19

REEBELEZER (&)

(Continued)
The joint venture is accounted for using the equity BEPERAEBLGRE B mEFEAE
method in these consolidated financial statements. aAARR
Huasing =R
2016 2015
—EB-XRE —ZT—hF
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Current assets MENVEE 8,291 8,516
Non-current assets EREBEE 19,701 22,182
Current liabilities mENB & (7,670) (9,087)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE - =
The above amounts of assets and FmEERBESRE
liabilities include the following: ERENATHIER :
Cash and cash equivalents RekZERE® 3,128 3,047
Current financial liabilities (excluding  REBF B E (T EIEEN
trade and other payables and BRN - HAth BT BR R
provisions) ) (3,339) (5,067)
Revenue LR 25,478 27,984
Loss for the year FREE (494) (418)
Other comprehensive expense for FREMEEZ N
the year (2,085) (2,059
Total comprehensive expense for FALHEX HBERE
the year (2,579) (2,477)
The above loss for the year include  _FHtAYFERNEEE 21
the following: A THIIER -
Depreciation and amortisation & K 1,107 1,315
Interest income F B U A 13 48
Interest expense MERXZ (213) (307)
Income tax expense Fr{S RSz 159 191

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016
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19 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 19 REeELXE KR (#)

(Continued)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial LB ER B AR S B TS IR AT
information to the carrying amount of the interest RZEEERREEHEK:
in Huasing recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:
2016 2015
ZE2-RE —T-0F
US$’000 US$’000
FTERT FETT
Net assets of the joint venture BERRIZEEFE 20,322 21,611
Proportion of the Group’s ownership  AEBREL Z AT H
interest in Huasing VERE = 2 LB 8,129 8,644
Goodwill HE 2,188 2,188
Effect of fair value adjustments at FWERALEE
acquisition AENTE 5,576 5,576
Other adjustments Hb A (1,331) (814)
Carrying amount of the Group’s AEEREEZ
interest in Huasing R ARAE 14,562 15,594
Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not FEREZzEBELENGAEHR:
individually material:
2016 2015
Z2-RE —T—0F
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FETT
The Group’s share of profit REEEG 2 AEE @A
for the year 608 826
The Group’s share of other AEEELZ
comprehensive expense Hith2E S M (432) (410)
The Group’s share of total AEEEGEZ
comprehensive income FHK =R 176 416
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20 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE

20 AMHEHEZRE

INVESTMENT
2016 2015
—E-RE —T—HF
US$’000 US$'000
FER =
Unlisted security ELETES
— Equity security, at cost —RARFE S AR 6,608 6,608

The above unlisted investment represent investment
in a unlisted equity security issued by private entity
established in the PRC. It is measured at cost less
impairment at the end of the reporting period because
the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so
significant that the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that its fair value cannot be measured reliably.

The Group’s unquoted equity investment represented
14.0% (2015: 14.0%) equity interest of Xiamen
Xiangyu Superchain Supply Chain Development Co.,
Ltd. (Formerly known as “Xiamen Superchain Logistics
Development Co., Ltd.”), a logistic company in the
PRC.
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PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 21 FEAMNBEEFIE
2016 2015
—E—REF —E—REF
US$’000 US$’000
FER FET
The Group’s prepaid lease AEEZENHEERIAEBRE:

payments comprise:

Leasehold land outside Hong Kong: ~ fE& B ASMbE 2 FHE it : 73,366 65,990

Analysed for reporting purpose as: MBEMEL 2TWT

Amount shown under RIERBEEZ I
non-current assets < BRE 71,672 64,473
Amount shown under current assets RREEES R &5 1,694 1,517
73,366 65,990
DEPOSITS FOR NON-CURRENT 22 FRBEERSE
ASSETS
2016 2015
—E-XE —ZT—hF
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Deposits paid for property, SANEZER 1958
plant and equipment RiEEE
(Note J) (B7ati) 6,281 350
Deposits paid for prepaid ENENEERIE
lease payments (Note i) =e (B ati) 12,902 22,014
19,183 22 364
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22 DEPOSITS FOR NON-CURRENT

23

22 FRBEERE (£

ASSETS (continued)

Notes: KiaE -

i At the end of the reporting period, deposit of i RIFERR - E1TA R#43,671,0007T (18
RMB43,5671,000 (equivalent to US$6,281,000) (2015: ER6281,000%7w) (ZFE—AHF AR
RMB2,273,000 (equivalent to US$350,000)) had been paid #2,073,0007T (15 K350,000% 7T) ) 1E
for the purchases of property, plant and equipment. The BIEEYE HERREZIEE BT
remaining balance was disclosed as capital commitment as HE R W 743 & T AIEF IR FE - UL fE B TH
set out in Note 43. The acquisition is expected to complete AR = F—+F T e
in2017.

i At the end of the reporting period, partial payments i RBFEHK FEE Z T ARKE
for the acquisition of land use rights in Qidong, the 89,600,000t ( #6% 112,902,000% T )
PRC, amounting to RMB89,500,000 (equivalent to (ZZF—AF: AR K142,950,0007T (17
US$12,902,000) (2015: RMB142,950,000 (equivalent ER22,014,000%7T) ) (EBBEA LR B
to US$22,014,000) had been made by the Group, for BRZ T (E AR ES 7 R - EEE
the development of new factories. The land use right I -R—FE—NF+—H=+—H"
certificates have not yet been obtained by the Group as at KEEN RN (FaZ T H0AE R ZE - v 7E
31 December 2016 and expected to obtain in 2017. FTR = FE—F RS -

A
INVENTORIES 23 #FE
2016 2015
—B-XRE —ZT—hF
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET

Raw materials JR# K 81,285 69,412

Work in progress R 24,602 23,760

Finished goods UK oh 30,932 64,035

136,819 157,207

The entire carrying amounts of inventories as at
31 December 2016 and 2015 are expected to be
recovered within the next twelve months.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016

R-B—AFR-B—AF+_A
=+ — Bl 2 REF AR
ERF =18 A R



24

Notes to the Financial Statements Bt #53R R Ktz

TRADE RECEIVABLES JE Ut BR X
2016 2015
—E-RE —ZT—aF
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET

Trade receivables & I BR FR 209,774 147,418
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B REBIRERE (611) (653)
Total trade receivables 42 i I BR 7k 209,163 146,765

A defined credit policy is maintained within the Group.
The credit terms are agreed with each of its trade
customers depending on the creditworthiness of the
customers ranging from 30 days to 120 days (2015:
30 days to 120 days).

The aged analysis of trade receivables net of
allowance for doubtful debts, which is prepared
based on invoice date of each transaction, which
approximated the respective revenue recognition
dates, at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

AEEEHE-—ERARZIEERR 5
EHH3OREI20RTE (ZE—hF:

HBOREI0RNE) BIEPZEE
miE  AEEREEF 2 56 EEHEE
B2 BRI

¥R &S HIR 2 8 WOR BUR R R AR 22 R
(NERXZ2HZAFE W EBREW
AFER B HIEA) ZBRik DA a0 T -

2016 2015

—E-RFE —ET—hF

US$’000 US$’000

FExR FETT

0 to 30 days TE=+X 114,882 101,864
31 to 60 days =t+—=xtX 58,222 30,124
61 to 90 days AT—EATK 17,816 8,046
91 to 120 days AT—ZE=—BZ+X 2,667 610
Over 120 days —BZtTRNRE 15,576 6,121
209,163 146,765

The Group assessed the credit quality of trade
receivables based on historical default rates and the
creditworthiness of the customers. An aggregate
amount of US$167,693,000 was subsequently
settled.

AEBRBEELSHBRENER Z2Z2
FEERERZEEEZ-EFAH
167,693,0003 7T 2 7 Hi & U [E] »

BREBEEXFRAT « —T—RFFR
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24

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 24 FEWHRM (&)
Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance AEBRFE A 2 BRUEEFRBBE SR
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of FEE{EA 52,284,000t (—T—H
US$52,284,000 (2015: US$23,065,000) which are % : 23,065,000% 7T ) 2 18 B FE U AR 5K -
past due at the reporting date for which the Group A& B 8 Az EUER RE R BIR %
has not provided for allowance. The Group does not 1o AREE Y Z S ERRR MR an o
hold any collateral over these balances. The Group has AEEDTHRERF2EERELH
assessed the creditworthiness and historical default RE @ ERERVEREN B R R 2 FE
rates of these customers, trade receivables that are SR ERERNITAEE REET
past due but not impaired have very low historical Bt AARESERAEENRE R
default rates and have high credit-rating within the Ko
industry. In this regard, the directors of the Company
considered that the default risk is low.
The aged analysis, based on invoice date of each WERBRVERERNBBERR (LERR
transaction, of trade receivables which are past due SEZAGE) ZRESTIT
but not impaired is as follows:
2016 2015
ZE-RE —T-IOF
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FEIT
31 to 60 days =t—z=xtX 17,593 8,389
61 to 90 days ANT—EATXK 16,448 8,027
91 to 120 days AT—ZE=—BZ+X 2,666 582
Over 120 days —BTRARE 15,577 6,067
52,284 23,065

Movement in the allowance for doulbtful debts:

RN 2 BBIT

2016 2015

—B-X¥ —ZT—hF

US$’000 US$’000

FTER FETT

Balance at the beginning of the year ~ F 458 653 -
Provision for doubtful debts E RN EWARK Z

recognised on receivables REEREE - 653

Translation difference BmEE%E 42) -

Balance at the end of the year FRRIGH 611 653
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PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

As at 31 December 2016, prepayments and other
receivables included advanced of US$47,273,000
(2015: US$11,528,000) to certain suppliers as
deposits for raw materials purchases. The remaining
balance was mainly included refundable value added
tax and other advance payments. The entire amount
is expected to be recovered/realised within the next
twelve months.

AMOUNT DUE FROM/TO
IMMEDIATE HOLDING COMPANY

The general credit term for trade balances with
immediate holding company is 60 days (2015: 60
days). No allowance on doubtful debts has been
provided during the year.

The aged analysis of amount due from immediate
holding company, which is prepared based on invoice
date of each transaction, which approximated the
respective revenue recognition dates, at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:

25 FENKREMEWIRIE

R_E—XRNFE+-_A=+—H FEMNK
H b & Uk k18 B $E FE 1147,273,0003 T

— T —AF:11,528,000%T) FZ K
HEFIEABERMAIZS HREXE
BRI ER R R E M TE 2R
BREBATRAR+—EARKED, &

fﬁlo

26 EW ENEEZERARNRE

HEEREBRARNES

REEEH—RE

m =7

BOK(ZZT—FRHF:60K) - AFEIR

BIERERER-

RBEMRZBRZERARFIA (AE
RR 5 BEHFHE - WEIREKARE

R B MR ) 2 KD

Mrann:

2016 2015

—B-RE —ZT—hF

US$’000 US$'000

FEx FET

0 to 30 days TE=1+XK 66 6
31 to 60 days =f+—=Z=tX - 24
61 to 90 days ANT—EATR - -
91 to 120 days Nt+—ZFE—BZ+X 12 14
Over 120 days —B-_TXRMNULE 203 -
281 44

The amount due to immediate holding company was
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

REE 2 BN ERERARFIAY R E
B R ERMREEEERE -

B GBS EAR

\

A o —T—NFFH
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AMOUNTS DUE FROM FELLOW 27 EBWERKEATRIE
SUBSIDIARIES
The general credit term for trade balances with fellow REMBARMNESEEEFEHR—RE
subsidiaries is 30 to 60 days (2015: 30 to 60 days). No 30E60K (ZZE— A F : 30E60K) ° &
allowance on doubtful debts has been provided during FEIWLRBIERBRE®-
the year.
The aged analysis of amount due from fellow RNEEEHRZBRZNBARIZIE (LLE
subsidiaries, which is prepared based on invoice TR ZEERFHE W EMEEWARE
date of each transaction, which approximated the ZHHEMAD) 2BEBR O
respective revenue recognition dates, at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:
2016 2015
—E-RE —ZT—hF
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FETT
0 to 30 days TE=1+XK 8,678 25,812
31 to 60 days =F+—FERTX 2,924 185
61 to 90 days NT—ZNTXK 4,726 4
91 to 120 days nNt+—=z2—8B=+X 1,249 5,005
Over 120 days —BZTRNRE 37,607 -
55,184 31,006

For the year ended 31 December 2016, amount
due from fellow subsidiaries with aggregate carrying
amount of US$43,941,000 (2015: US$5,194,000) was
past due at the reporting date for which the Group has
not provided for impairment loss. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances. The Group
assessed the credit quality of fellow subsidiaries based
on historical default rates and the creditworthiness. In
this regard, the directors of the Company considered
that the default risk is low. Accordingly, no impairment
has been provided.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016
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AMOUNTS DUE FROM FELLOW 27 FEWEZRKEABRE )

SUBSIDIARIES (continueq)

The aged analysis, based on invoice date of each
transaction, of amount due from fellow subsidiaries

3B HME R VBB (E FY 8 U [R] 5 BT /B8 2 B3R
H(MERRHZEZBHE) 2RikD

which are past due but not impaired is as follows: MEnT
2016 2015
—E—-XREF —ZE—FhF
US$’000 US$'000
FTEx FEIT
31 to 60 days =t+—Z=XtX 359 185
61 to 90 days ANT—ENATK 4,726 4
91 to 120 days AT+—ZE=—BZ+XK 1,249 5,005
Over 120 days —B-_tXMNUE 37,607 —
43,941 5,194
AMOUNTS DUE FROM JOINT 28 EREELERIE
VENTURES

The amount as at 31 December 2016 was unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand.

Included in the amounts due from joint ventures as at
31 December 2015, an amount of RMB39,000,000
(equivalent to US$6,006,000) was unsecured, interest
bearing at 8% per annum and repayable in February
2017. Since January 2016, the joint venture became
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company (see note
40).

AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES

Included in the amounts due from associates, an
amount of US$10,000,000 was unsecured, interest
bearing at 7% per annum and repayable in November
2017. The remaining balance was unsecured, interest
free and repayable on demand.

HE_ZT—R"F+-_A=+—HK&HE
SEER 2EERMELBETEENE

RZTE—RAZEREELERES
A — AR #39,000,0007T (HER
6,006,0003 7T ) AR I F F) 8% HY
BEEH EN_E—+E-_ABX-H
—E-RNE—RAR ZEABELERAR
RAZZ2EBHAM B AR (RHIFE40) °

FE W Bgt &8 N R FRIE

1£ JrE U BSt 2 X B 5RIE A+ 10,000,000
TTABEEIRL FEFRTRHNAEEET B
—E—+tF+—AER-HEBFEHA
IR R EEFSOREETEERAE-
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30 BANK BALANCES AND CASH 30 SMITHEBRREAS
Bank balances carry interest at market rates which IRITHEBRIZ0.01%E16% (—Z T —RHF:
range from 0.01% to 16.0% (2015: 0.01% to 5.1%) 0.01%ZE51% ) Z 5 F KT B -
per annum.

31 TRADE PAYABLES 31 ENIERM
The aged analysis, based on the invoice date of REEIR - BNER (AERRFH 28
each transaction, of trade payables at the end of the ZHFHE) ZERROTAT

reporting period is as follows:

2016 2015
ZE2-RE —T—10F
US$’000 US$'000
FERx FETT
0 to 30 days TZE=1+XK 66,684 47,378
31 to 60 days =f+—Z=tX 31,255 21,303
61 to 90 days NT—EATXR 16,363 9,368
91 to 120 days N+—ZE—BZ+X 10,169 5,160
Over 120 days —B-_TRMNULE 7,274 1,899
131,745 85,108
The average credit period on purchases of goods KEGY s FHEBEHARNBKA(ZE
is 58 (2015: 52) days. The Group has financial risk — R4 52K) - ANEE B HilE & FhE
management policies in place to ensure that all 22 | SR SR BEAR PR B 1 SR 5 1 15 AR EARR

payables are settled within the credit timeframe. Ao

238 Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016



32

33

34

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#3R & Kzt

BILLS PAYABLE

The aged analysis, based on issuance date of each
bills, of bills payable at the end of the reporting period
is as follows:

B RE

RBEHR  BNRE (AERER %
TTEER) ZfREDHTINT :

2016 2015
—E-RE —E=—hF

US$’000 US$'000

FER FETT

0 to 30 days TE=ZFXK 29,241 5,946
31 to 60 days =t—=x+X 16,603 6,898
61 to 90 days AT—EATRKR 12,540 3,330
91 to 120 days AT—ZE=—BZ+X 6,474 4,834
Over 120 days —BAZTRMNUE 15,843 1,747
80,701 22,755

ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

Accruals and other payables consisted of advances
from customers, provision of staff cost and selling
expenses and other accrued expenses for the both
year ended 2016 and 2015.

As at 31 December 2016, the provision in relation to
the Tianjin explosion as disclosed in note 4 amounting
to US$3,198,000 remained in other payables.

In addition, included in the other payables was another
provision amounting to US$1,941,000 made in current
year for the Xiamen typhoon destruction as disclosed
in note 4.

AMOUNTS DUE TO ASSOCIATES
AND JOINT VENTURES

The amounts due to associates and joint ventures are
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.
The directors of the Company expected the amounts
will be repaid within twelve months after the end of the
reporting period.

FE=TE I EL b FE A BR K

R-ZE—RER_T—RAFFLREERN
Bt EANEMENRERBEREEN
FEERARIHE B AER  REAE
FEA-

R-ZZE—XRE+-_A=1+—8 RHits
I EE - 3,198,000k T E R EIBIEZ
Bt DIRE R E M EA A -

s E A A KR R AEERE
PIRE EVAK 2 M =2 AY1,941,0003 T E Ath
Bt POMREATh ER

BABE QXA REELRFENRE

AEBZENBERARREERENA
B REER - 2 B ERERE B EEN
Bl ARRESEHRSFIHARER
EHREB+ @A NG

BRHEBEEXFRAT o —T—RNFFR
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35 BANK BORROWINGS

2016 2015
—E-RE —ET—hF
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
Bank borrowings RITIERELE
comprise the following:
Bank loans RITER
Unsecured £t
— within 1 year — BR—FERNEE 274,812 70,000
— more than 1 year, — BREB_FNEE
but not exceeding 2 years 44,544 245,000
— more than 2 years, — ARE=ZZRFRNEE
but not exceeding 5 years 46,184 -
365,540 315,000
Less: Amount due within one year AR —FREETR
shown under current liabilities NRBBEERCEHE (274,812) (70,000)
Amount due after one year AR—FRER
shown under non-current liabilities InBEBEERIEHE 90,728 245,000

On 24 September 2013, the Company entered into
a facility agreement with a syndicate of banks in
respect of a US$310,000,000 term loan and revolving
credit facilities for a term of four years. Repayments
commenced on 24 September 2015 and will continue
until 24 September 2017. As at 31 December 2016,
the outstanding balance of this term loan, amounting
to US$210,000,000, was unable to meet the required
interest coverage ratio stipulated under the facility
agreement. On discovery of this matter, the Group
informed the lenders and commenced refinancing
of this facility with another syndication loan. The
refinancing is still in progress at the date of this report.
The entire amount of this term loan is classified as
current liability as at 31 December 2016.

All bank loans are unsecured and mainly carry interest
at either LIBOR or borrowing rate offered by the
People’s Bank of China plus certain basis points and
are repayable over a period range from one to four
years. Interest is repriced every one to six months. The
proceeds were largely used to finance the working
capital of the Group during the year.
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BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

The ranges of effective annual interest rates for the
year 2016 on the Group’s bank borrowings were
1.37% 10 4.79% (2015: 1.07% to 5.32%).

R-ZB—RF AEERITERZAX
FRERIBED RN B1.37%E479% (=ZF
—HF 1.07%E5.32% ) °

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s bank RIMER AEE 2 BRAERBIAIED
borrowings that are denominated in currencies other REEMEE ZIRITERET
than the functional currencies of the relevant group
entity are set out below:
2016 2015
ZE2-RE —T—0F
US$’000 US$'000
FERx FETT
RVB AR 161 -
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL TTESRMI A

INSTRUMENTS

The current portion represents the fair value of three
interest swap contracts with a total initial notional
amount of US$186,000,000 that the Company
entered to minimise its interest rate risk exposure
arising from the US$310,000,000 term loan, by fixing
the monthly LIBOR at a range of 0.8775% to 0.8800%
and will mature on 24 September 2017.

The non-current portion represents the fair value of a
new interest rate swap contract with notional amount
of US$40,000,000 that the Company entered during
the year to minimise its interest rate risk exposure
arising from a new term loan of US$40,000,000, by
fixing the monthly LIBOR at 0.90%. This contract will
mature on 30 March 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
gain on changes in fair value of the interest rate
swaps amounting to US$376,000 (2015: loss of
US$259,000) has been recognised in profit or loss.

REBBOHREAAAAET RERA
310,000,000%& 7t & B f& B AT EE 4 2 F)
EEBMEI LN =R TBEESER
186,000,0003 T2 M EEZE B E B AR
BE UEESTARBBRITRAERFEN
F0.8775% £0.8800% 2 B N B - =
—+ENA=-+MHBRE

EREBBOEARR AT B EHER
40,000,0003& 7T &9 F1) 2 [ b2 f& = & (K M
E/\\EWJ_L%%&%?‘AOOOOOOO%TE
ZHAEBBENNAAEE LAI}E
B RAmAFRITRZEFER0.90% <&
R A — ey +E1§IJHJ%

HEZZT—R"E+A=+—HI"F
RIFHENFMEENRAABERNA
376,0003 7t (20154F : 518 A&259,000
Eor) WHRIBE P ER -

BREECERRAR o _g_/\ﬁﬁfﬁﬁ
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38

SHARE CAPITAL 37 B’A
Number of shares Share Capital
RA%E K&
2016 2015 2016 2016 2015 2015
“E-XE CZF-nf ZEB-xE ZB-xE —T-nf C—T-I1f
US$'000 HK$'000 US§'000 HK$'000
T£n TER TETL BT
Issued and fully paid: BERTRAR:
At beginning of the year &9 2416919918 2418419918 268,149 2,078,513 268,149 2,078,513
Share repurchase (Notg) RiAmEE (i) - (1,500,000) - - = =
At end of the year FR 2416919918 2416919918 268,149 2,078,513 268,149 2,078,613
Note: Bt -

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company purchased
1,000,000 of its own ordinary shares of the Company on 22 January
2015 at the highest and lowest prices of HK$1.22 and HK$1.20
per share respectively. The aggregate purchase price paid for the
share repurchase was approximately HK$1,206,160 (equivalent to
US$157,000). The share repurchase represented approximately
0.0413% of the total number of issued shares of the Company
immediately prior to such repurchase. The Company purchased
500,000 of its own ordinary shares of the Company on 7 September
2015 at the highest and lowest prices of HK$1.05 and HK$1.00
per share respectively. The aggregate purchase price paid for the
share repurchase was approximately HK$517,660 (equivalent to
US$67,000). The share repurchase represented approximately
0.0207% of the total number of issued shares of the Company
immediately prior to such repurchase. The Company has cancelled
these 1,600,000 ordinary shares on 30 January 2015 and 30
September 2015 respectively.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”),
was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on
1 June 2007 for the primary purpose of providing
incentives to directors of the Company and eligible
employees of the Group, and may be terminated by
resolution in general meeting. Under the Scheme,
the directors of the Company may grant options to
qualifying grantees, including employees or directors of
the Company and/or the Group.
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

At 31 December 2016, the number of shares in
respect of which options had been granted and
remained outstanding under the Scheme was
17,602,000 (2015: 17,602,000), representing
approximately 0.73% (2015: 0.73%) of the shares of
the Company in issue at that date. The total number
of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of
the shares of the Company in issue on the adoption
date, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. The number of shares issued and to be
issued in respect of which options granted and may
be granted to any individual in any one year is not
permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue on the offer date without prior approval from
the Company’s shareholders. Options granted to
substantial shareholders or independent non-executive
directors of the Company in excess of 0.1% of the
Company’s share capital or with a value in excess of
HKS$5 million must be approved in advance by the
Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days from
the date of offer. An aggregate of HK$1 is payable by
each qualifying grantee on acceptance of the offer.
Options may be exercised within the option period
(must not exceed 10 years from the date of grant of
the relevant option) which shall be determined by the
Board in its absolute discretion at the time of grant.
The exercise price is determined by the directors of
the Company, and will not be less than the higher of (i)
the closing price of the Company’s shares on the date
of grant; (i) the average closing price of the shares for
the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s
share.

Share options of 7,170,000 underlying shares were
granted on 1 July 2010 at the exercise price of
HK$1.38.
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NR_BE—-—RE+_A=+—0" 1%
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17,602,00017) &% H & B @ K171 2 B8
B (AR RNZBAE BT ZRHE
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Share options of 8,860,000 underlying shares were
granted on 6 August 2008 at the initial exercise price
of HK$1.93 and adjusted to HK$1.48.

Share options of 20,300,000 underlying shares were
granted on 28 June 2007 at the initial exercise price of
HK$5.14 and adjusted to HK$3.93.

Details are as follows:

Number of options

BRERE

Notes to the Financial Statements Bt 735 3R Mt 5

38 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continved) 38 MR (#)

RZ_ZZT/)\F A\ A7Xx B 18,860,00017
NI 1THEE R1.938 T 2 1B RS A -

HEiTFE BB AER1488 T

RZEBEELFEF A+ NANHEH
20,300,00017 ¥ 38176 (B B5.148 T 2

HEERE AR T EERRAEE3.93

BT

ST

Vesting period
B EH

Exercisable period

T

Option granted on 28 June 2007:

R-BELERAZTABRHHEBRE:

6,766,666

6,766,667

6,766,667

Option granted on 6 August 2008:

R-FTN\FN\ARBRHHBARE:

2,953,333

2,953,333

2,953,334

28 June 2007 to 27 June 2008
—ZTELERNA-TNEE
“ETNEXNA-F+tH

28 June 2007 to 27 June 2009
“EEHFERATNAHE
“ETNEASAZTLH

28 June 2007 to 27 June 2010
“EEHFARAZTNRE
“E-EFX A-F+tH

6 August 2008 to 5 August 2009
—EENFNARBE
“ZEENENARHA

6 August 2008 to 5 August 2010
“EE\FN\AREE
—T-TE/\ARHA

6 August 2008 to 5 August 2011
—TE\FNARXAE
—T——%/\ARH

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016

28 June 2008 to 27 June 2017
“EEN\FAAZTNARE
I AT e =

28 June 2009 to 27 June 2017
“EENFERATNAHE
“E—+FRAZ++tH

28 June 2010 to 27 June 2017
“2-ZFAA-HN\RE
“E—+FR A-F+tH

6 August 2009 to 5 August 2018
“ETNFNARBE
—Z-\EN\ARH

6 August 2010 to 5 August 2018
“E-FENARAE
—Z-N\FNAEA

6 August 2011 to 5 August 2018
—T——%/\AXAZE
—“E-\FENARH
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Number of options

BRERE

Notes to the Financial Statements Bt #53R R Ktz

Vesting period
B EH

38 LIRRKX(#®)

Exercisable period

TREHE

Option granted on 1 July 2010:
RZE-ZF+ A - ARBAOEMRE:

2,390,000

2,390,000

2,390,000

2016

The following table discloses the Company’s share

1 July 2010 to 30 June 2011
—T-TELA—-AE
—E——FXA=1H

1 July 2010 to 30 June 2012
“T-ZEF+A-HE
—E—"%XA=+H

1 July 2010 to 30 June 2013
“E-FHLA-AE
“Z—=FXA=1+H

1 July 2011 to 30 June 2020
“T——%tA-HE
—TTFXA=TH

1 July 2012 to 30 June 2020
—T——Ft+HA—HZE
—“E-FEFXA=+H

1 July 2013 to 30 June 2020
—T—=#t+A—H=ZE
“Z-TERA=1+H

—B—A%

TEREEREE (BRES) MBARFE

options held by employees (including directors of the IRt 2 5F15
Company):
Outstanding at Granted Exercised Forfeited Outstanding at
1 January Reclassification during during during 31 December
2016 adjustment the year the year the year 2016
RZZE-RE RZB-RE
—-A—H RER +=A=t+-H
AT PERE FRRH FERTE HR W AT
'000 '000 '000 '000 '000 '000
(Note)
(W)
Directors EZ 14,434 - - - - 14,434
Employees E& 3,168 - - - - 3,168
17,602 - - - - 17,602

BREBEEXFRAT « —T—RFFR
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38 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

The following table discloses the movements of the

246
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Company’s share options by the vesting period during X
the year.
Outstanding Granted Exercised Forfeited Outstanding
1 January during during during 31 December
2016 the year the year the year 2016
R-B-X"% R-B-RE
-A—-A RER +=B=1-H
i RATE FREL ERTE #R W 8 RATHE
'000 ’000 ’000 ’000 ’000
(Note)
(His)
Granted on 28 June 2007: RZTTLE
NAZTABEE:
— with vesting period of -BERE-ZTZ+4F
28 June 2007 to ~NAZTN\BZE
27 June 2008 “EENERAZTLH 4,529 - - - 4,529
— with vesting period of -BERE-ZTZ+4F
28 June 2007 to ~NAZTN\BZE
27 June 2009 “EENERAZTLR 4,529 - - - 4,529
— with vesting period of -BEHE-_TTLE
28 June 2007 to AAZTNABZE
27 June 2010 —T-ZFXA=-t++H 4,529 - - - 4,529
Granted on 6 August 2008: RZFENFNARBEDL:
— with vesting period of -BEHE-FTTN\EF
6 August 2008 to NRARBZE
5 August 2009 “ZZNENRER 120 - - - 120
— with vesting period of -BEHE-FTTN\EF
6 August 2008 to NRARBZE
5 August 2010 —T-TFN\RAA 172 - - - 172
~ with vesting period of -BEHE-FZNE
6 August 2008 to NRARBZE
5 August 2011 —T——FN\RAA 673 - - - 673
Granted on 1 July 2010: R-Z-ZE+A—HRH:
— with vesting period of -BEHE-_FT-TF
1Juy 2010to +tA-A%
30 June 2011 —T——45A=TH 3713 - - - 313
— with vesting period of -BERE-_FT-TF
1Juy 2010 to +tA-A%
30 June 2012 —ZT-——45A=tH 1,297 - - - 1,207
— with vesting period of -BERHE-_FT-TF
1Juy 2010 to +tA-A%
30 June 2013 —E-=%"RA=1H 1,380 - - - 1,380
17,602 - - - 17,602
Exercisable at the end of the year FAE A/ F77{f 17,602 17,602
Weighted average exercise ~ MEFIF{THEE (Bx)
price (HK$) 3.35 - - - 3.35
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38 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

2015

The following table discloses the Company’s share
options held by employees (including directors of the

38 LIRRKX(#®)

—E—FhF

TREEREE (BREES) MBARRE
Pt 2 #15 -

Company):
Outstanding at Granted Exercised Forfeited ~ Outstanding at
1 January  Reclassification during during during 31 December
2015 adjustment the year the year the year 2015
RZZ—LfF RZZ—-LfF
—H—H RER T-A=+—H
AT DEHE EREH FRATTHE #R AT
‘000 '000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
(Notg)
(Hit)
Directors = 13,567 867 - - - 14,434
Employees B8 4,035 (867) - - - 3,168
17,602 - - - - 17,602
BMEECERRAR o« —T—FFRH
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38

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

The following table discloses the movements of the

38 LIRRKX(#®)

TRUABEMRFREARRBEREL

Company’s share options by the vesting period during X
the year.
Outstanding Granted Exercised Forfeited Outstanding
1 January during during during 31 December
2015 the year the year the year 2015
RZZ—H%F RZZE—1F
—A—A RER +-A=+—-A
BRI FARE FRITRE R BRI
‘000 ‘000 '000 ‘000 ‘000
(Note)
(hiit)
Granted on 28 June 2007 RZTTLF
NAZTNBEL:
— with vesting period of -BEHE-_TT+E
28 June 2007 to ~NAZTNBE
27 June 2008 “EZN\EAAZTtH 4,529 = = = 4,529
— with vesting period of -BEHE-_TT+F
28 June 2007 to ~NAZHNBE
27 June 2009 “ETNEAAZT A 4,529 = = = 4,529
— with vesting period of -BEHE-_TT+F
28 June 2007 to ~NAZHNBE
27 June 2010 “Z-ZE A1 tH 4,529 = = = 4,529
Granted on 6 August 2008: RZZTNENAABEL:
— with vesting period of -BEHHE-FTN\E
6 August 2008 to NRRBEZE
5 August 2009 —ZTAFEN\ARHA 120 - - - 120
— with vesting period of -BEHHE-FTN\EF
6 August 2008 to NRRBEZE
5 August 2010 —Z-ZF)\AAH 172 - - - 172
— with vesting period of -BEHHE-FTN\EF
6 August 2008 to NRRBEZE
5 August 2011 —Z——F)/\AAH 673 - - - 673
Granted on 1 July 2010: RZZ-ZFtA—-BRH:
— with vesting period of -HEHE="T-TF
1 July 2010 to +tHA—A%
30 June 2011 —Z——4%5A=TH 373 - - - 373
— with vesting period of -HEHE="T-TF
1 July 2010 to +tHA—A%
30 June 2012 “Z-Z45A=TH 1,297 - - - 1,297
— with vesting period of -HEHE-T-TF
1 July 2010 to +tHA—R=%
30 June 2013 —T-—=%XA=tH 1,380 - - - 1,380
17,602 - - - 17,602
Exercisable at the end of the year ~ IR A F1748 17,602 17,602
Weighted average exercise price ~ JIEFH{TEE (FBT)

(HKS)

3.35

3.35

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Note:

The forfeiture represented the share options granted to the eligible
directors of the Company and employees of the Group, which were
forfeited upon their resignations in both years.

For the share options granted on 1 July 2010, the fair
value of the options determined at the date of grant
using the Binomial option pricing model ranged from
HK$0.61 to HK$0.81.

The following assumptions were used to calculate the
fair values of share options granted on 1 July 2010:

Closing share price at the date of grant HKS$1.54
Exercise price HK$1.38
Option life 10 years
Expected volatility 65%
Semi-annual dividend yield 1.7%
Risk-free interest rate 2.29%

For the share options granted on 6 August 2008, the
fair value of the options determined at the date of grant
using the Binomial option pricing model ranged from
HK$0.53 to HK$0.72.

The following assumptions were used to calculate the
fair values of share options granted on 6 August 2008:

Closing share price at the date of grant HK$1.83
Exercise price HK$1.93
Option life 10 years
Expected volatility 45%
Semi-annual dividend yield 2.8%
Risk-free interest rate 3.55%

For the share options granted on 28 June 2007, the
fair value of the options determined at the date of grant
using the Binomial option pricing model ranged from
HK$1.62 to HK$2.52.

38

AR ()

WRMIER T ALK IEE BEIEEE R IER a)fE /R 1E
FEZFEN L RERF BRI R Y -

RN_ZE—ZTF+A—H BREZAR
BEDERA ZEAAEEEREANKD
HHIEE F A0.618 T 20.8178 T o

R-Z-TFLA-BRUNBREZ
RABEDIRBEATNERRBBEEE

jiNEs-qunl= -1 0 gy K= 1.5478 7T
IEE 1.3878 7T
R 2 B 104
TR AR 65%
FFEREE 1.7%
EmE kX 2.29%

RZZZENFN\ANE BEREZAL
EBEDER ZAEAREEERARK L

HHiEE & A0.538 T 20.728 7T ©

R-TZNFN\ARNBRENBREZ
RABEISIREBAMBRREEEE

PIE B B R E 1.8378 7T
T1EE 1.93%87T
R4 2 B 7 ED 10%F
TEHIR IR 45%
FEEREE 2.8%
mEkEX 3.55%

R-EZELF B+ N\RB BREZ
NREBEIMEA -BEABEEEEXR
R BEIETE A1.628 T E2.528 T

BRHEBEEXFRAT « —T—RNFFR
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38 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continved) 38 AKX (#)
The following assumptions were used to calculate the R-ZETLF AT /\BRENER
fair values of share options granted on 28 June 2007: BZAABEDNIREBATRREEE
F
Closing share price at the date of grant HK$5.25 jines-quel=R- =0 i 5.2578 7T
Exercise price HK$5.14 1T1EE 51477
Option life 10 years AR HE 2 B R E 104
Expected volatility 48% TR ER R 48%
Semi-annual dividend vield 1% FEEREE 1%
Risk-free interest rate 4.78% mE s B X 4.78%
Immediate after the rights issue became unconditional EER_TTNFHRBREEREERE
in 2009, adjustments were made to the exercise R IR B AR AE 5T 2145 B LA SR B M R 1T
price and the number of outstanding share options FrERENTEERKE EELH
to subscribe for shares granted pursuant to the share o
option scheme.
The following table sets out the adjustments on the TREYIEREFENR_ZETNFZH
share option scheme in 2009: .
Before adjustments After adjustments
FEA AER
Exercise Exercise
price of  Number of price of  Number of
Date of grant R AH each option share options  each option share options
SERE SERE
THE EREHE THE EREHE
(HK$) (HK$)
(&) (&)
28 June 2007 R-_ZEZ+FA=-+N\H 5.14 18,400,000 3.93 24,039,600
6 August 2008 RZZZNEFENARA 1.93 8,740,000 1.48 11,418,810
Total number of options BB AR i 48 £ 27,140,000 35,458,410

The Binomial option pricing model has been used to
estimate the fair values of the options. The variables
and assumptions used in computing the fair values
of the share options are based on the directors of
the Company’ best estimate. The value of an option
varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions.

No share option expense was recognised for both
years in 2015 and 2016.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016
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39 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 39 EZEBIEAE
The following are the major deferred tax assets FEERAFERAFEFENEERER
(iabilities) recognised by the Group and movements AEERIBEE (AE)EE REEHM
thereon during the current and prior years: ™~
Accelerated
tax Undistributed Other
depreciation profits assets Total
mEFE
EHE KA EEF Htv&EE e
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2015 RZZ—0%F
—H—H 348 (9,421) (343) (9,416)
Credit (charge) to profitor Bt A2 %
loss (note 13) (1) (Ha13) 33 1,276 (103) 1,206
At 31 December 2015 R-ZT—hF
+-A=1+—H 381 (8,145) (446) (8,210)
Credit to profit or Bt ABmcER
loss (note 13) (Hat13) 15 708 55 778
At31 December2016  R=E-—X%F
+=A=+-H 396 (7,437) (391) (7,432)

Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law of PRC,
withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared
in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures from 1 January 2008
onwards. Deferred tax credit of US$708,000 (2015:
credit of US$1,276,000) on the undistributed earnings
of PRC subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures has
been credited to the profit or loss for the year ended

31 December 2016.

BEFECEMSHEEZ PEMNBAR
A BEARRAELEE _TTNF
— A — BRI SR AR EH
708,000 T 2 B IEE 2 (Z T —H
#:1,276,000 T 2)EFAZE
—ANETZ A=+ BULFEEBESZES
PRMBAR BEARREELER
IKES R F 2 IRIER TEK B o

BRHEBEEXFRAT « —T—RNFFR
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39 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
(Continued)

At 31 December 2016, the Group has unused tax
losses of US$144,647,000 (2015: US$111,566,000)
available for offset against future taxable profits. No
tax losses has been recognised as deferred tax assets
due to the uncertainty of its recoverability. Included in
unrecognised tax losses are losses of US$964,000,
US$1,261,000, US$7,563,000, US$15,765,000 and
US$26,168,000 that will expire in 2017, 2018, 2019,
2020 and 2021 (2015: US$644,000, US$7,058,000
and US$15,765,000 that will expire in 2017, 2019
and 2020), respectively. Other losses may be carried

forward indefinitely.

The Group does not have any deductible temporary

differences for both years.

40 DISPOSAL OF A JOINT

VENTURE AND ACQUISITION OF

SUBSIDIARIES

In December 2015, the Group signed agreements with
Modex Manufacturing Limited and Modex Production
Limited to acquire the remaining 50% equity interest of
a joint venture, QSOE, and 100% equity interest of a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Modex Production Limited,
MTC, respectively. In addition, the Group has agreed
to engage Modex Asia Limited (“Modex Asia”) as the
sales agent of cabin and cargo offshore containers
at a commission charge. These transactions were

completed in January 2016.

Upon completion, QSOE became a wholly-owned

subsidiary of the Group.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016

39

ELEHIBEEE (2)

R-ZBE—RNE+-_A=+—80 K&
&) A 7K {57 A F% T8 /B $8144,647,0003
T (—ZT— A% :111,566,0005 7T ) A]
HAENR B 1% 2 BB R F - AR ARAE
MEEAIKEMH EEHERAERL
MEEEMNMIEBEBEE TREER

7 T8 /&5 18 964,000 7T * 1,261,0003
JT * 7,563,000% 7T * 15,765,000% 7T &
26,168,000% 7t ( = — F 4F : 644,000
3 JT ~ 7,058,000 7T %15,765,0003 7T
PRIR=FT—tF ZZT-N\F - =F
—NERZZEZEFIH)HRR=F
—+tF T -NF ZEZEK=F
R HeRERRAIT ER A o

AEEEMFTERGRREFEER
E\O

g

E-CELERKBENEL

all EE

RZE—RAF+A AEEEHA
Modex Manufacturing Limited &z Modex
Production Limitedzt B WE—4
& 1b 2 — QSOEF| #4250 % A% # K Modex
Production Limited®) 2 & # B 2 i B A
Al —MTCZ100 % I # 1t 51 - R &£ B
7] Z ¥2 FAModex Asia Limited ([Modex
Asia VIERNRERERBLEEMEBISRE
$HE 2 KIE - fModex Asia Limited 7R &
WERAEBERE BLERHIRZT—X
F—HEK -
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DISPOSAL OF A JOINT
VENTURE AND ACQUISITION OF
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The management has located the Taicang plant to
Qidong, where it aims to bring all offshore container
manufacturing activities under one roof. The
management believes that the plant in Qidong will lead
to cost savings and higher efficiency.

HE-—SELXERWEBHELQ
a) (%)

EEEDHARBFEEERR UEH
BEBTREMNLEE -EEEMRE"
BRI PS #5 75 BY B & BN B BB TR

Consideration transferred EEZENAE US$'000
FET
Cash HE 157

For the acquisition of QSOE, a consideration of
US$2,937,000 was stated in the sales and purchase
agreement, the Group has paid US$157,000 in cash
for exchange of 50% of QSOE’s net assets value as at
31 December 2015. The remaining balance represents
future sales commission pay to Modex Asia, the
holding company of Modex Manufacturing Limited and
Modex Production Limited, based on the sales agency
agreement entered into which the Group shall engage
Modex Asia as the sales agent of cabin and cargo
offshore containers at a pre-determined commission
rate. The commission rate charged by Modex Asia
are subject to change according to the annual sales
amount of each category of products. There was no
present obligation to pay any sales commission on
acquisition date, accordingly, the consideration for this
acquisition was determined to be at US$157,000.

For the acquisition of MTC, the contractual
consideration was US$500,000. A deed of waiver was
granted by Modex Energy Rentals Singapore Pte. Ltd.
and Modex Energy Services Limited, the subsidiaries of
Modex Holding Limited, to waive the payables owing to
them, up to the amount equivalent to the negative net
asset value of MTC as at 31 December 2015. After the
payables being waived, the fair value of the net assets
of MTC was assessed as zero. Consequently, another
deed of waiver was granted by Modex Production
Limited to waive the payment of consideration of
US$500,000 for the acquisition of MTC.

BIEE & E e WEEQSOER & E A B
#42,937,000% 7T - A& B 2 3 14157,000
ETREUNBBMQSOER —_ T — R F
+ - A=+—BZ50%&EFE % T
B 1n < B AKX F 45Modex Asia
—Modex Manufacturing Limited 52 Modex
Production Limitedf) 2= i% A &) 2 $5 & 1
T RBEIAEERERS  ~5E
#5EE FAModex AsiafVIBSHE B/ M EY)
BTHREM WIRBETHES R HE
SR -HeXBeRESEERER
MFEHSBERAZ -ARRKER Y
REAMSZNHEEMRENER  NIKE
2 EER (BT A157,000E T

Y EEMTCH) & 7] 85 2 X {8 /3500,0003
7T ° Modex Holding Limited 2 fff/& A &) —
Modex Energy Rentals Singapore Pte.
Ltd.F1Modex Energy Services Limited[F]
BHREMICRZMKR AR HERMTC
R_E-—RFE+_A=+—HAEE
FEHSENER TEERERIE-E
ZL N R R FA 218 - MTCE & %
BERNAAEETGEAZ ALk Modex
Production Limited71 %5 & 5 — #1 % &
1%+ B 500,000 T i BEMTCHY 85

BRME-

BRHEBEEXARAT « —T—RNFFR
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40 DISPOSAL OF A JOINT
VENTURE AND ACQUISITION OF
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of
acquisition are as follows:

40 HE-—[FELERWEKHEBL

a) (%)

REBERERNE 2 EERBBWT

Total
MTC QSOE mE
US$’'000 US$'000 US$'000
FET FET FETT
Property, plant and equipment #73 « #28 & %45 110 2,244 2,354
Inventories A= 1,996 2,145 4,141
Trade receivables JE W BR 3K 8 1,207 1,215
Prepayments and T R H Ath UK
other receivables RIE 1,001 136 1,137
Tax recoverable AU E] 2 FR I8 24 8 32
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR NS 301 2,549 2,850
Trade payables FETBR X (263) (475) (738)
Accruals and other payables  fEztE A &
H At & - BR K 910) (424) (1,334)
Amount due to an associate  fE{ — & X R FRIB (2,267) - (2,267)
Amount due to immediate ERTEEIZER AR
holding company I8 - (6,889) (6,889)
Amounts due to fellow ANIEESGIENG
subsidiaries IR - (187) (187)
- 314 314

The fair value of trade receivables at the date of
acquisition amounted to US$1,215,000. The gross
contractual amounts of these trade receivables
acquired amounted to US$1,215,000 at the date of
acquisition. The best estimate at the date of acquisition
of the contractual cash flows not expected to be
collected is nil.
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40 HE-—SELXERWEKHEL

VENTURE AND ACQUISITION OF Al (&)
SUBSIDIARIES (Continuea)
Goodwill arising on acquisitions: WEBELE - EE:
US$’000
FETT
Consideration transferred EERE 157
Fair value of previously held equity e AIIF B QSOER#E 2 A A BAE
interest in QSOE 157
Less: net assets acquired B R B ERE (314)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WIEEE ZHE -
Cash inflow on acquisitions: WEFBzHE:
US$'000
FET
Cash consideration paid BENBHEERE (157)
Bank balances and cash acquired WEE 2 RITEBR LIRS 2,850
2,693
Impact of acquisition on the results WIBHEBRRA ZHE:

of the Group:

Included in the loss for the year is US$2,599,000
attributable to QSOE and MTC. Revenue for the year
includes US$5,102,000 is attributable to QSOE and

MTC.

MTC e

RAEE Z BB - 52,599,0003 7T &7
EFRQSOERMTC » AN B v & U
AR+ 5,102,000 7t 71 58 A A QSOE K&

BRHEBEEXFRAT « —T—RNFFR
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41

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to shareholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debt, which includes the bank borrowings disclosed in
note 35, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital, reserves and accumulated profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on a semi-annual basis. As part of this
review, the directors of the Company consider the cost
of capital and the risks associates with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors of
the Company, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.
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42 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a.

Categories of financial

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R & M st

42 E@mIHE
a &EmMIBEZESE

instruments
2016 2015
—E-RxfE —ZT—hF
US$’000 US$'000
FExrx FET
Financial assets EWMEE
Loans and receivables (including & 7% & & I BR 7K
cash and cash equivalents) (BREE;EFERRE) 519,195 460,257
Available-for-sale financial assets Al EE v SR EE 6,608 6,608
Derivative financial instruments PTETRmT A 356 -
526,159 466,865
Financial liabilities £ h=Ri
Derivative financial instruments PTESRT A - 20
Amortised cost B SHRAR 595,366 438,628
595,366 438,648

BRHEBEEXARAT « —T—RNFFR
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42 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments
include available-for-sale investment, derivative
financial instruments, trade receivables, other
receivables, trade payables, bills payable,
other payables, bank borrowings and current
accounts with immediate holding company,
fellow subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk, interest rate
risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Market risk

U] Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group have
foreign currency sales and purchases,
bank balances and cash and bank
borrowings, which expose the Group
to foreign currency risk. Approximately
71% (2015: 68%) of the Group’s cost
of sales and expenses are denominated
in currencies other than the functional
currency of the relevant group entity
making the sales, whilst almost 90%
(2015: 96%) of sales are denominated in
the group entity’s functional currency.
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42 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continueq) 42 <@I A (%)
b. Financial risk management b. MBEKREREBBRRER
objectives and policies (Continued) (&)
Market risk (Continued) T i5% R B (&)
(0 Currency risk (Continueq) () B (&)
On 11 August 2015, China government RZZTE—RAFNA+—
weakened the Renminbi (‘RMB”)’s H - AEBFTAARE
daily reference rate by 1.9%, allowing WERRZLEE1.9%"
depreciation to combat a slump in REEREH A - BER
exports. As at 31 December 2016, the —E-RE+ZA=+—
RMB’s dally reference rate was dropped H ARENEEHRZ2ZE
by 6.8% as compared to 31 December BRR-_ZT—HF+=A
2015. Such RMB depreciation exposed =+ —HFETF6.8% Lt
the Group to foreign currency risk as ARERESEEARZR
significant amount of Group’s monetary REZNINERE - AR
assets and liabilities are denominated SEEKEEREKS
in RMB. However, this exposure was BHERRNEBHEAARE
partially offset by the advantages taken FHE-AM AERRE R
from such depreciation, as almost 71% NARBHEBETRAE
cost of sales are denominated in RMB LATHOE - AR % HY
whilst 90% sales are denominated in HEKRUARBEHE T
Uss. 0% HISHE AETTAEH ©
The carrying amounts of the Group’s REkE HHY - RNREELAYNE
foreign currency denominated monetary HECEREERERSA
assets and monetary liabilities at the BZREEBERT:
reporting date are as follows:
Assets Liabilities
BE 8f&
2016 2015 2016 2015
“B-AF —T-nF ZB-AE _—T-hF
US$’000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TER TET TEx FTET
RVB AR 151,170 213,796 222,193 114,631
Hong Kong dollar &7t
(‘HKS") 8,085 8,566 685 1,086

BRHEBEEXFRAT « —T—RNFFR
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42 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continueq) 42 <RI EA (%)
b. Financial risk management b. MBEKREREBBRRBKR
objectives and policies (Continued) (&)
Market risk (Continued) 15 R B (&)
(0 Currency risk (Continueq) i EXEL (&)
Sensitivity analysis B DT
The Group is mainly exposed to SEXTZEHAREZE
exchange fluctuation of RMB. HOEE e
The sensitivity analyses include financial BRMES T EFBEATRR
assets and liabilites denominated in RSB ERNEEE 2
foreign currencies which are different HtWE®EemEERE
from the functional currency of the B TRERNEAARKEHE
relevant Group entities. The following TTEBHEAEEENTAET
table shows the post-tax profit or AEREERABREHRERY
loss impact of the foreign currency BRMKBEBZEE-T
denominated non-derivative monetary REEBBRRARBREET
assets and liabilities to change in RMB REFES(ZE—H
for the Group. The numbers below F:5% )R cHRBEER
indicate the increase (decrease) in post- TE—RF - BRBMEE
tax loss (2015: post-tax loss) where 18) 1808 Ofid) -k EZE
RMB depreciates/appreciates by 5% AEBRBFEHRFTEA
(2015: 5%) against the US$. This is RERITHER BEHRER
mainly attributable to the exposure ARERITERKRENER
outstanding at the end of the reporting RN BR & U BR 3K 2 [ ez P
period on RMB bank balances, W (BRZEERMEEFSE
bank borrowings and payables net FrE—KF) -
of receivables assuming they are
outstanding for the whole year:
2016 2015
—E-RE —_T-—1F
US$’000 US$'000
FTER FETT
Credit (charge) to profit or loss ~ #N ARME X =T B
where RMB depreciates by 5% B2 H (ZE—H%F:
(2015: 5%) against US$ BR2H) ZmA
(E1#8) 2,537 (3,327)
(Charge) credit to profit or loss 1A R¥E ¥ =t FHE
where RMB appreciates by 5% Bp2H (ZZE—HF:
(2015: 5%) against US$ BfAzHh)z (EE)
s ) (2,537) 3,327

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016
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42 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continuea)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate
risk primarily relates to floating rate
borrowings and variable rate bank
balances. Interest rate risk on bank
balances is considered immaterial due
to short maturity. It is the Group’s policy
to keep its borrowings at floating rate of
interest so as to minimise the fair value
interest rate risk.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates
on financial liabilities are detailed in the
liquidity risk management section of this
note. The Group’s cash flow interest
rate risk on non-derivative financial
instruments is mainly concentrated on
the fluctuation of London Interbank
Offered Rate (‘LIBOR”) and borrowing
rates offered by People’s Bank of China
arising from the Group’s variable-rate
borrowings.

In order to minimise the Group’s
interest rate risk exposure arising from
the US$310,000,000 term loan, the
Company entered into three interest rate
swap contracts, with a total notional
amount of US$186,000,000, to fix the
monthly LIBOR at a range of 0.8775%
to 0.8800%. The three interest rate
swap contracts will mature on 24
September 2017.
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42 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continuea)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Cash flow interest rate risk (Continued)
In current year, the Company entered
into another new interest rate swap
contract with notional amount of
US$40,000,000 to fix the monthly
LIBOR at 0.90%. This swap contract will
mature on 30 March 2020.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to
interest rates for bank borrowings at the
end of the reporting period. For floating
rate bank borrowings, the analysis
is prepared assuming the amount of
liability outstanding at the end of the
reporting period was outstanding for
the whole year. A 50 basis point (2015:
50 basis point) increase or decrease in
interest rate represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

If interest rate had been 50 basis points
(2015: 50 basis points) higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s post-tax loss for the year
ended 31 December 2016 would have
increased/decreased by US$1,826,000
(2015: post-tax loss would have
increased/decreased by US$1,575,000).
This is mainly attributable to the Group’s
exposure to interest rates on its variable
rate bank borrowings.

The Group’s sensitivity to interest rates
have decreased during the current year
mainly due to the decrease in variable-
rate bank borrowings.
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42 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continuea)

Market risk (Continuead)

(i) Other price risk
The Group is exposed to equity price
risk through its investments in unquoted
equity securities. No sensitivity analysis is
presented as the Group’s investments in
unquoted equity securities are measured
at cost less any identified impairment
losses at the end of each reporting
period.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which will
cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to discharge an obligation by the counterparties
is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial
position. In order to minimise the credit risk,
the management of the Group has delegated
a team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at the end of
each reporting period to ensure the adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk
is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on bank deposits is limited
because the counterparties are banks or
financial institutions with high credit-rating
assigned by international credit-rating agencies
or state-owned banks in the PRC.
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42 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuead)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continuea)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risk
as 19.0% (2015: 16.1%) and 53.6% (2015:
56.1%) of the total trade receivables were
due from the Group’s largest customer and
the five largest customers, respectively. The
Group has assessed the creditworthiness of
these customers, all of these customers have
strong financial backgrounds and high credit-
rating within the industry. In this regard, the
directors of the Company considered that the
credit risk is low. The Group’s concentration of
geographical risk was improved as the Group’s
turnover generated from the largest geographic
sector of customers, the United States of
America, was dropped from 37.6% to 35.0%.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation
of bank borrowings and ensures compliance
with loan covenants or to timely negotiate with
the lenders if any non-compliance is expected.
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42 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued) 42 e =N )
b. Financial risk management b. MBHEKREREBBRRER
objectives and policies (Continued) (%)
Liquidity risk (Continueq) nEEE R (&)
The following tables detail the Group's UWTERKRM T AEERITER
remaining contractual maturity for its non- BB ERBOTERMNFESRE
derivative financial liabilities based on the FEEEE TRAEENRAS I
agreed repayment dates. The tables have EXfvemBECREEER
been drawn up based on the undiscounted HIRBEIRIRE MEMHIE] o b &
cash flows of financial liabilities based on BIEMBMASIRE R - NRF
the earliest date on which the Group can be EREBAFHNE RMREHE
required to pay. The tables include both interest PR S AR A B R 4R
and principal cash flows. To the extent that EE-
interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derived from interest rate curve at the
end of the reporting period.
Liquidity and interest risk tables nBEERFIERRE
2016 —E-RF
Weighted On demand Total Carrying
average or less than 1-3 3 months undiscounted amount at
interest rate 1 month months  toiyear  1-5years cashflows 31/12/2016
E-RE
EXEHEE RER +=A
MEFH FHR =2 =fA -Z HeéKE =1-AH
1 Sl -8R =R 2-% fit:3 aE JREtE
%  USS000  USS000  USS000  USH000  US$000  US$000
TEn Txn Txn Tin TEn Tin
Financial liabilities g 30
Trade payables FEFERS - 66,684 47,618 17,443 - 131,745 131,745
Bills payable HES - 17,061 19,139 44,501 - 80,701 80,701
Other payables Hinfe HBE* - 12,783 2,301 1,825 - 16,999 16,999
Amounts due to associates ERBEAT - 366 - - - 366 366
Amounts due to joint ventures & T‘Qﬁm% ] - 15 - - - 15 15
Bank loans RITER
~ interest bearing borrowings* —HERE 2.58% 10,400 31,362 237,917 96,242 375,921 365,540
107300 100510 301,686 9,42 605747 595366
BRMEBCEBRAF o —T—~FFER
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42 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

42 STRMITHE#)

b. Financial risk management b. HMHERKEIREBERERER
objectives and policies (Continued) (%)
Liquidity and interest risk tables nBEERFERRE (&)
(Continued)
2015 —E-RF
Weighted ~ On demand Total Carrying
average  orless than 1-3 3 months undiscounted  amount at
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year 1-5years  cashfows  31/12/2015
—T-RF
EREF(EE REETR +=R
METH FOR -2 =f8A £ BR&RE =t-H
-k —f8A =fEA E-F hE BE (EEeE
% US$/000 US$'000 US§'000 US$000 US§'000 US$000
TEn Txn TEn Txn TEn TEn
Financial liabilities BHAE
Trade payables FERERS - 47378 30,671 7,059 - 85,108 85,108
Bills payable eSS - 3,542 8,167 11,046 - 22755 22755
Other payables Hit AR - 11,496 1,747 2,328 - 15,571 15,571
Amount due to immediate ERERARARTIER
holding company - 16 - - - 16 16
Amounts due to associates JEREE R AR - 132 - - - 132 182
Amounts due tojoint ventures  [EAELETE - 46 - - - 46 46
Bank loans FITER
- interest bearing borowings”  —#FEEE” 2.32% - 31,180 39,663 254,741 305,584 315,000
62,610 71,765 60,096 264,741 449,212 438,628

The amounts included above for variable
interest rate instruments for non-derivative
financial liabilities are subject to change if
changes in variable interest rates differ to those
estimates of interest rates determined at the

end of the reporting period.
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42 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continuea)

Liquidity and interest risk tables
(Continued)

* For the Group'’s interest bearing borrowings, the
welghted average interest rate at the end of each
reporting period is used for undiscounted cash
flows analysis.

Note:  The undiscounted cash flow of derivative financial
instrument was determined assuming all variables
used In the fair value calculation at the end of each
reporting period remained the same until maturity.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

- the fair value of derivative instrument is
made of discounted cash flow analysis
using the application yield curve and
forward rate for the duration of the
instrument for non-optional derivatives;
and

— the fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities (excluding derivative
financial instrument) are determined in
accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted
cash flow analysis.
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42 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuead)

C.

Fair value of financial instruments
(Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities that are
measured at fair value on a recurring
basis

The derivative financial instruments are
measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The following table gives
information about how the fair values of this
financial instrument are determined (in particular,
the valuation technique(s) and inputs used),
as well as the level of the fair value hierarchy
into which the fair value measurements are
categorised (levels 1 to 3) based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements is observable.

° Level 1 fair value measurements are
those derived from quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active market for identical
assets or liabilities;

° Level 2 fair value measurements are
those derived from inputs other than
quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

° Level 3 fair value measurements are
those derived from valuation techniques
that include inputs for the asset or liability
that are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs).
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42 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

C.

Fair value of financial instruments
(Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities that are

2 EEIH®
c. SEMIBEZAREEE

EREMEERFEAKEN
ERMEEMEHEBEZARE

measured at fair value on a recurring & (&)
basis (Continued)
Fair value Fair value
as at asat  Fair value
Financial assets 31/12/2016 31/12/2015  hierarchy Valuation technique and key inputs
tHEE BE-B-RE HE-T-1F
tZB=t-B +TZA=t-B AREHE

EWAREE  LHAAR

{EfE Ef HESERIEHE

Interest rate swaps classified Assets of Liability of Level 2 Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are
as derivative financial US$356,000 US$20,000 estimated based on forward interest rates
instruments in the (from observable forward interest rates at
consolidated statement the end of the reporting period) and the
of financial position contracted interest rates, discounted at a

rate that reflects the credit risk of various
counterparties
RERRBMRARIBARIT  356,000% T 20,000% T - HREERE - RAREERERMIRE
ESRT A MRS iE a8k A X (RS HRNATBERE ST

There were no transfers between Levels 1 and
2 in the current and prior years.

The directors of the Company consider that
the carrying amounts of financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised
cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

) RAENE BRRERSHEER
LEY g

F—RRE_BZERKEE R
Rl F E I (] e i o

ARBEZRB/NERA M B HRER

tREMEELRSRBE HE
RREEREAAEERS-

BREEECERRAR o _g_/\ﬁﬁfﬁﬁ
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43

44

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 43 BEREE
2016 2015
=B~ ZT0F
US$’000 US$'000
FERx FET
Capital expenditure in respect of BRI AR ARG B ISR
the acquisition of property, B2 BAYE HES K
plant and equipment contracted but &2 B AT
not provided for in the consolidated
financial statements 29,138 7,962

OPERATING LEASE
COMMITMENTS

Lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
outstanding commitments for future minimum lease

44 KEHEERE

TERAEA
REER  AEBERBEN A REE &2
MERRRAEREZRIHEES ZHOH

payments under non-cancellable operating leases, {ES NN
which fall due as follows:
2016 2015
ZE2-RE —T-0F
US$’000 US$'000
FERx FET
Land and buildings T KRBT
— within 1 year —RE—F 3,467 3,402
—in the 2nd to 5th year inclusive —RE_FEFRF
(BEEMFRIEEAN) 1,915 3,197
5,382 6,599

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable
by the Group for certain of its container depot sites.
Leases are negotiated for an average period of 1 to
10 years and rentals are fixed for an average of 1 to 3
years.

Lessor

In current year, no leasehold land and buildings of the
Group were rented out under operating leases. No
property rental income earned during the year (2015:
US$37,000). These properties do not have committed
tenants for the next year.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 45 BHHEEQRAIRS
Other than those disclosed in notes 26, 27, 28, 29 BrREEE M ISR 5126 ~ 27 - 28 ~ 29 %
and 34 to the consolidated financial statements, A BN AEEEEMEEER R 5
details of transactions between the Group and other SEEEEA T
related parties are disclosed below.
During the year, the Group entered into the following RERN - AEEEBHAELR (EAEE
trading transactions with related parties that are not RE)EKATEERS
members of the Group:
2016 2015
A —T—hEF
US$’000 US$'000
FERx FETT
Sales to immediate holding company R EZIZR A B HEE M 215 53
Sales to fellow subsidiaries (Note) mERKTEARIHEHESm
(Hfat) 31,231 68,990
Sales to an associate M—EEARIHER 4,375 474
Rental expense to a fellow m—RZMB AR
subsidiary (Note) Me (Bit) 445 672
Interest income from a joint venture Al — & B EUWENE HFI & - 518
Interest income from an associate [ — B A A UER & SRR 712 482

Note:  The fellow subsidiaries are Pacific International Lines (China)
Ltd., PIL Logistics (China) Co., Ltd., Pacific International
Lines (H.K.) Limited, Tideline Consulting Incorporated,
Strategic Times Limited and Mariana Express Lines
Pte. Ltd., in which PIL, a substantial shareholder of the
Company, also the immediate holding company of the

Company; has controlling interest.

Hiet - AR E 2 F] B AR (F BT B R A
A K FEE(PE)BRAA X FH
# (&%) B R A a] - Tideline Consulting
Incorporated - Strategic Times Limited %
Mariana Express Lines Pte. Ltd. » X-F#4
BN A2 FZRE R EEAR A A —
FFBZFE R A2 1R s

BRHEBEEXARAT « —T—RNFFR
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45 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

The balances with the related parties are disclosed in
the consolidated statement of financial position and
notes 26, 27, 28, 29 and 34. All such balances are
subject to normal credit terms of 30 to 60 days (2015:
30 to 60 days).

Compensation of key management
personnel
The remuneration of directors of the Company and

other members of key management during the year
was as follows:

45 EFBEEQTRS (&)

BHERR 2 ERE NGRS B R
KBt 5226 27 <28 29 KB4H FE W F
TIA TR —MRAZ B IRKET TE R30E60K
—ZE—R%F:30860K) °

FTEEEAS Z R

AEEHER LM EBERAS 2 HH
-

2016 2015

ZE-RE —T-IOF

US$’000 US$'000

FEx FET

Short-term employee benefits FEHAtE A 1,751 2,035
Post-employment benefits X HE B tE R 73 75
Share-based payment PARR AR 52 - -
1,824 2,110

The remuneration of directors of the Company and key
executives is reviewed by the remuneration committee
having regard to the performance of individuals and
market trends.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016
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46 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

a.

General information of

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R & M st

46 ARQTZEEHBLTZFE

BB Bl < — ARt B A

subsidiaries
Details of the Group’s subsidiaries as at 31 RZTE—REKZ Ei‘f'_
December 2016 and 2015 are set out below: A=+— K 7 ZHBA
=2 U
Issued and fully
Place of Proportion of paid share/
incorporation/ ownership interest held contributed Principal
Name of subsidiaries registration by the Company capital activities
BRTR
BRBRH/
WEARER R/ b NG | Ay i ] BARA TEEK
2016 2015
—E-RE —E-1f
DY Terminal Ltd. Hong Kong 100.0% 100.0% Ordinary Provision of
THEEBRAR ) HK$1,000,000 container
Lk storage and
1,000,007 7T repair services
RS RERT
REERT
Eng Kong Container & Warehousing Ltd. Hong Kong 73.3% 73.3% Ordinary Investment
KEEBEEBRAR B HK$300,000 holding
LER RERR
300,000 7T
Eng Kong Container Services Ltd. Hong Kong 73.3% 73.3% Ordinary Provision of
KEREERBARRA & HK$3,000,000 container
LRk storage, drayage
3,000,000 and repair services
RAEEEA
W7 8
REERT
Guangdong Shun An Da Pacific Container British Virgin - - US$1,000 Marketing dry
Co,, Ltd. * Islands Note 1) 1,000% 7T freight and
RERRES (K1) specialised containers
in the PRC
piale s
HERMREER
BHESECEERAT o —T—NFER
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46 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 46 AEATZEEMBATZFE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (%)
General information of a MBRrAZ—MEER (&)
subsidiaries (Continued)
Issued and fully
Place of Proportion of paid share/
incorporation/ ownership interest held contributed Principal
Name of subsidiaries registration by the Company capital activities
ERTR
BRBRH/
WEAREE R/ b KA TS 2 R BARA TEER
2016 2015
ZB-xf _T-1F
Hui Zhou Pacific Container Co., Ltd.* * PRC 91.0% 91.0% 1US$40,000,000 Manufacturing
BNATEERBRAR HE 40,000000% 7 of dy freight
containers
BUEE S KA
Ningbo Paciic Container Co., Ltd.* " PRC 100.0% 100.0% 1JS$20,000,000 Manufacturing
BRATERERAR" HE 20,000,000% 7 of dry freight
and specialised
containers
BUEE S KA
REERH
Qidong Singamas Offshore Equipment PRC 100% - RMB20,000,000 Manufacturing
Co. Ltd." HE (Note ) AR 20,000,007 of offshore
BRERSIREERAA (Hiz2) containers
BB TE4F
Qidong Pacific Logistics Equipment PRC N/A N/A N/A Manufacturing
Co., Ltd.* " (‘idong Paciic’) H TER TER (Note §) of refrigerated
BRATUREEBRAR " T containers
([ERART]) (Hrt3) BERREER
Qidong Pacific Port Co., Ltd." PRC 100.0% 100.0%  RMB154,000,000 Provision of
BRATAKERAA G AR 154,000,000 container

terminal services
RIS E R



46 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

a.

General information of

subsidiaries (Continued)
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46 ARQTZEEHBLTZFE

a.

(%)

fBARZ—MEER (&)

Issued and fully

Place of Proportion of paid share/
incorporation/ ownership interest held contributed Principal
Name of subsidiaries registration by the Company capital activities

BRTR

BRBRHB/
HWEARER R/ b KA 2 AL Bl BARA TEER

2016 2015
ZE-RE  ZE-n%
Qidong Singamas Energy Equipment PRC 100.0% 100.0%  US$214,500,000 Manufacturing
Co., Ltd.* " (Qidong Singamas’) H Note 3) of dry freight,
BERBREREBERAT" 214,500,000 5 specialised
([ERER]) (H1t3) and refrigerated
containers
HERERR
HER
&/7 /%E #
Qingdao Pacific Container Co., Ltd.* * PRC 100.0% 100.0%  US$126,605,700 Manufacturing
BEATERARAA i 126,605,700% T of chy freight
and specialised
containers
SR SRR
REER
Shanghai Baoshan Pacffic Container PRC 112% 77.2% 1US$25,300,000 Manufacturing
Co,, Ltd. * H 25,300,000 7 of dry freight and
DEBWARTERERDA! specialised containers
([E&gL]) SR SR
REER
Shanghai Pacific International Container PRC 64.9% 64.9% 1US$26,000,000 Manufacturing
Co, Ltd** H 26,000,000% 7 of tank containers
LEATEREEERAR ([ LEAT]) SRR
Shanghai Regferco Container Co., Ltd.* # PRC 100% 90.9% US$22,000,000 Manufacturing of
HEBRLRERERAE ! # (Note 4) 22000000570 refrigerated containers
(His4) BUER RERA
BRHEECEERAT « —F /\qziiﬁ
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46 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 46 RATIZEEMB AT ZFE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (#&)
(Continued)
a. General information of a MBARIZ—RHEER &)

subsidiaries (Continued)

Issued and fully
Place of Proportion of paid share/
incorporation/ ownership interest held contributed Principal
Name of subsidiaries registration by the Company capital activities
ERTR
BRBRH/
WEAREE R/ b KA TS 2 R BARA TEER
2016 2015
ZB-xf _T-1F
Singamas Container Industry Co., Ltd." * PRC 75.0% 75.0% 1US$5,100,000 Manufacturing
BHEBIXERAA H 510000057 of colapsible fiatrack
and specialised
containers
RETRASRA
R
Singamas Container Holdings (Shanghai) PRC 100.0% 100.0% 1US$2,000,000 Provision of
Limited * H 2,000,000 7T technical
KHEREE (LE)BRAR" and development
senvices of container
manufacturing
REESEREER
B R
Singamas Depots Holdings Ltd. * Hong Kong 100.0% 100.0% Ordinary Investment holding
BRESCEERAA e HK$10,000 RERR
LiER
10,0007
Singamas Management Services Limited * British Virgin 100.0% 100.0% US$1,000 Provision of
Islands 1,000% 7T management
EBRUHE senices
RATEBRS
Singamas Modex Limited Hong Kong 100.0% - HK$200,000 Investment holding
BREERERAT 0 Note 2) 200,000/ 7T RERR
(Hii2)

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016
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46 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 46 RATIZEENEBLATZFE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (#&)
(Continued)
a. General information of a MWBARZ—RHEER &)

subsidiaries (Continued)

Issued and fully

Place of Proportion of paid share/
incorporation/ ownership interest held contributed Principal
Name of subsidiaries registration by the Company capital activities

BETR

BRBRHB/
HWEAFEE R/ b KA 2 AL Bl BiRA TEER

2016 2015
ZE-RE  ZE-n%
Singamas Logistics (Qingdao) Co., Ltd.* PRC 60.0% 60.0% 1US$5,780,000 Provision of
BROR (E5)BRAR " H 5,780,000 container storage
and repalr services
RS EBRT
R ER%
Singamas Logistics (Tianjin) Co., Ltd.*" PRC 100.0% 100.0% 1US$6,500,000 Provision of
BROR (R2)BRAR " H 6,500,000 7 container storage
and repalr services
RS EBRT
R ER%
Singamas North Ameica, Inc. USA 100.0% 100.0% US$500,000  Marketing containers
ES 500,000% 7 in the USA
EXEEHR R
Singamas Terminals (Ching) Ltd. British Virgin 100.0% 100.0% US$1,000 Investment holding
Islands 1,000 REER
ZERERES
Singamas Terminals Holdings Ltd. * British Virgin 100.0% 100.0% US$1,000 Investment holding
Islands 1,000% T RARR
AERNES
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46 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 46 RATIZEEMB AT ZFE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (#&)
(Continued)
a. General information of a MBARIZ—RHEER &)

subsidiaries (Continued)

Issued and fully
Place of Proportion of paid share/
incorporation/ ownership interest held contributed Principal
Name of subsidiaries registration by the Company capital activities
BRTR
BRBRH/
WEAREE R/ b KA TS 2 R BARA TEER
2016 2015
ZB-xf _T-1F
Singamas Terminals (HK) Ltd. British Virgin 100.0% 100.0% US$1,000 Investment holding
Islands 1,000%7T RARR
RBRTES
Singamas Terminals (Hong Kong) Ltd. Hong Kong 100.0% 100.0% Ordinary Provision of
BHERESE (B8 5B AF B HK$5,000000  mid-stream services
LR RERREFRE
5,000,000 7
Singamas Warehouse (Shanghal) British Virgin 100.0% 100.0% US$1,000 Investment holding
Company Ltd. Islands 1,000% 7 RAZR
EBRENES
Superb Gain Holdings Limited* British Virgin 100.0% 100.0% US$1,000 Property holding
Islands 1,000% T EZ ]
SBRTES
Taicang Modex Energy Engineering Ltd." PRC 100% - 1S$2,500,000 Manufacturing of
AERBEERIRERAF H (Note 2) 250000057 offshore containers
(Hit2) HESTIEER
Tianjin Pacific Container Co., Ltd." * PRC 97.0% 97.0% US$25,700,000 Manufacturing
REATEERERAR i 25,700,000% 7 of dly freight and
specialised containers
SR ERA
KR
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46 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

a.

General information of

subsidiaries (Continued)
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46 AATRZEEMBRTZHE
(%)

a MBARZ—MBRMEER (&)

Issued and fully

Place of Proportion of paid share/
incorporation/ ownership interest held contributed Principal
Name of subsidiaries registration by the Company capital activities

BETR

BRBRHB/
HWEAFEE AL/ EmiE % KA 2 AL Bl BiRA TEER

2016 2015
ZE-RE  ZE-n%
Tianjin Singamas Container Co., Ltd.* " PRC 100.0% 100.0% 1US$2,000,000 Provision of
REBREEBRAR H 2,000,000% 7T container storage,
repair and trucking
Services, and serving
as a freight station
REESBERT
e HER
HEIMRT
Well Key Limited * Hong Kong 100.0% 100.0% Ordinary HK$1 Provision of
BHERAR B LBk human resource
17T management service
REANER
ERRH
Wellmass Group Ltd. British Virgin 60.0% 60.0% US$10,000 Investment holding
Islands 10,000% 7T RARR
ABRNES
Xiamen Pacific Container Manufacturing PRC 100.0% 100.0% US$23,000,000  Manufacturing of dry
Co., Ltd*" # 23,000,000 T freight containers
EPATRBRERRAR " BUEE S KA
Yixing Singamas Metal Products Co., Ltd.* ¢ PRC 95.0% 95.0% US$200,000 Manufacturing of
HEBHEBHRBRAR i 200,000%7T container parts
RERKRRY
BRMEBCEBRAF o —T—~FFER 279
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46 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

a.

General information of

subsidiaries (Continued)

* Subsidliaries held directly by the Company

4 Equity joint venture established in the PRC in

accordance with relevant laws and reguilations

Wholly owned foreign enterprise established in

the PRC in accordance with relevant laws and

regulations

@ Represented common shares held by the
Company

The principal place of operation of each
subsidiary is the same as the place of
incorporation/registration stated above, except
for those companies incorporated in British
Virgin Islands which are incorporated for
investment holding purpose.

The above list gives the principal subsidiaries
of the Company which, in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, principally affected
the results and assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, result
in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the year.

Notes:

1 Guangadong Shun An Da Pacific Container Co.,
Ltd. was struck-of in April 2015.

2 Qidong Singamas Offshore Equipment Co. Lid.,
Singamas Modex Limited and Taicang Modex
Energy Engineering Ltd. became subsidiaries of
the Group. Please refer to note 40 for details.

& On 30 June 2015, Qidong Pacific was merged
with Qidong Singamas and Qidong Pacific was
deregistered after the merger. The paid-up share
capital of Qidong Singamas was then increased to
US$147,500,000 after the merger.

Additional capital injection were made to Qidong
Singamas amounting to US$47,000,000,
US$10,000,000 and US$10,000,000, in
December 2015, May 2016 and September 2016
respectively, which increased the paid-up share
capital to US$214,500,000.
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46 ARATRZEEMBATZHE
(%)

a MBARZ—MREER &)

- AR AIBEEIFH &R A
# WRIZB B% P RAER T BT

ZRmAEILRE
. WRIZE %P RAEER F BIK
LRI EEH IR

@ REARFIFFH A BB

BRI R JB R B B XL AR R R
B A RSN BHB QA RS
EH 2 E BB FICFTEL 2 X
3B AR E o

ERAFIGRARBIESR LAY
AEBEZBNREEREATE
WETEMBAR - ARBEES
RS HEMK B AR ZF B
SIBFEBR-

BEARFE L WRBEMHE
REEREEZEAZRS -

7 Guangdong Shun An Da Pacific
Container Co., LIdER=F—7#
FP0H Kt 55 o

2 BRI TRIEERAA] BH
R BBERAFRAER# L5
RIIZBERR BB FEEZ ]
B A 5 I5E 2 HH 40 -

3 R-FE—RFNA=1+H EFR
X FPEERBERE G EE O
REERA Fatas - R E vIEEF
C Y el N RS
147,500,000% 7T, °

KREFRFHR -FE—FF+=
A ZFE—NFREAR-ZF
—NTFN A EE LA
47,000,000 7T * 10,000,000 7©
10,000,000 T HIEESN &K - &
BR A AE pi1 2214,500,0005 7T °
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46 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

a. General information of
subsidiaries (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

4 In November 2016, the Group acquired the
remaining 9.1% equity interest of Shanghai
Reeferco Container Co., Ltd. at RMB26,279,000
(equivalent to approx. US$3,880,000). Shanghai
Reeferco Container Co., Ltd. became a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group.

b. Details of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries that have material
non-controlling interest
The table below shows details of non-wholly
owned subsidiaries of the Group that have

46 AATRZEEMBRTZHE
(%)

a MWBRIAZ—MEER &)
Kzt - (%)

4 RZB-—ANF+—H XEH
KA R #526,279,0007T (165 R
3,880,000 7T ) e i L /5 5 /2
REER IR AJFIFRI. 1 X AR HE -
LRBRR R EIR A RIEE

KRR EE T EHEZ N E LR

ale

b. HEEXNFERIRFEERZZ
FEEEWBLRAEFE

TRERAEEHRREEAIER
BREZEIFREMB AR

material non-controlling interests: 1%
Proportion of
ownership interests
and voting (Loss) profit
Place of rights held by allocated to Accumulated
Name incorporation/ non-controlling non-controlling non-controlling
of subsidiary registration interests interests interests
FERRRES
K/ BENRER (BR)ABIEZ
WEAR AR it RRELH FERRRER R FERRRER
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
“B-RE —ZT-1F ZB-RE —FT-HF ZE-XE —T-AfF
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$000
T£n FET TET FET
Hui Zhou Pacific Container Co., Ltd. PRC 9.0% 9.0% (241) (13 5,883 6,259
EMATERERLA HE
Shanghai Baoshan Pacific Container Co., Ltd. PRC 22.8% 22.8% (1,912 (693) 16,518 18,489
FBEIWATSEERAR HE
Shanghai Pacific International Container Co., Ltd. ~ PRC 35.1% 35.1% (1,148) 1,490 13,521 14,668
DEATERERERAA HE
Shanghai Resferco Container Co., Ltd. PRC - 9.1% (176) (121) - 4,054
HEBRLRERERAA HE

281



282

Notes to the Financial Statements 81753k & Kzt

46 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

b.

Details of non-wholly owned

subsidiaries that have material

non-controlling interest (Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect
of each of the Group’s non-wholly owned
subsidiaries that has material non-controlling
interests is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts
before intragroup eliminations

46 ARTZEEHBLTZFE

(#)

Shanghai Baoshan

BAEEANFERERERZ
E2EMBL RS (@)

ATERDAEB R EAIE
B REm 2 FFEEHBARZ
MG ERBE - T O 5 E B
ERANEENEEHEA 28

Shanghai Pacific

Hui Zhou Pacific Pacific Container International Shanghai Reeferco
Container Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd. Container Co., Ltd. Container Co., Ltd.
ENATERE TRBLATEE LEATERER LEBRLREE
BRAF BRAR BRAF BRAR
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
S®-xE ZT-0F -®-xF -T-0F -®-xF -T-0IF -B-xF —T-0F
US$000  US$000  US$000  USS000  US$000  USS000  US$000  US$000
FEn FET FER TEL FET FET FER TEL
Current assets TEEE 80,343 88,675 88,116 81,401 46,572 50,148 39,098 41,042
Non-current assets FREEE 32,258 33,051 12,822 12,738 39,499 34527 8,004 9,058
Current liabiities TBAE (47,233) (52,181) (31,337) (10,363) (23,578) (26,429) (5,526) (6522)
Equity attrioutable to owners ARERREL R
of the Company 50,485 63286 53,083 65,287 48972 43578 41,666 40,524
Non-controling interests FERRR R 5,883 6,259 16,518 18,489 13,521 14,668 - 4,054
Revenue S 119,142 143,379 76,144 97,312 56,303 111,247 - 37,866
Expenses ER (121,819 (143521) (84,518) (100,349 (59,569)  (107,008) (2,912) (39,199)
(Loss) profit for the year REE (F58)RF (2,677) (142) 8,374) (3,037) (3,266) 4239 2912 (1,333
(Loss) proft attributable to owners 2N IR FEf (518)
of the Company il (2,436) (129 (6,462) (2,344) 2,118 2,749 (2,736) (1212)
(Loss) profit attributable to the JERRR AR R AR IR
non-controling interests (B18) 57 (241) (13 (1,912) (693) (1,148) 1,490 (176) (121)
(Loss) profit for the year AEE (BR) A (2,677) (142) 8,374) (3,037) (3,266) 4239 2912 (1,333)

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016
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46 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 46 EKATZETEMBARIZFHE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (&)
(Continued)
b. Details of non-wholly owned b. HWEEXIFERBRRERZZ

FEEWMBRAFE &)

subsidiaries that have material
non-controlling interest (Continued)

Shanghai Baoshan

Shanghai Pacific

Hui Zhou Pacific Pacific Container International Shanghai Reeferco
Container Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd. Container Co., Ltd. Container Co., Ltd.
EMATEE IRRLATEE LBATEREE LEBHLREE
BRAR BRAR BRAR BRAR
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
ZB-XF —T-nf ZB-XF -“T-1F ZB-XF —T-nf ZEB-XF —T-1%
US$'000 US$000 US$'000 US$000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$000
TR TET TEn TEL FEr TET TEn FEL
Other comprehensive income KARIREEN
attributable to owners Hin 2 E iz
of the Company - = - = - = - =
Other comprehensive income JERR AR R IR
attributable to the Hin 2 E iz
non-controlling interests - = - = - = - -
Other comprehensive income FREMZEKE
for the year - - - = - = - =
Total comprehensive expense) AR FREEEZE
income attributable to owners (Xith) hezsiesa
of the Company (2,436) (129) (6,462) (2,344) (2,118) 2,749 (2,736) (1,212)
Total comprehensive (expense) SRR R iEE (G
income attributable to the 28 (Zit) Kax
non-controlling interests k) (241) (19 (1,912 (693) (1,148) 1,490 (176) (121)
Total comprehensive (expense)  FAZE (X i) Kz
income for the year et (2,677) (142) (8,374) (3,037) (3,266) 4,239 (2912 (1,333
Dividends paid to EREEEE
non-controling interests BRiRS 135 857 58 63 - - - 2,005
Net cash from (used in) EEEHME ()
operating activities ReFE 13,055 7,79 (13,769) 14,816 (8,823) 20,254 (23,904) (15,354)
Net cash (used in) from REBED (FifE) Fif3
investing activities BEFE (1,230) (2,335) (514) 158 2,624 (947) 1,237 1,759
Net cash (used in) from MEEE (FE) B
financing activities ReFE (10,593) 68) 105 294 1,498 (17,445) 69 (175)
Net cash inflow (outflow) FRERA () 1,232 5,393 (14,178) 15,268 (4,701) 1,862 (22,598) (18,770)
BRHEBECEGRAE o« —T— A FFRH
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47 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 47 ARTRZBBERRARERR
POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY
2016 2015
—E-RE —ET—hF
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - e R 830 902
Investments in subsidiaries RHB AR 2 RE 466,716 392,112
Investments in associates REELE AT ZIRE 260 517
Amounts due from subsidiaries & BT /B R R FRIE 218,631 —
Avalilable-for-sale investment AEHE ZIRE 2,567 2,567
Derivative financial instruments PTHEEmT A 350 —
689,354 396,098
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments and other receivables T8~ &z E 4t fE U 7118 10,636 10,114
Amount due from immediate RN EZ IR A F I8
holding company 66 =
Amounts due from subsidiaries NI E O] - 217,514
Derivative financial instruments PTESRT A 6 =
Bank balances and cash RITRER LIRS 31,431 29,636
42,139 257,264
Current liabilities REEE
Accruals and other payables EETER REMERIRR 2,262 2,361
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEASTHT B A R FIE 37,268 10,313
Amount due to immediate R EZEIZERARIA
holding company - 16
Amounts due to associates FETESE & R RIFRIE 209 126
Bank borrowings RITIEK 273,501 70,000
313,240 82,816
Net current assets REBEEFE (271,101) 174,448
Total assets less current liabilites ZEEZAFERAEBE & 418,253 570,546
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47 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

RRQTF]Z BB R R

POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE (#&)
COMPANY (Continuea)
2016 2015
—E-xfE —ZT—hHF
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Capital and reserves EXRHE
Share capital AR A 268,149 268,149
Share option reserve MR 3,367 3,367
Accumulated profits ESa vl 56,009 54,010
327,525 325,526
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Bank borrowings RITER 90,728 245,000
Derivative financial instruments TESmITE - 20
90,728 245,020
418,253 570,546

ARRIZHBARRRERARREFTE
R_ZE—tF=A=+BHERIREEL
5 Wl FMIRRREEFAERRE

The Company’s statement of financial position was
approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 30 March 2017 and are signed on its
behalf by:

Teo Siong Seng FAE
Director 2%

Teo Tiou Seng REHE
Director %
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47 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 47 ZARRATR 2B R ERR
POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE (#)
COMPANY (Continuea)
Movement in the Company’s reserves ANF ZHE S E)

Share option Accumulated

reserve profits Total
BRERE 25 & F W
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FET FET FETT
At 1 January 2015 R-—E—RF—H—H 3,367 36,063 39,430
Profit for the year RE[E 5 A - 27,525 27,525
3,367 63,588 66,955
Share repurchase A& (7 188 - (224) (224)
Dividend paid to the owners Xz fit A B AR B A% B
of the Company - (9,354) (9,354)
At 31 December 2015 R_Z—R%F
+=-—A=+—8H 3,367 54,010 57,377
Profit for the year RE[E 5 A - 1,999 1,999
At 31 December 2016 R=Z—RF
+=—A=+—8 3,367 56,009 59,376
Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 RIEE BN TS E297IEETE - AN 7]
December 2016, calculated under section 297 of RZEBE—REFE+_A=1t—HA#EHDYIK
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, amounted to 2 /5356,009,000E 7T (ZE—RF:
US$56,009,000 (2015: US$54,010,000). 54,010,000% 7T ) ©
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Five Year Financial Summary

LEMERE

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t-BHLEE

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
-xE —T-1F —TpmF —T-=F —T——F
% % % % %
Sales Mix HEAS
(as a percentage of sales)  (MASHEHEA ML)
Manufacturing: BUEERK:
Dry freight SR 64 57 70 72 69
Refrigerated containers RREEA 9 14 13 12 13
Tank containers 23] 6 10 5 5 6
US domestic containers EEAESER 9 11 8 5 5
Other specialised containers ~ E 515 &
and container parts SRMARH 8 5 2 4 5
96 97 98 98 98
Logistics services Wi R 4 3 2 2 2
Total k] 100 100 100 100 100
TEUs TEUs TEUs TEUs TEUs
TREERE TREEE HREEE TREER HREES
Production volume £EE
20-foot containers 20REHER 196,057 163,847 197,569 184,698 238,126
40-foot containers JOREHERE 20,624 30,934 35,150 33,942 47,700
40-foot high cube containers 40N & &4 248,712 262,682 395,398 275,158 276,488
45-foot high cube containers 4505 F %48 13,464 9,798 1,185 2,871 7,500
Others Hith 44,928 59,632 57,172 28,780 30,288

523,785 526,893 686,474 525,449 600,102
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Five Year Financial Summary A B EHEE

For the year ended 31 December

HET-A=t-HLEE

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
ZE-AE “I-hE “E-F “E-=F “E--F
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
S TET TET FET TET
Revenue L 916,433 1,126,414 1,546,483 1,282,983 1,536,608
(Loss) profit from operations &g (BE) &M (49,638) 16,562 65,024 61,573 116,734
Finance costs HEER (11,060) (10,669) (13,802) (18,201) (19,676)
Investment income REBA 2,764 5,036 4704 5,064 4,421
Change in fair value of derivative  #TH &R IEZ
financial instruments AREEE 376 (259) 239 - -
Reclassification of fair value (oss) 115 A %% T &#)
gain of derivative financial ThefIAL
instruments designated as AREE(ESR)
hedging instruments from A B R A
hedge reserve EREEZ - - (3,071) 8,079 2,427
Share of results of associates ~ [EMGHEE A2
(BE)&H (1,201) (2,450) (72) 920 575
Share of results of joint ventures MR E N E 2
il (BE) 410 659 (498) (288) (1,602)
(Loss) profit before taxation BRBiAl (B51R) Al (58,349) 8,935 52,524 57,147 102,879
Income tax expense PEHES T (357) (10,287) (19,624) (17,859) (33,948)
(Loss) profit for the year KEE (BE) & (61,920) (1,352) 32,900 39,288 68,931
Attributable to: JEf:
Owners of the Company ARARR (59,434) 2,729) 28,021 34,274 60,346
Non-controling interests FERBRER (2,486) 1,371 4879 5,014 8,585
(61,920) (1,352) 32,900 39,288 68,931
(Loss) earnings per share Bk (B8)&H
Basic HAR US(246) centsEfll  USD.11) centEfl  UST.16 cents3:fll UST.42 cents3=fll - US2.49 cents5=ll
Diluted & US(246) centsE1ll  USD.11) centEfll - UST.16 cents3:flll UST.42 cents=fll - US2.49 cents5=ll
Assets and Liabilities EERAR
Total assets BEE 1,225,627 1,166,040 1,430,441 1,388,927 1,465,205
Total liabilties BaeE (647,807) (518,379) (758,008) (734,694) (816,175)
577,820 647,661 672,433 654,233 649,030
Equity attributable to KARREEGER
owners of the Company 533,014 595,282 617,630 598,263 579,162
Non-controling interests FERRRER 44,806 52,379 54,803 55,970 69,368
Total equity Engs 577,820 647,661 672,433 654,233 649,030
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BHMEEERFRAE
SINGAMAS CONTAINER HOLDINGS LIMITED

19th Floor, Rykadan Capital Tower,

135 Hoi Bun Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BANEEBE IS REAEERKNEI9E
Tel B3 :(852) 2598 7831

Fax§E  :(852) 2598 7847

E-mail BE : info@singamas.com
Website #34E : http://www.singamas.com
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